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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

MR
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2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
ot St 2l TN —T)\F —T+F —TSF
G0N RVMB'OOO  RMB000  RMB'O00  RMB'000
ISl \ERTT ARETT ARBTT ARETR
Revenue and Profit WA REF
Revenue WA 816,665 737,128 628,235 758,671 458,273
Profit/(loss) before taxation BRAIRT/ (B8) 42,846 6,884  (966,928)  (255967) (882,569
Income tax (expense)/credit FER(Zi) /e (33,512) (1,142) (30,951) 32,478 151,624
Profit/(loss) for the year FEREH/(58) 9,334 5742 (997,879 (223489)  (730,945)
Profit/(loss) attributable to: UTATEERR/(E8)
Equity shareholders of the Company APEESERE 15,824 3,480 (958,429) (220,974) (704,397
Non-controlling interests Ei g 3 (6,490) 2,262 (39,450) (2,515) (26,548)
Assets and Liabilities BEREE
Non-current assets EREEE 541,483 603,732 678,809 727,711 638,157
Current assets TEAE 936,626 1209679 1115437 2554276 3,381,966
Current liabilities mEBAaE (780,812)  (1,284,611)  (1,097,917)  (1,942,182)  (2,172,046)
Non-current liabilties ERBEE (499,156)  (439,991)  (607,243) (151,559  (499,337)
Net assets BEE 198,141 178,809 189,086  1,188246 1,348,740
Equity attributable to: DN ALTEGES
Equity shareholders of the Company AYNS]L - Ead 261,244 232,938 238552 1,197,867 1,369,267
Non-controling interests SR (63,103) (54,129) (49,466) (9,621) (20,527)
Dividends per share (HK$) FREE(ET)
Interim ] = - - - _
Final RER - - - - -
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EFHE

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Director”)
of Boer Power Holdings Limited (the “Company” or “Boer
Power”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”), | report to
shareholders the annual results of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2020 (the “Year 2020” or the “year”).

In Year 2020, the market was impacted by the COVID-19
pandemic (the “Pandemic”), which continued to hinder the
global economy, and the Sino-US trade relations remained tense
and the global economic recovery slowed down. However, the
national economy is gradually becoming stable at present with
the successive resumption of work and production in China.
According to the statistics of the National Bureau of Statistics,
the annual gross domestic product (“GDP”) amounted to
RMB101,598.6 billion, representing an increase of 2.3% over
last year at comparable prices. Although China’s economy
was severely affected by the Pandemic, the production and
operating activities were basically recovered at the end of the
year, resulting in a positive economic and social development
in general, at the same time providing certain favorable factors
for the continued recovery of the Company’s results. During the
year, the Group has actively adjusted its operation strategies
and developed business and customer base in a steady manner
from the perspective of sustainable development in mid-to-long
term, at the same time further enhancing operating efficiency
through refined management, resulting in a steady recovery of
the Group’s results.

During the year, the revenue of the Group was RMB816.7 million,
representing a year-on-year increase of 10.8%. Having benefited
from the increasing added value of products and services as a
result of the continuous upgrade of the Company’s technologies,
coupled with the steady optimisation of the product structure
of sales, the gross profit margin reached 29.0%, remaining
stable on a year-on-year basis, while the gross profit was
RMB237.0 million, representing a year-on-year increase of
11.1%. Meanwhile, with the continuous implementation of refined
management strategy, the Group has maintained good operation
efficiency, resulting in further decrease in administrative and other
operating expenses (excluding impairment losses on contract
costs). Profit from operations, profit before taxation and profit for
the year amounted to RMB78.8 million (2019: RMB49.4 million),
RMB42.8 million (2019: RMB6.9 million) and RMB9.3 million
(2019: RMB5.7 million), respectively, representing an increase
as compared with those of the previous year. Benefited from the
Group’s constant implementation of stringent internal control
system during the year, the level of both trade receivables and
inventory at the end of the period remained stable, while the level
of trade and bill payables at the end of the period decreased
steadily. Borrowings and finance costs also kept decreasing,
while the asset and liability structure continued to improve,
recording positive operating cash flows for five consecutive years.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (continued)
FREHRE @

Based on modern communication and Internet technology,
relying on its own “Cloud Smart” big data platform and
leveraging its technological advantages, Boer Power performed
uninterrupted monitoring, data collection and two-way
transmission and real-time analysis on operation and energy
efficiency on electrical terminal equipment, thereby providing its
customers with solutions for intelligent power distribution, power
consumption and energy efficiency management, including
hardware integrated systems, customised operating systems and
software, new energy power generation and sales of electricity
system, as well as one-stop intelligent electrical integrated
management solutions for type of products and services, such
as online and offline operation and maintenance management.
As such, customers can enjoy safe, highly efficient and energy-
saving power consumption and hence maximising the economic
benefits of their power consumption. With over 35 years of
professional experience, the Group is one of the few service
providers of one-stop intelligent electrical integrated management
solutions for various industries in the industry, which has given
the Group a first-mover advantage. In recent years, the Group
has also gradually optimised the power consumption databases
of different industries. Combined with years of experience
accumulated in intelligent power management technology, Boer
Power is able to ensure the safe and reliable operation, striving to
reduce operation cost and realise practical economic benefits for
customers.

Due to the accelerating development of 5G network
commercialisation around the globe, 5G and data centers are
about to trigger a new wave of investment in the market, and
in view of the demand arising from the prevention and control
of the pandemic and post-pandemic economic recovery, new
infrastructure projects related to new technologies and new
applications such as 5G network, big data and loT have been
pushed forward more rapidly. These infrastructures have become
key drivers and key focus areas for new economic development
trends and stable social development in China. In particular,
data centers have secured more extensive investment from
the government, capital contributions and other resources,
which will certainly form a new investment hotspot and a new
round of construction boom. Over the years, the Group has
devoted considerable efforts in exploring the data center power
distribution market with an aim to continuously optimise and
consolidate its technological advantages and maintain sound
reputation in the market. Following the development trend of
the new infrastructures, the Group has continued to develop its
“One-stop Data Center Solution” and recorded steady growth of
its market share.

BOER POWER HOLDINGS LIMITED BEEHZERERATR
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (continued)
FREHRE @

In addition, the urban rail transit industry in the PRC witnessed
rapid growth in recent years with constant increase in the number
of operating routes of urban rail transit, and gradually materialised
the development of network transformation. In Year 2020, 39
urban rail transit routes were newly added with an additional
operating mileage of 1,240.3 kilometers, up by 20.1% over last
year. Meanwhile, in view of the breakneck urban development in
the PRC, water pollution has become increasingly severe, which
caused the government to push forward the construction of
sewage treatment plants in recent years. During the year, there
were 2,679 urban sewage treatment plants in China and that
number will still be on the rise significantly along with the rapid
pace of economic development in the future. This creates huge
potential business opportunities for the Group’s intelligent power
management products and services. The Group is committed to
mainly providing diversified services and customised solutions
for various infrastructure construction and municipal construction
projects, including intelligent power solutions to buildings, rail
transit, wastewater treatment and transportation hub projects
of different types. The growing domestic investment in relation
to infrastructure construction and municipal construction has
provided important opportunities and support for the continuous
recovery of the Group’s business.

During the year, the Group has continued to focus on establishing
intelligent, energy conserving and highly efficient customised
system solutions, and providing long-term maintenance and
consultancy services and products for a number of Fortune
Top 500 companies and domestic and foreign large-scale long-
term enterprises and customers, as well as a number of leading
enterprises, including domestic telecommunication and data
center operators, with a view to maintaining good cooperation
and partnership in the long term.

In terms of overseas market, under the impact of the Pandemic-
stricken global economy, the infrastructure projects in progress
or under planning in various countries experienced certain delay.
During the year, the Company’s bidding and implementation
of overseas projects were greatly affected. In light of this, the
Company adopted prudent operating and financial measures to
address the negative impact brought by the volatile Pandemic
situation overseas in the mid-to-long term. Meanwhile, leveraging
on its existing global sales network, the Group prudently and
steadily developed new overseas business on the basis of the
four overseas branches with an aim to preserve strengths for
expansion in the overseas market after the Pandemic.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (continued)
FREHRE @

In Year 2020, the Pandemic has brought a huge impact on
the world economy and the world has suffered from economic
recession. Although certain countries and regions in the world
have brought the Pandemic under control and numerous types
of COVID-19 vaccines have been approved successively for
marketing, the Pandemic could still have a pivotal impact on
the economic landscape in 2021. Looking into 2021, given
that the Pandemic would remain as a continuous threat to the
global economy and in light of the complicated and challenging
international environment, the Group will adhere to the solid and
prudent operation strategy and strictly review the project risks to
gradually boost the recovery of the Group’s results while ensuring
sound cash flow.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my most
sincere gratitude to every single staff of Boer who has shown
perseverance and diligence in the face of adversity presented
by the outbreak of the Pandemic this year. With the joint effort
of all staff, the Company managed to maintain its steady growth
momentum upon going through the rough adjustment period
during the year. | would also like to extend my gratitude to our
shareholders, investors, long-term customers and business
partners for their continual devotion and consistent support.
We will continue to adhere to our initial vision and uphold the
pragmatic operation approach in pursuit of development and
deliver actual results to reward the trust of all of you.

Qian Yixiang
Chairman

23 March 2021

BOER POWER HOLDINGS LIMITED BEEZEHZERERA R
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

THBWRR S Hh

MARKET REVIEW

During the year, despite the fact that the market was impacted
by the Pandemic, which continued to disrupt the global
economy, and the Sino-US trade relations remained uncertain,
the national economy exhibits a stabilising trend at present with
the successive resumption of work and production in China.
According to the statistics set out in the 2020 China Annual
Economic Report published by the National Bureau of Statistics,
the annual GDP amounted to RMB101,598.6 billion, representing
an increase of 2.3% over last year at comparable prices.
From January to December 2020, the fixed asset investment
of China (excluding farmers) increased by 2.9% year-on-year
to RMB51,890.7 billion, 0.3 percentage point higher than the
growth rate recorded from January to November. Although
China’s economy was severely affected by the Pandemic, the
production and operating activities were basically recovered at
the end of the year, resulting in a positive economic and social
development in general, at the same time providing certain
favorable factors for the continued recovery of the Company’s
results.

In recent years, digital economy has become an important engine
leading worldwide economic and social transformation and driving
high-quality economic development in the PRC. The central
government has also highlighted the vigorous development of
digital economy at the Central Economic Work Conference held
at the end of 2020. During the Pandemic, digital economy has
seized various opportunities and developed rapidly. In Year 2020,
the total electricity consumption of the entire society amounted
to 7.5 trillion KWH, representing a year-on-year increase of 3.1%.
Year 2020 is the final year of China’s “13th Five-Year Plan”,
the investment in the construction of electric power projects
nationwide accomplished between 2016 and September 2020
was over RMB600 billion in aggregate. In particular, investment
in power and power grids exceeded RMB278.7 billion and
RMB289.9 billion, respectively. During the year, China Southern
Power Grid Co., Ltd. has introduced development plans for the
coming three years, pursuant to which it is expected to invest
RMB120 billion in batches for construction of new infrastructures
during 2020 to 2022. With the commencement of the “14th Five-
Year Plan”, it is believed that the investment and construction in
relation to electricity in the PRC will reach a new milestone.

There was an increasing demand for 5G business due to the
volatile Pandemic situation, thereby further pushing forward the
construction progress of new infrastructures such as data centers
under the vigorous support from the Chinese government.
A stable operation of data centers will safeguard the normal
operation of various industries in the era of digital economy. In
recent years, leading domestic companies in the internet industry
such as Tencent, Alibaba and Kuaishou have devoted greater
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continved)

EEEFWRED

efforts in succession to accelerate the deployment of big data
center projects. During the year, Baidu has announced the
construction of five million data servers within ten years while
Alibaba has announced an additional investment of RMB200
billion for construction of new infrastructures in the coming three
years, and Phase Il of Tencent Cloud big data center located
in the Western region with a total investment of approximately
RMB4.5 billion will be put into use in 2021. It is expected that
the scale of IT investment for data centers in the PRC is likely to
reach RMB525.6 billion by 2022, maintaining a CAGR of 12.4%
for the next three years. The development of new infrastructures
is underpinned by a safe, stable and efficient ancillary power
supply, hence creating new opportunities to the Group providing
its sophisticated products and services regarding intelligent
power integrated management. The Group will adapt itself to
the market development in order to capture valuable market
opportunities.

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year, in view of the volatile Pandemic situation around
the world, ongoing Sino-US trade tension and slowdown in the
global economic recovery, the Group has actively adjusted its
operation strategies and developed business and customer
base in a steady manner from the perspective of sustainable
development in mid-to-long term, at the same time further
enhancing operating efficiency through refined management,
resulting in a steady recovery of the Group’s results during the
year.

During the year, the revenue of the Group was RMB816.7 million
(2019: RMB737.1 million), representing a year-on-year increase
of 10.8%. Having benefited from the increasing added value of
products and services as a result of the continuous technological
upgrade of the Company, coupled with the steady optimisation
of the product structure of sales, the gross profit margin
reached 29.0% (2019: 28.9%), remaining stable on a year-on-
year basis, while the gross profit was RMB237.0 million (2019:
RMB213.3 million), representing a year-on-year increase of
11.1%. Meanwhile, with the continuous implementation of refined
management strategy, the Group has maintained good operation
efficiency, resulting in further decrease in administrative and other
operating expenses (excluding impairment losses on contract
costs). Profit from operations, profit before taxation and profit for
the year amounted to RMB78.8 million (2019: RMB49.4 million),
RMB42.8 million (2019: RMB6.9 million) and RMB9.3 million
(2019: RMB5.7 million), respectively, representing a year-on-year
growth.
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As the Group continued to implement stringent internal control
system during the year, the level of both trade receivables and
inventory of the Group at the end of the period remained stable,
while the level of trade and bill payables decreased steadily. The
borrowings and the finance costs also continued to decrease,
while the gearing structure continued to improve, recording
positive operating cash flows for five consecutive years.

During the year, the Group has integrated the Electrical
Distribution System Solutions (“EDS Solutions”), the Intelligent
Electrical Distribution System Solutions (YIEDS Solutions”) and
the Energy Efficiency Solutions (“EE Solutions”) after optimisation.
The business of the Group can be divided into the following two
major segments:

— Intelligent Electrical Management Solutions (“IEM Solutions”);
and

—  Components and Spare Parts Business (“CSP Business”).

As a product arising from in-depth integration of power grids
and Internet of Things (“loT”), the ubiquitous power loT falls
within the industrial Internet sector of the power industry and is
one of the important aspects of the new infrastructure segment.
Since the strategic goal of building “the world’s leading three
types and two networks” (Z& A - 5 —%) being put
forward by the State Grid Corporation of China in 2019, the
power loT has been ushered into a new 5-year growth cycle.
In Year 2020, the construction of the ubiquitous power loT has
commenced in full swing with an anticipated investment scale
of nearly RMB50 billion, and will be fully completed by 2024.
It is expected that the investment in ubiquitous power 0T will
presumably reach RMB1,037.7 billion during the period from
2019 to 2024. The investment scale of the two largest domestic
power grid companies for the ubiquitous power IoT is expected
to reach RMB300.8 billion by 2024. The Group believed that
such opportunity would facilitate the substantial growth of market
demand for intelligent power distribution terminal equipment
and ecosystem, thereby providing a favorable platform for the
development of the Group. Based on modern communication
and Internet technology and relying on its own “Cloud Smart” big
data platform, the Group provided its customers with solutions
for intelligent power distribution, power consumption and energy
efficiency management, including hardware integrated systems,
customised operating systems and software, new energy
power generation and sales of electricity system, as well as
one-stop intelligent electrical integrated management solutions
for type of products and services online and offline operation
and maintenance management. Leveraging its technological
advantages, the Group performed uninterrupted monitoring, data
collection and two-way transmission and real-time analysis on
operation and energy efficiency on electrical terminal equipment
via the Internet so as to secure safe operation of equipment and
enhance operation efficiency. With over 35 years of professional
experience, the Group is one of the few service providers of
one-stop intelligent electrical integrated management solutions
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for various industries in the industry, which have given the
Group a first-mover advantage. In recent years, the Group has
also gradually optimised the power consumption databases
of different industries. Combined with years of experience
accumulated in intelligent power management technology, Boer
Power is able to ensure the safe and reliable operation, striving
to reduce operation cost and create actual economic benefits for
customers.

As the construction of “new infrastructure” has returned to
normal, 5G network and data centers are going to trigger a
new wave of investment in the market and bring about more
significant development opportunities. Since 2020, new
infrastructure represented by new technologies and new
applications such as 5G network, big data and IoT have played
a crucial role in driving the Pandemic fight and post-Pandemic
economic recovery. These infrastructures have become key
drivers for adapting to the economic development trends and
promoting stable social development and hence have been
included in the 2020 Government Work Report. Having become
one of the new infrastructures officially, data centers will mobilise
investment from the government, capital contributions and other
resources on a broader scale, which will certainly form a new
investment hotspot and a new round of construction boom.
Over the years, the Group has devoted considerable efforts
in exploring the data center power distribution market with an
aim to continuously optimise the technologies, consolidate
its technological advantages and maintain good reputation
in the market. Following the development trend of the new
infrastructures, the Group continued to develop its “One-stop
Data Center Solution” and recorded steady growth of its market
share.

The urban rail transit industry in the PRC witnessed rapid growth
with constant increase in the number of operating routes of
urban rail transit. During the year, 39 urban rail transit routes
were newly added with an additional operating mileage of 1,240.3
kilometers, up by 20.1% over the last year. In addition, in Year
2020, there were 2,679 urban sewage treatment plants in China
and the number was still on the rise. The daily urban sewage
treatment capacity was 192 million cubic meters, up by 7% over
2019. The Group is committed to providing diversified services
and customised solutions for various infrastructure construction
and municipal construction projects, including intelligent power
solutions to buildings, rail transit, wastewater treatment and
transportation hub projects of different types. During the year,
the growing investment in relation to infrastructure construction
and municipal construction has provided key opportunities and
support for the continuous recovery of the Group’s business.

During the year, the Group has provided customised intelligent,
energy conserving and highly efficient system solutions, and long-
term maintenance and consultancy services and products for the
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market, including a number of Fortune Top 500 companies in the
world and domestic and foreign large-scale long-term corporate
customers. The Group has also maintained long-term and good
relationship with a number of leading enterprises, including
domestic telecommunication and data center operators in terms
of cooperation and partnership.

The outbreak of the Pandemic has dramatically affected global
economic activities since early 2020. While disruptions are more
immediate and pronounced in certain industries, its impact on
the electrical distribution equipment industry in the PRC, where
the Group’s principal operations are located, has been rather
modest during the year.

Nevertheless, in terms of overseas market, under the
negative impact of the Pandemic-stricken global economy,
the infrastructure projects in progress or proposed in various
countries experienced certain disruptions. During the year, the
Company’s bidding and implementation of overseas projects
were greatly affected during the year. For the overseas projects
in progress which were affected significantly, the Company
adopted prudent operating and financial measures during the
year to address the negative impact brought by the volatile
Pandemic situation overseas in the mid-to-long term. Meanwhile,
based on its existing global sales network, the Group prudently
and steadily developed new overseas business on the basis of
the four overseas branches with an aim to preserve its strengths
for the post-Pandemic expansion in the overseas market.

As the Pandemic continues to evolve, it is rather difficult at this
juncture to predict the full extent and duration of its impact to
the business and the economy. Management has assessed the
impact of the Pandemic across the Group, and up to the date
of this report, has not identified any areas that could have a
significant impact on the financial performance or position of the
Group.

During the year, the Group remained committed to innovation
and focused its investment on research and development so
as to maintain and continuously enhance the Group’s leading
technological advantages in terms of power cloud data platform.
The Group’s “Cloud+” full-cycle products provided high-end
customised intelligent and energy-saving power management
solutions for customers from multiple industries. On the basis
of modern communication technologies, it also provided
customers with services such as collection and analysis of power
consumption-related data, real-time monitoring, malfunction
alert and online and offline maintenance and operation. Looking
forward, the Group will continue to optimise the operation
efficiency and the operation system of “Cloud+” with a view
to steering forward the development of intelligent power
management.
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Impacts of the Pandemic on the Group’s Business
and its Responsive Measures

Since early 2020, the worldwide spread of the Pandemic, coupled
with the unprecedented Pandemic fighting efforts and responsive
measures adopted, has greatly affected the economy, power
demand as well as the construction and tendering-and-bidding
progress of various projects both at home and abroad. In order
to mitigate the negative impact of the Pandemic on the Group’s
business and ensure sustainable and healthy development in the
mid-to-long term, the Group also actively adjusted its operation
plans and took proactive responsive measures during the year,
including:

e The Group actively communicated and cooperated with
the relevant local departments and authorities responsible
for Pandemic prevention and control. On the premise of
ensuring the Pandemic prevention and control works of the
Company meet the standards and the personal safety of its
employees is safeguarded, the Company resumed work on
12 February 2020 and fully resumed its operation in early
March, strongly safeguarding the smooth operation and
production of the Group during the Pandemic.

e The Group also continued to implement refined
management. During the period, it strictly controlled its
costs and expenses, resulting in a year-on-year decrease
of RMB5.4 million in administrative and other operating
expenses (excluding impairment losses on contract costs).

e In the face of possible funding problems such as tightened
liquidity during the Pandemic, the Group stepped up its
efforts in the collection of receivables and accelerated the
recovery of capital simultaneously. In addition to maintaining
sound progress of its normal receivables collection, the
Group also recorded a reversal of provision for impairment
loss on historical trade receivables of RMB55.4 million during
the year.
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During the year, the Group maintained sufficient liquidity
with positive operating cash flows for five consecutive
years. Besides, its level of borrowings further decreased,
and the finance costs also decreased by RMB6.6 million
year-on-year. On the other hand, from the mid-to-
long term perspective, the Group actively adjusted its
borrowing structure and converted a portion of its short-
term borrowings into long-term borrowings after taking into
account the lowered overall borrowing level. During the year,
short-term borrowings decreased by RMB353.2 million,
while long-term borrowings increased by RMB193.0 million.

During the year, with the volatile Pandemic situation
worldwide, the progress of construction as well as
tendering-and-bidding process of various domestic and
overseas projects was greatly affected. With the excellent
results of Pandemic fight in China, coupled with the
active communication and coordination with suppliers
and customers, the Group’s domestic projects were well
underway during the year. Despite the gradual recovery of
tendering-and-bidding activities of new domestic projects
and the Group’s active participation in the second half of the
year, the number of new orders obtained throughout the year
decreased as compared with that of last year. In terms of
overseas market, the worsening Pandemic situation overseas
has greatly affected the construction progress of some of
the Group’s overseas projects during the year. The Group
actively adjusted its strategies and adopted prudent and
conservative operating and funding measures. Financially,
it made corresponding provision for the loss of seriously-
affected overseas projects in order to minimise the associated
loss. As the major business operation and customers of the
Group were based in China, the fluctuations in the overseas
market will have no significant impact on the Group’s
operation and business.
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PROSPECT

In Year 2020, the Pandemic has brought a huge impact on the
world economy and the world has stuck into one of the most
serious economy recessions to date. Although certain countries
and regions in the world have brought the Pandemic under
control and numerous types of COVID-19 vaccines have been
approved for marketing, the recovery pace of the global economy
out of the recession caused by the Pandemic is still slow. In Year
2020, facing the impact of the Pandemic as well as complicated
and challenging international environment, the economy of
China showed strong resilience. However, the bidding and new
orders of the Group have still been negatively affected. Looking
into 2021, in view of the uncertainties arising from the recurring
Pandemic globally, the Group will adhere to the solid and prudent
operation strategy and strictly review the project risks to gradually
boost the recovery of the Group’s results while ensuring sound
cash flow.

According to the latest predictions of Gartner, Inc., the
infrastructure expenditure for data centers worldwide in 2021
is expected to reach US$200 billion, up by 6% over 2020. It
is anticipated that by 2024, the number of medium-to-large-
scale data centers in China will exceed 80,000 and the data
center market will maintain its growth trend in the future. As
stated in the IDC White Book Data Age 2025, the total global
data will increase from 33ZB in 2018 to 175ZB with information
data showing a fast growth momentum in 2025. Moreover, with
favorable policies and substantial capital injection, big data center
industry is embracing a new development trend and domestic
data volume will increase sharply at a compound growth rate
of over 30% in the upcoming seven years. China is projected
to possess the largest data volume in 2025 as compared with
Europe, the Middle East, Africa, Asia-Pacific and the United
States. With 35 years of professional experience and through
years of improvement in respect of “One-stop Data Center
Solution” since its inception, the Group is confident that it will be
able to continuously expand its market share in this Blue Ocean,
leveraging the long-term cooperation and relationship with top
data center operators and telecommunications companies at
home and abroad, the leading technological advantages in the
industry and the rich project management experience.
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According to the “14th Five-Year Plan”, it is expected that by
2025, 65 cities in Mainland China will open up or construct routes
of urban rail transit, reaching a total operating mileage exceeding
13,000 kilometers. According to the approved construction
plan of rail transit, it is anticipated that China will add 4,735
kilometers of rail transit operating mileage between 2020 and
2022 with the total mileage reaching 11,466 kilometers and it is
expected that the total investment in urban rail transit between
2020 and 2022 may reach RMB3.5513 trillion. In addition, with
a greater emphasis on ecological environmental protection,
China promulgated a series of policies in Year 2020 with a
view to supporting the development of wastewater treatment
industry. Ten government authorities, including National
Development and Reform Commission of the People’s Republic
of China, jointly issued Guidelines on Promotion of Wastewater
Utilisation as a Resource (R T/KERICFANIEES
&), which specifies the development objective that by 2035,
a systemic, safe, environment-friendly and cost-saving pattern
of wastewater utilisation as a resource will be formed. With
the supporting policies, the water industry in general showed
a sound development trend and it is projected that by 2026,
the size of investment in fixed assets of wastewater treatment
will exceed RMB100 billion. Despite the suspension of urban
rail transit construction and operation routes as well as decline
in passenger traffic as a result of the Pandemic, the urban rail
transit will enter a new development stage when the Pandemic
is over. Having come across the Pandemic, more people start to
pay attention to personal hygiene and safety of water resources
and greater emphasis has gradually been put on the construction
of wastewater treatment. Benefited from China’s putting in more
resources into new infrastructure and wastewater treatment,
it is expected that such resources can bring opportunities
to the Group in respect of business development of various
infrastructure-related industrial sectors such as rail transit and
wastewater treatment.

Starting from the second half of 2020, the electric vehicle
industry has entered a track of fast growth, with the penetration
rate rapidly increasing from 5% to 9% in December. Electric
vehicles have been increasingly recognised by private users and
market driving forces continued to grow. It is expected that the
industry will register a compound annual growth rate of over 37%
in the upcoming five years and the sales of electric vehicles are
expected to grow by 25% within this decade. BNEF predicted
that 4.4 million electric vehicles will be sold globally in 2021, which
may boost the total investment in electric vehicles to exceed
US$200 billion. In recent years, to encourage the development of
new energy vehicles, policies for supporting sectors have been
constantly improving, boosting the fast growth of the charging
station industry. It was proposed in the Government Work Report
that China will strengthen the construction of new infrastructure,
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increase the number of charging piles and promote new energy
vehicles. Certain institutions anticipated that in the upcoming
ten years, more than 50 million charging piles will be added and
potentially nearly RMB1 trillion will be invested and the growth
rate of charging station scale will reach its peak in around 2025.
The Group believes that with its abundant reserves in ancillary
power product equipment, it can grasp such a development
opportunity.

Leveraging its leading technology in the industry, extensive
project experience and the well-established big data platform
of power, the Group has built long-term solid relationship with
numerous Fortune Top 500 companies in the world and large-
scale enterprises both at home and abroad and maintained
partnerships under mutual benefits with the leaders of various
target industries for years, providing them with one-stop
intelligent electrical integrated management solutions. In the
future, the Group will maintain its present customer base and
explore more valuable customers, with a view to seeking more
market share.

Looking into 2021, in view of the uncertainties arising from the
volatile global pandemic situation, the Group will adhere to the
solid and prudent operation strategy and strictly review the
project risks to maintain mid-to-long-term, sound and sustainable
development of the Group’s business while ensuring sound
cash flow. The Group will continue to step up efforts in exploring
customers and projects in key emerging industries and gradually
restore the size of sales, constantly upgrade and optimise one-
stop intelligent electrical integrated management system and
optimise its own product mix so as to maintain a high level
of gross profit margin. For overseas business, the Group will
temporarily adopt a conservative approach and prudently develop
new overseas businesses on the basis of the four overseas
branches so as to gain momentum for post-pandemic overseas
market expansion. Meanwhile, the Group will enhance refined
management to control operation expenses while ensuring its
operation efficiency, with a view to improving the profitability of
the Company. In addition, the Group will consistently perform
its general strict internal control, which has become one of the
core operation strategies of the Company, in order to continue
to maintain a reasonable level of receivables, payables and
inventories, thereby maintaining a positive cash flow on an
ongoing basis to further reduce borrowings of the Company and
continuously reduce finance costs, thereby constantly improving
the gearing structure of the Company. Despite facing the risks of
the ongoing negative impact of the global pandemic in the future,
the Group will focus on its robust mid-to-long-term business
development. With huge confidence in gradual business recovery
in the future, the Group will strive to maximise shareholder value.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continved)
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OPERATION AND FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

During the year, the Group has integrated EDS Solutions, iEDS
Solutions and EE Solutions after optimisation. The business of
the Company can be divided into the following two segments:

IEM Solutions

Based on modern communication and Internet technology
and relying on its “Cloud Smart” big data platform, the Group
provides its customers with one-stop intelligent electrical
integrated management solutions for the products and services
such as intelligent hardware integrated systems, customised
operating systems and software, intelligent power consumption
and energy efficiency management system, new energy power
generation and sales of electricity solutions, as well as online and
offline operation and maintenance management, thereby ensuring
safe, highly efficient and energy-saving power consumption of
customers and hence maximising the economic benefits of their
power consumption.

The revenue of IEM Solutions of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2020 was RMB644.1 million (2019: RMB552.0
million), which accounted for 78.9% (2019: 74.9%) of the
Group’s total revenue for the year. The revenue of IEM Solutions
for the year ended 31 December 2020 increased by 16.7% as
compared to the corresponding period of last year. The increase
was mainly driven by the proactive sales tactics by which the
Group secured multiple large orders in the second half of 2019.
The gross profit of this business segment for the year ended
31 December 2020 was RMB192.0 million (2019: RMB187.0
million), representing an increase of 2.6% as compared to the
corresponding period of last year.

The gross profit margin of IEM Solutions decreased from 33.9%
in 2019 to 29.8% for the year, mainly due to the Group’s
development of new large-scale and long-term customers, at
the same time optimising the recovery cycle of the projects. The
Group’s initiative to benefit customers resulted in a decrease in
the Group’s gross profit margin.

CSP Business

The Group also manufactures components and spare parts
for application on electrical distribution equipment or the basic
function units of the solutions and sells such components and
spare parts to its customers. Its functions can only be realised
through the system or connecting with other hardware.

According to the differences of applications, CSP Business can
be further classified into the below categories:

— Special CSP: the custom-made parts ordered by the
Group’s long-term customers; and

— Standard CSP: the general parts and components being
sold by the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continved)
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The revenue of CSP Business of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2020 was RMB172.6 million (2019: RMB185.2
million), which accounted for 21.1% (2019: 25.1%) of the
Group’s total revenue for the year. The decrease in sales of CSP
Business of 6.8% for the year ended 31 December 2020 was
recorded. The gross profit of CSP Business was RMB45.0 million
(2019: RMB26.3 million), representing an increase of 71.2% as
compared to that of 2019.

The gross profit margin of CSP Business segment increased
from 14.2% for 2019 to 26.1% for the year. The gross profit
margin for special CSP is higher than standard CSP, increase in
sales of special CSP led to an increase in gross profit margin.

Other net income

Other net income mainly includes interest income from financial
institutions, refund of value added taxes (“VAT”), government
grants, gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment and
change in financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.
Other net income decreased from RMB9.3 million for the year
ended 31 December 2019 to RMB8.4 million for the year, which
was mainly attributable to the decrease in gain on disposal of
subsidiaries and change in financial assets at fair value through
profit and loss, and partially offset by the increase in government
grants, gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment and
refund of VAT.

Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses consist of mainly staff costs,
transportation fees, travelling expenses and other miscellaneous
expenses. During the year ended 31 December 2020, selling and
distribution expenses were RMB79.5 million (2019: RMB73.6
million), representing an increase of RMB5.9 million or 8.1% as
compared to that of 2019. The increase in selling and distribution
expenses was mainly due to the increase in revenue. Selling and
distribution expenses as a percentage of revenue for the year
was 9.7% (2019: 10.0%).

Administrative and other operating expenses

Administrative and other operating expenses mainly comprised of
staff costs, office expenses, impairment losses on contract costs,
depreciation and amortisation charges and other miscellaneous
expenses. Administrative and other operating expenses for the
year ended 31 December 2020 amounted to RMB142.4 million
(2019: RMB99.6 million), representing an increase of RMB42.8
million or 43.0% as compared to that of 2019. Increase in
administrative and other operating expenses was mainly due to
an impairment losses on contract costs in Year 2020. As at 31
December 2020, the carrying amount of the contract costs was
tested for impairment by the Group, and it is expected that the
carrying amount of the contract costs would exceed the amount
of the consideration that the Group expected to receive. As
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continved)
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such, the Group recorded impairment losses on contract costs
of RMB48.2 million. The impairment loss was mainly due to a
customer withdrew from the Group’s overseas EPC project,
the Group has been actively looking for a new customer since
the withdrawal of that customer, but the progress of locating
a new customer has been affected by the Pandemic and the
uncertainty of the global economic environment. The Group
expects that the impairment losses will not have a significant
impact on the Group’s business. Details are set out in note 20 to
the financial statements. Excluding impairment losses on contract
costs, administrative and other operating expenses decreased
by RMB5.4 million or 5.4% as compared to that of 2019, as a
percentage of revenue for the year was 11.5% (2019: 13.5%)).

Reversal of impairment loss of trade and other
receivables

The Group has been cautiously monitoring the collection of trade
receivables in order to improve the cash cycle. During the year,
the Group continued to put extra effort in receivable collection
and tightened its credit controls on new and existing customers.
The Group had recovered certain long overdue trade receivables
of which impairment loss had been made in prior years and
re-assessed the recoverability of its trade receivables. The overall
settlement from customers have also been improved. The Group
therefore made a reversal of impairment loss of trade and other
receivables of RMB55.4 million during the year.

Finance costs

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group’s finance
costs were RMB36.0 million (2019: RMB42.5 million). Finance
costs include interest on borrowings mainly denominated in RMB
and finance charges on lease liabilities. The decrease in finance
costs was mainly due to the decrease in borrowings and lease
liabilities.

Income tax expense

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group’s income
tax expense was RMB33.5 million (2019: RMB1.1 million). The
income tax expense for the year was mainly attributable to the
reversal of deferred tax assets of RMB45.2 million, and partially
offset by over-provision of current tax in respect of prior years of
RMB10.6 million and reversal of deferred tax liabilities of RMB1.8
million. The reversal of deferred tax assets mainly because the
Group made a reversal of impairment loss of trade and other
receivables of RMB55.4 million during the year, therefore the
related deferred tax assets were also reversed by RMB15.9
million. In addition, the accumulated tax losses carried forward of
the Group’s certain subsidiaries expired at the end of the year,
and therefore, the related deferred tax assets were reversed by
RMB24.5 million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continved)
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Profit for the year

Profit for the year ended 31 December 2020 was RMB9.3
million (2019: RMB5.7 million). The increase in profit was mainly
attributable to (i) improvement in gross profit for the year by
11.1% from RMB213.3 million for 2019 to RMB237.0 million
for the year due to the increase in revenue; and (ii) reversal of
impairment losses for trade and other receivables of RMB55.4
million, partially offset by (i) impairment losses on contract costs
of RMB48.2 million; and (i) increase in income tax expense of
RMB32.4 million.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2020, the total assets of the Group were
RMB1,478.1 million (31 December 2019: RMB1,903.4 million)
and the total liabilities were RMB1,280.0 million (31 December
2019: RMB1,724.6 million). As at 31 December 2020, the
total equity of the Group amounted to RMB198.1 million (31
December 2019: RMB178.8 million).

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise of cash
and cash equivalents, pledged deposits, financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, contract costs, trade and other
receivables, trade and other payables, amounts due to related
parties, lease liabilities and borrowings. As at 31 December
2020, the cash and cash equivalents, net current assets and total
assets less current liabilities were RMB39.9 miillion (31 December
2019: RMB68.9 million), RMB155.8 million (31 December 2019:
RMB15.1 million) and RMB697.3 million (31 December 2019:
RMB618.8 million) respectively. As at 31 December 2020, the
Group had borrowings amounting to RMB583.6 million (31
December 2019: RMB743.8 million). Borrowings were repayable
within five years with effective interest rates ranging from 1.5%
to 10.8% per annum (31 December 2019: range from 2.0% to
9.0% per annum). Cash and cash equivalents and borrowings
are denominated mainly in RMB. The Group’s gearing ratio,
which was expressed as a ratio of total borrowings over total
equity, was 294.6% as at 31 December 2020 (31 December
2019: 416.0%). The decrease in gearing ratio was mainly due to
decrease in total borrowing and increase in total equity.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continved)
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CHARGES ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2020, certain borrowings were secured by
buildings of RMB78.3 million (31 December 2019: RMB85.0
million), prepaid leasehold land of RMB29.4 million (31 December
2019: RMB30.2 million) and pledged deposits of RMB120.0
million (31 December 2019: RMB90.0 million).

ASSETS/LIABILITIES TURNOVER RATIO

The average inventory turnover days increased by 2 days from
82 days for the year ended 31 December 2019 to 84 days for the
year ended 31 December 2020. The average trade receivables
turnover days decreased by 73 days from 302 days for the
year ended 31 December 2019 to 229 days for the year ended
31 December 2020. This was mainly due to the fact that one
of the Group’s operating priorities in Year 2020 was to speed
up the settlement of trade receivables and to conduct detailed
assessments of the customers’ credit status. The average trade
payables turnover days increased by 41 days from 193 days
for the year ended 31 December 2019 to 234 days for the year
ended 31 December 2020, mainly due to increasing use of bills
payable.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group did not have any contingent
liabilities.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT POLICIES

As the Group’s principal activities are carried out in the PRC, the
Group’s transactions are mainly denominated in RMB, which is
not freely convertible into foreign currencies. All foreign exchange
transactions involving RMB must take place through the PRC or
other institutions authorised to buy and sell foreign exchange. The
exchange rates adopted for the foreign exchange transactions
are the rates of exchange quoted by the People’s Bank of China
that are determined largely by supply and demand.

The Group currently does not have a policy on foreign currency
risk as it had minimal export sales and the impact of foreign
currency risk on the Group’s total sales is minimal.
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT HELD, MATERIAL
ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

Particulars of investment properties held by the Group at 31
December 2020 are as follow:

Location

i B

Shenlong Road, Longhu Industrial Park,

’ #  MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (confinved)
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Economic Development Zone, Huaibei City, Anhui Province, the PRC

o B 2 R AL T AR 2 [ BE W TR AR e R

Jiaxing Sweater Raw Materials Trading Market, Honghe Town,
Xiuzhou District, Jiaxing City, Zhejiang Province, the PRC
PEMNIERETAMNELAEREECREBHRZ TS

Yiwu International Commodity City, Zhangian Road,
Xianghe Town, Quanjiao County, Anhui Province, the PRC
PR ZHE 2GR RIS R SER/ N m

Health East Street, Weifang City, Shandong Province, the PRC
B LR A T i R R

Tianyu Yipin, Wulihe Road, Chengnan District,
Mengcheng County, Anhui Province, the PRC
o B 22 1 SR BRI e [ T R OA B KA — e

Save as disclosed above, the Group had no significant
investment held or material acquisition and disposal during the
year ended 31 December 2020.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
OR CAPITAL ASSETS

There was no specific plan for material investments or capital
assets as of 31 December 2020.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The Group had 776 (31 December 2019: 892) employees as at
31 December 2020. The total staff costs for the year ended 31
December 2020 were RMB89.6 million (2019: RMB101.1 million).
The remuneration policy was in line with the current legislation in
the relevant jurisdictions, market conditions and performance of
the staff and the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)
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RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES

The Group believes that employees are important assets and
their contribution and support are valued at all times. The
Group provides competitive remuneration packages and share
award scheme to attract and retain employees with the aim
to form a professional staff and management team that can
bring the Group to new levels of success. The Group regularly
reviews compensation and benefit policies according to industry
benchmark, financial results as well as the individual performance
of employees. Furthermore, the Group places great emphasis on
the training and development of employees and regards excellent
employees as a key factor in its competitiveness.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

1.

Market risks

The Group is exposed to certain market risks such as
interest rate risk, credit risk (including the risk to be borne by
the Group in the event of default of payment by customers),
liquidity risk, etc. The details are set out in note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Commercial risks

The Group is facing various competition by multinational
companies in the same industry, and also finds that an
increasing number of domestic competitors enter the high-
end markets. To maintain the Group’s competitiveness,
the management uses cost leadership strategy as well
as diversifying its business strategies to tackle other
competitors.

Operational risks

The Group’s operations require a certain number of
government approvals and are subject to a broad range of
laws and regulations governing various matters. In particular,
the continuance of the Group’s operations depends upon
compliance with applicable environmental, health and safety
and other regulations. The Group has already employed
external legal consultant and business adviser and will ensure
timely approvals by relevant government departments.

Loss of key individuals or the inability to attract
and retain talents

Lack of appropriately skilled and experienced human
resource could result in a delay in achieving the Group’s
strategic goals. The risk of the loss of key personnel is
mitigated by regular reviews of recruitment and retention
practices, remuneration packages, share award scheme and
succession planning within the management team.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continved)

EEEWmNE DT

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group adheres to environmental sustainability throughout
its business operations. As a responsible corporation, the Group
strives to ensure minimal environmental impacts by carefully
managing our energy consumption and water usage level,
including the establishment of self-distributed photovoltaic power
plants and other initiatives.

The Group promotes environmental protection by raising the
employees’ awareness of resources saving and efficient use
of energy. In recent years, the Group has implemented several
policies to encourage employees for saving energy. All these
policies aim at reducing resources consumption and saving costs
which are beneficial to the environment and meet the commercial
goals of the Group.

RELATIONSHIP WITH SUPPLIERS AND
CUSTOMERS

The Group values mutually beneficial long standing relationships
with its suppliers and customers. The Group aims at delivering
high quality products and solutions to its customers and
developing on mutual trust among its suppliers.

Directors believe that maintaining good relationships with
customers has been one of the critical reasons for the Group’s
success. The business model of the Group with regards to the
business is to maintain and strengthen on strong relationships
within our client base. The Group’s mission is to provide the
finest products and solutions to the customers. The Group is
constantly looking at ways to improve customer relations through
enhanced services. Through the above approaches, the Group
hopes to increase the volume of business from the existing
customers and the reach for new potential clients.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Board places emphasis on the Group’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements.
External legal advisers are engaged to ensure transactions and
businesses performed by the Group are within the applicable law
framework. Updates on applicable laws, rules and regulations
are brought to the attention of relevant employees and operation
units from time to time. The Group continues to commit to
comply with the relevant laws and regulations such as the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong),
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), and other applicable laws and
regulations. Based on information available, the Directors take
the view that during the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Group has complied with the relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the operations of the Group.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EFEREREEEREE

The Directors’ updated information is set out below. Upon
specific enquiry by the Company and confirmations from
Directors, save as otherwise set out in this report, there is
no change in the information of the Directors required to be
disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B of the Listing Rules since the
Company’s last published annual report.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
QIAN Yixiang

QIAN Yixiang, aged 47, is an Executive Director, the Chairman
of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company.
Mr. Qian Yixiang was appointed as an Executive Director
of the Company on 12 February 2010 and as a member of
the Company’s Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee on 30 September 2010. Mr. Qian Yixiang is also
the director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Qian
Yixiang is mainly responsible for the overall management and
strategic development of the Group. Mr. Qian Yixiang joined
Wuxi Boer Power Instrumentation Company Ltd. (“Wuxi Boer”),
the predecessor entity of the Group, in July 1995 and became
the General Manager of Wuxi Boer in January 1998. Since he
first joined Wuxi Boer in July 1995, Mr. Qian Yixiang has acquired
knowledge and experience about the electrical distribution
systems and the electrical distribution equipment industry. Mr.
Qian Yixiang graduated from Jiangnan University with a Diploma
in Business Management in 1995. Mr. Qian Yixiang is the
husband of Ms. Jia Lingxia and the son of Mr. Qian Zhongming.

JIA Lingxia

JIA Lingxia (“Ms. Jia”), aged 47, is an Executive Director and the
Chief Operating Officer of the Company. Ms. Jia was appointed
as an Executive Director of the Company on 12 February 2010
and as a member of the Company’s Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee on 30 September 2010. Ms. Jia is
also the director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Ms.
Jia is mainly responsible for the overall management of the daily
operations of the Group. Ms. Jia joined Wuxi Boer in August
1995 and became the Deputy General Manager of Wuxi Boer
in January 1997. From February 1995 to August 1995, Ms. Jia
worked at Wuxi Special Ventilation Machine Factory, currently
known as Wuxi Xishan Special Ventilation Machine Factory,
as the head of the accounts department. Since Ms. Jia joined
Wuxi Boer in August 1995, she has acquired knowledge and
experience about the electrical distribution systems and the
electrical distribution equipment industry. Ms. Jia graduated from
Jiangnan University with a Diploma in Business Management in
1995. Ms. Jia is the wife of Mr. Qian Yixiang and the daughter-in-
law of Mr. Qian Zhongming.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)
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ZHA Saibin

ZHA Saibin (“Mr. Zha"), aged 54, is an Executive Director and
a Vice President of the Company responsible for new products
development. Mr. Zha was appointed as an Executive Director
of the Company on 12 February 2010. Mr. Zha is also the
director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Zha is mainly
responsible for the product development of the Group. Mr.
Zha joined Wuxi Boer in June 2000 and became the Assistant
Manager and the head of research and development department
of Wuxi Boer in 2003. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Zha worked
at Wuxi City Apparatus Factory from July 1990 to May 2000 and
was later appointed as the head of research and development
and the Deputy General Manager in January 1996 and November
1997, respectively. Since joining Wuxi Boer in June 2000, Mr.
Zha has acquired knowledge and experience about the electrical
distribution systems and the electrical distribution equipment
industry. Mr. Zha received a bachelor’s degree in Engineering in
1990 from Hefei University of Technology.

QIAN Zhongming

QIAN Zhongming, aged 74, is an Executive Director and a Vice
President of the Company responsible for providing advice to
the Board. Mr. Qian Zhongming was appointed as an Executive
Director of the Company on 12 February 2010. As a founding
member of Wuxi Boer, Mr. Qian Zhongming acquired knowledge
and experience about the electrical distribution systems and the
electrical distribution equipment industry during the last 20 years.
Mr. Qian Zhongming graduated from Luoshe Senior High School
in 1966. Mr. Qian Zhongming is the father of Mr. Qian Yixiang
and the father-in-law of Ms. Jia.

YU Wai Ming

YU Wai Ming (“Mr. Yu”), aged 36, is an Executive Director of
the Company responsible for assisting Mr. Qian Yixiang with the
formulation of the strategic development plans and management
policy of the Group. Mr. Yu was appointed as an Executive
Director of the Company on 8 January 2021. Mr. Yu was also
appointed by Mr. Zha as his alternate Director with effect from
8 January 2021. Mr. Yu is a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He has over 14 years
of experience in professional accounting and corporate advisory
services. Mr. Yu received a bachelor’s degree in Business
Administration (Accounting) from The Hong Kong University of
Science and Technology in 2006.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
TANG Jianrong

TANG Jianrong (“Mr. Tang”), aged 57, joined the Board as an
Independent Non-executive Director on 30 September 2010 and
was appointed as a member of the Company’s Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee on 30
September 2010. Mr. Tang is currently a professor in the School
of Business at Jiangnan University. Although the Group has
established a long-term research relationship with Jiangnan
University, Mr. Tang has never been involved in any of the
research and development programmes undertaken by Jiangnan
University for the Group. Neither has Mr. Tang been involved
in the negotiation of any cooperation agreements. Mr. Tang
currently does not receive and has not in the past ever received
any personal benefit from the cooperation relationship between
the Group and Jiangnan University. Mr. Tang currently is not
personally interested in and was not in the past ever personally
interested in such cooperation relationship. He is currently
an independent director of Wuxi DK Electronic Materials Co.,
Ltd. (Stock Code: 300842), which is listed on Shenzhen Stock
Exchange.

Mr. Tang received a bachelor’s degree in Economics from Hebei
Geology College, currently known as Shijiazhuang University
of Economics, in 1987. He then received a master’s degree in
Economics from Zhongnan University of Economics in 1990. He
received a Doctoral degree in Science from Nanjing University in
2009.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)
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QU Weimin

QU Weimin (“Mr. Qu”), aged 52, joined the Board as an
Independent Non-executive Director on 1 August 2016 and was
appointed as a member of the Company’s Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee on 1
August 2016. Mr. Qu serves as the Project Director of Beijing
Zhongqging Zhihui New Energy Technology Co., Ltd since
November 2020. From November 2019 to October 2020,
Mr. Qu served as the Equipment Director of Beijing Zhizhong
Rail Transportation Technology Co, Ltd. From January 2019
to October 2019, Mr. Qu was the Chief Engineer of Beijing
Supergreen Technologies Co., Ltd., responsible for the
operation of the company and focusing on the application
of fiberglass spray-on thermal insulation on ships of Chinese
navy. Mr. Qu served as the Chief Representative of Franklin
Fueling Systems Inc., the Beijing Office from January 2008 to
December 2008. From August 2005 to December 2006, Mr.
Qu served as the Deputy General Manager of Wuxi Electrical
Instrument & Power System Factory (currently known as “Wuxi
Boer Power Instrumentation Company Ltd.”). Prior to that, Mr.
Qu worked as the Product Manager of Veeder-Root Petroleum
Equipment (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. between May 2004 and July
2005. For the period from July 1996 to May 2004, Mr. Qu
worked with Schneider Electric (China) Investment Co., Ltd
where he served various positions including Product Marketing
& Strategic Planning Manager of Medium Voltage Activity,
Activity & Franchise Operation Manager of Medium Voltage
Primary Distribution Activity, DV2 Vacuum Circuit Breaker Project
Manager and Franchise Operation Manager of Low Voltage
Distribution Activity. Mr. Qu has over 27 years’ experience in the
power industry.

Mr. Qu obtained a master’s degree in Business Administration
from the City University of Seattle in 2003 and a bachelor’s
degree in Electrical Engineering from Tsinghua University in 1990.

BOER POWER HOLDINGS LIMITED BEEZEHZERERA R
—ET-TFEFEH Annual Report 2020

BER

EMR([EBX4E]) 52 RZZE—XEN
A—BNMAZEESEIBYIFNTESERN
T-RNENR—BEZERARABFEZE
g FMEEehRELEEEMNKE - B4
BE-Z-ZF+— A5 EEIL AT /EE B
BEEBRAREEHE - BRER_F—N
FT—AZZZ_TFTARNEREFIER
BERARAREIRBRE - BLER=Z
ENF-—AZE_ZE—NF+AETILREREZR
MEHETERARIATIZN - BERRIEL - &
NS EERBATEEEMESEIEN
R - BEER_ZZENF-—HEZZTZN\F
T o AEAER MR RRIE AN EEEE
RE - BEERZZETERAFNAEZTERF
TZREFESE HEEXNER(ERNEAI &
BHIEEENEEERAF ) AIELE - Tty
Al BEER _ZEENFRAE-_ZETRF
t AR G ER SR RE( 8 BRA T
HEEEREE - RN—hANAANFEtAEZZEZN
FHAHME  BEEREMREER(FE)EE
BRARGHETANRENY - BEPEREIER
BB REKIE - PESIFTEHEEL
IE - DV2E ZE #8518 B 18 REE I T &
HEELIE  c BEABEBBA_TEFENIT

BRAR -_TE-FEXBERERNMAZT
BEBBELTEN YR —NAWNBFEBEKR
BEMARTEL S o



BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)
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LAI Wai Leuk

LAl Wai Leuk (“Mr. Lai"), aged 44, joined the Board as an
Independent Non-executive Director on 2 July 2020 and
was appointed as the Chairman of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of the
Company on 2 July 2010. From May 2000 to January 2004,
Mr. Lai worked at Fung, Yu & Co., Certified Public Accountants.
He also served successively as accountant, assistant manager
and manager of KPMG from January 2004 to October 2009.
Mr. Lai was transferred to KPMG Advisory (China) Limited from
November 2009 to May 2012 and was a senior manager at
the time of leaving. He also served as chief financial officer of
Aujet Industry Limited from May 2012 to August 2013. Mr. Lai
is the chief financial officer, company secretary and one of the
authorised representatives of Billion Industrial Holdings Ltd (Stock
Code: 2299) since October 2013. He has more than 19 years of
experience in auditing and accounting. Mr. Lai is a member of
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a member
of CPA Australia and an associate member of The Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretaries.

Mr. Lai received his bachelor’s degree of Commerce major in
Accountancy from the University of Wollongong in Australia
in December 1999 and obtained the master of Corporate
Governance from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in
September 2017.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
AN Di

AN Di (“Mr. An”), aged 47, is the Human Resources and Legal
Director of the Group. Mr. An joined the Group in March 2005
and was appointed as Assistant to General Manager and the
Head of Internal Compliance of Boer (Wuxi) Power System Co.,
Ltd. (“Boer Wuxi”) in November 2006, as factory Operation
Manager of Boer Wuxi and as the Human Resources Director
of the Group in October 2012. Mr. An was re-designated as
Human Resources and Legal Director of the Group in July
2015. Since he joined the Group in March 2005, Mr. An has
gained experience in overlooking the implementation of internal
compliance and human resources matters. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. An had been an Assistant to the Factory Director of
Tianshui Cheungcheng General Electric Apparatus Factory. Mr.
An graduated from Xi’an Jiaotong University with a diploma in
Jurisprudence in 2006.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)
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WU Chang

WU Chang (“Mr. Wu”), aged 51, is the Business and Technology
Director of the Group. Mr. Wu is mainly responsible for project
technical plan development, business quotations, industrial
design of product technology and providing training to technical
staff. Mr. Wu joined Wuxi City Instrumentation System Works in
July 1995. He was appointed as Project Manager of Boer Wuxi
in March 2003 and as Quality Control department’s Manager
of Boer Power in June 2008. In September 2012, Mr. Wu was
promoted to the Customer Center Director of the Group. He was
re-designated as the Research and Development Director of the
Research and Development Department in June 2015 and was
then re-designated as the Business and Technology Director in
March 2017. Mr. Wu graduated from Suzhou Sericulture College
in 1993.

LI Xianli

LI Xianli (“Mr. Li”), aged 47, is the Oversea Markets Director
of the Group. Mr. Li is mainly responsible for the development
and sales work of oversea markets of the Group. Mr. Li joined
Boer Power in April 2011 as the Operation Director. Mr. Li was
the Purchasing Engineer and Purchasing Supervisor of York
(Wuxi) Air-conditioner Refrigeration Equipment Co., Ltd. from
February 1997 to November 2004. Prior to joining the Group,
Mr. Li worked as the Operating Manager and General Manager
of Compair Global Purchasing Center (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. from
December 2004 to March 2011. Mr. Li received a bachelor’s
degree in Economics in 1997 from Nanjing Agricultural University
and then a master’s degree in Business Administration in 2006
from Fudan University.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)
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SHEN Weizu

SHEN Weizu (“Mr. Shen”), aged 48, is the Operation Manager
of Wuxi Tezhong Electrical Capacitor Co., Limited. Mr. Shen
joined Boer Wuxi in January 1993 and was appointed as the
Manufacturing Supervisor and Quality Supervisor of Boer Wuxi in
April 1999 and July 2005 respectively. Subsequently he worked as
the Operation Manager of Yixing Boai Automation Complete Sets
of Equipment Co., Ltd. and then Boer Wuxi between the period
from September 2010 and September 2013. In October 2013,
Mr. Shen was promoted to Supply Chain Management Director
of the Group. Mr. Shen was re-designated as Engineering
Director of the Engineering Department in June 2015 and was
appointed as Operation Manager of Wuxi Tezhing Electrical
Capacitor Co., Limited in April 2017. Mr. Shen graduated from
Jiangsu Provincial Huaiyang Electronic Industrial College in 1993.

CHAN Shiu Pui

Chan Shiu Pui (“Mr. Chan”), aged 41, is the Financial Controller
and Company Secretary of the Group. Mr. Chan is mainly
responsible for the financial management, corporate financing
and company secretarial matters. Mr. Chan joined the Group
as the Financial Controller and Company Secretary in October
2019. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Chan worked for one of
the Big 4 international accounting firms and various companies.
He has more than 16 years of experience in auditing and
financial management. Mr. Chan graduated from the University
of Plymouth in the United Kingdom with a bachelor’'s degree
majoring in Business Administration in 2002. He is a member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

WANG Yun

WANG Yun (“Mr. Wang”), aged 40, is the General Manager of
Boer Energy Jiangsu Co., Ltd.. Mr. Wang is mainly responsible
for the planning, operation and management of photovoltaic
projects. Mr. Wang joined Boer Energy Jiangsu Co., Ltd. in July
2013 as General Manager. Prior to joining the Group, from May
2003 to May 2007 and May 2007 to November 2009, Mr. Wang
worked as an Overseas Sales Manager of Wuxi Suntech Power
Co., Ltd. and Vice President of Sales in Europe of Suntech
Power Holdings Co., Ltd. respectively. Mr. Wang worked as
the Operating Officer of Europe Suntech Power Co., Ltd. from
December 2009 to March 2011. Mr. Wang graduated from
Nanjing University of Finance and Economics in 2003.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

EERGNEEERERE @)

LU Jiang

LU Jiang (“Mr. Lu”), aged 40, is the Investor Relations Manager
of the Group. Mr. Lu joined Boer Power in May 2015. He has
extensive experience in the area of investor relations. Prior
to joining the Group, Mr. Lu worked as the News and Public
Affairs Officer of the British Embassy in China, the Corporate
Development and Investor Relations Manager of Gome Electrical
Appliances Holding Limited (stock code: 493) and the Investor
Relations Manager of PW Medtech Group Limited (stock code:
1358). Mr. Lu received a master’s degree in Computer Science
from University of Hertfordshire in 2003.

ZHANG Xiaochen

ZHANG Xiaochen (“Mr. Zhang”), aged 35, is the Internal Audit
Manager of the Group. Mr. Zhang is mainly responsible for the
formulation and optimisation of the Company’s internal control
process and execution standard according to the needs of its
business development; the execution of the internal control of
the Company to help various departments, subsidiaries and
holding companies to carry out on-site supervision over the
relevant business processes and operating practices to reduce
management risk. Mr. Zhang joined Boer Wuxi in September
2015 as the Financial Internal Control Manager and was
appointed as the Internal Audit Manager in December 2015. Prior
to joining the Group, Mr. Zhang worked as the Auditor of the
Audit Department of Csc & Associados Sociedade De Auditores
in Macau from September 2008 to October 2010. From October
2010 to October 2012, Mr. Zhang worked as the Senior Auditor
of Lehman Brown International Accountants. From October 2012
to September 2015, Mr. Zhang worked as the Senior Auditor of
the Internal Audit Office of Daikin (CHINA) Investment Co., Ltd.
Mr. Zhang graduated from Macau University of Science and
Technology in 2008 with a bachelor of Business Administration in
Accounting.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

ERELSWSE

The Board presents this Corporate Governance Report in the
Group’s annual report for the year ended 31 December 2020.

The Company has complied with the code provisions stipulated
in the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report (the “Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules during the year ended 31 December 2020, except for the
deviations from the code provisions A.2.1 and A.5.1 of the Code.

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) as the code for
Directors’ securities transactions. Having made specific enquiries
by the Company to all Directors, all the Directors have confirmed
their compliance with the required standards set out in the Model
Code during the year ended 31 December 2020 regarding the
directors’ securities transactions. The Company has also ensured
compliance of its employees who are likely to possess inside
information in relation to the Company or its securities in respect
of their dealings with the Company’s securities.

The following sections set out how the principles in the Code
have been complied with by the Company during the year ended
31 December 2020.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Composition of the Board

As at 31 December 2020, the Board comprised seven Directors
consisting of four Executive Directors and three Independent
Non-executive Directors. Following the appointment of Mr. Yu
Wai Ming on 8 January 2021 as an Executive Director, as at
the date of this report, the Board comprised eight Directors
consisting of five Executive Directors and three Independent
Non-executive Directors.

The composition of the Board is well balanced with each Director
having sound industry knowledge, extensive corporate and
strategic planning experience and/or expertise relevant to the
business of the Group.

Function

The Board is responsible for the oversight of the management
of the Company’s business and affairs with the objective of
enhancing shareholder value.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)
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The Board is also responsible for performing corporate
governance duties including the developing, reviewing and
monitoring of the Company’s corporate governance policies and
practices, training and continuous professional development of
the Directors and senior management, the Company’s policies
and practices on the compliance with the legal and regulatory
requirements, the compliance with the Model Code and the
compliance manual applicable to the Company’s employees and
the Directors, and reviewing the Company’s compliance with
the Corporate Governance Code and disclosing in the corporate
governance report of the annual report of the Company.

In addition, the Board is also responsible for reviewing the
risk management system, discussing with the management
to ensure the effectiveness of the risk management system,
considering major investigation findings on risk management
matters and management’s response to these findings, reviewing
arrangements by which employees and those who deal with the
Company can raise the concerns about possible improprieties
in risk management related to the Company, and ensuring
appropriate follow-up actions have been taken.

The Board engaged an external independent consultant to assess
the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems annually which covered certain material controls,
including the financial, operational and compliance controls as
well as risk management functions. The assessment report was
reviewed by the Audit Committee and the Board to ensure the
Company’s risk management and internal control systems have
been worked effectively.

The daily operations, business strategies and administration of
the Company are delegated to the Executive Directors and the
management with the divisional heads responsible for different
aspects of the business. When the Board delegates different
aspects of its management and administrative functions to the
senior management, it gives clear directions in relation to the
scope of powers of the senior management. Although the Board
is not involved in the Group’s day-to-day operations, it does have
a formal schedule of matters reserved for its own decision, as
defined in its terms of reference.

BOER POWER HOLDINGS LIMITED BEEHEZERER AR

36/ —Z-TH44  Annual Report 2020

EFETABRRETEXERBE - 216
B RERARANEEEARREER - &
ELERERENEIINSEEEER  AQ
AIHNBREERNEEAEREERTE - BTF
ETAMERRARRIEE REFHNARTM
KR A RREREARTRNETERRER
NAFROBREERENNERRKE -

litﬁgl\ CEEENAAERTASENERET
B E & A FE AR LR B IR R AR E’Jﬁxﬁlli

*%WEAHAk*i%ﬁ]%ﬁzzxﬂ’]ﬂ%%%&
EEEHELHATERNEDE BEEFHELTH
B8 T Mzt EARR] B ERNWAL A ABLE
REBREENERPAENTETARDEH
E o MIERREUEE NRETTE -

EEeCREI MBI EMET
AEBZRBEIERNIETERF
AOREETEEESE  BIEMK -
BB AREREE I -
MEEZEEFER TGRS URRER
FREETE R AT B UE o

*i*ﬁ?ﬁ
2P e
%@&A
BitLZEg
EEEA

ARAHERBEE - EHRERITHERAR
TEREHNT  MEEMAFITENEEEIAR
FEEITENERLE EEESHETAERE
RITBBEBRSAEEER EEECEHR

REEEBNENGELR TEWES - BEES
ETINAREENHFELE  EHERAHE

AFRROEARFR(ERBEBERE) -



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)
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Board meetings

During the year ended 31 December 2020, four meetings were
held by the Board and the Directors did not authorise any
alternate Director to attend Board meetings. The attendance

record of each Director is set out below:

Name of Board members

EEERENR

Executive Directors HITEE

Mr. Qian Yixiang® (Chairman and Chief SR A0
Executive Officer) (FEFTHABZ)

Ms. Jia Lingxia® (Chief Operating Officer)

BB L L0 HEEEE)

Mr. Zha Saibin BEW A
Mr. Qian Zhongming® SRR S A0
Independent Non-executive Directors HIIHTEE
Mr. Yeung Chi Tat® TS A
Mr. Tang Jianrong et

Mr. Qu Weimin BERLE

Mr. Lai Wai Leuk® RIZEE LA

Notes:

(i) Mr. Qian Yixiang is the husband of Ms. Jia Lingxia and the son of Mr.
Qian Zhongming.

(i) Mr. Yeung Chi Tat retired as an Independent Non-executive Director with
effect from 5 June 2020.

(i) Mr Lai Wai Leuk was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director with effect from 2 July 2020.

Notice of regular Board meetings is served to all Directors at least
14 days before the meetings while reasonable notice is generally
given for other Board meetings.

The Directors would receive relevant documents from the
Company Secretary in a timely manner to enable the Directors
to be informed of the decisions of those matters discussed in
the Board meetings. The Company Secretary would ensure the
procedures of the Board meetings are observed and provide the
Board with opinions on matters in relation to the compliance with
the procedures of the Board meetings. Board minutes prepared
and kept by the Company Secretary are sent to the Directors for
records and are open for inspection at any reasonable time on
reasonable notice by any Director.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Following the retirement of Mr. Yeung Chi Tat on 5 June
2020, the Company no longer complied with the requirements
under Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules, as the number of the
independent non-executive directors fell below the minimum
requirement of three. Further, the Company no longer complied
with Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules which requires that at
least one of the independent non-executive directors must have
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise.

Following the appointment of Mr. Lai Wai Leuk on 2 July 2020
as an Independent Non-executive Director, the Company met
all requirements under Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing
Rules.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, except for the
deviations as explained above, the Company had complied
with Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules. There were
three Independent Non-executive Directors, representing
one-third of the Board. Among the three Independent Non-
executive Directors, one of them has the appropriate professional
qualifications in accounting or related financial management
expertise as required by Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

The Independent Non-executive Directors bring independent
judgment on issues of strategy, performance and risk. The
Company has received from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors annual written confirmations of their
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Based
on such confirmation, the Company considers that all the
Independent Non-executive Directors are independent.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code provision A.2.1 of the Code stipulates that the roles of the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer should be separate
and should not be performed by the same individual. Mr. Qian
Yixiang is the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company. Such deviation from code provision A.2.1 of the Code
is deemed appropriate as it is considered to be more efficient
to have one single person as the Chairman of the Company as
well as to discharge the executive functions of a Chief Executive
Officer, and it provides the Group with strong and consistent
leadership in the development and execution of its long-term
business strategies. The Board believes that the balance of
power and authority is adequately ensured by the operations
of the Board which comprises highly experienced individuals.
During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Board comprised
Independent Non-executive Directors. All of them possess
adequate independence and therefore the Board considers
that the Company has achieved balance and provided sufficient
protection of its interests. The Board will continue to review and
consider splitting the roles of Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer at a time when it is appropriate and suitable by taking into
account the circumstances of the Group as a whole.
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Appointment, re-election and removal

At any time or from time to time, the Board shall have the power
to appoint any person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy
on the Board or as an additional Director to the existing Board
subject to any maximum number of Directors, if any, as may be
determined by the shareholders in general meeting. Any Director
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office
only until the first general meeting of the Company after his
appointment and be subject to re-election at such meeting. Any
Director appointed by the Board as an additional Director to the
existing Board shall hold office only until the next following annual
general meeting of the Company (the “AGM”) and shall then be
eligible for re-election.

In accordance with the articles of association of the Company
(the “Articles”), one third of the Directors for the time being will
retire from office by rotation. Under code provision A.4.1 of the
Code, all the Non-executive Directors should be appointed for
a specific term, subject to re-election. At present, each of Mr.
Tang Jianrong, Mr. Qu Weimin and Mr. Lai Wai Leuk has been
appointed for a specific term of three years from their respective
appointments on (i) 30 September 2010 for Mr. Tang Jianrong,
(i) 1 August 2016 for Mr. Qu Weimin and (i) 2 July 2020 for Mr.
Lai Wai Leuk. Mr. Tang Jianrong had retired from his office and
been re-elected as Independent Non-executive Directors at the
2018 AGM. Mr. Qu Weimin had retired from his office and been
re-elected as an Independent Non-executive Director at the 2019
AGM. Under code provision A.4.2 of the Code, every director,
including those appointed for a specific term, should be subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every three year. Mr. Qian
Yixiang will retire from his office by rotation at the forthcoming
AGM. In addition, Mr. Lai Wai Leuk and Mr. Yu Wai Ming, who
were appointed as Directors by the Board, are subject to re-
election at the forthcoming AGM pursuant to the Articles. All the
above directors shall be eligible to offer themselves for re-election
at the forthcoming AGM pursuant to the Articles.

A Director may be removed by an ordinary resolution of the
Company before the expiration of his term of office and the
Company may by ordinary resolution appoint another Director
in his place. Unless otherwise determined by the Company in
general meeting, the number of Directors shall not be less than
two.
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Directors’ continuous training and development

Directors should keep abreast of the responsibilities as a
Director and of the conduct, business activities and development
of the Group. All Directors are encouraged to participate in
continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills. The Group continuously updates
the Directors with circulars and guidance notes on the latest
developments regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements to ensure compliance and enhance their
awareness of good corporate governance practices. The Group
also provides all members of the Board with monthly updates on
the Group’s performance, position and prospects to enable the
Board as a whole and each Director to discharge his duties.

A summary of the trainings received by the Directors for the year
ended 31 December 2020 is as follows:

Name of Board members

EEgRENRS

Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Qian Yixiang® PR ST
Ms. Jia Lingxia® BEE LT
Mr. Zha Saibin BEEW A
Mr. Qian Zhongming® SRR S A0
Independent Non-executive Directors HIIHTEE
Mr. Yeung Chi Tat® T E S
Mr. Tang Jianrong et
Mr. Qu Weimin BERLE
Mr. Lai Wai Leuk® RIZEE LA

Notes:

()  Mr. Qian Yixiang is the husband of Ms. Jia Lingxia and the son of Mr.
Qian Zhongming.

(i) Mr. Yeung Chi Tat retired as an Independent Non-executive Director with
effect from 5 June 2020.

(i) Mr Lai Wai Leuk was appointed as an Independent Non-executive

Director with effect from 2 July 2020.
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COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD
Remuneration Committee

The Company established a remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) on 30 September 2010 and had
renewed the written terms of reference in compliance with the
Code which was adopted by the Board on 27 March 2012.

Following the retirement of Mr. Yeung Chi Tat on 5 June 2020,
the Company no longer complied with the requirements under
Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules, which requires that the majority
of the members of the remuneration committee should be
independent non-executive directors. Following the appointment
of Mr. Lai Wai Leuk on 2 July 2020 as an Independent Non-
executive Director, the Company met all requirements under Rule
3.25 of the Listing Rules.

As at 31 December 2020, the Remuneration Committee had
five members comprising three Independent Non-executive
Directors and two Executive Directors, namely Mr. Lai Wai Leuk,
Mr. Tang Jianrong, Mr. Qu Weimin, Mr. Qian Yixiang and Ms. Jia
Lingxia. Mr. Lai Wai Leuk is the Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of the
Directors and the senior management, as well as specific
remuneration packages, conditions and terms of employment
for the Directors and senior management, and evaluating
and making recommendations on the employee benefit
arrangements.

The remuneration of the Directors is determined by the Board,
upon the recommendation of the Remuneration Committee with
reference to the Directors’ qualifications, experience, duties,
responsibilities and performance and results of the Group.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee
are posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.
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During the year ended 31 December 2020, one meeting was BE_Z_ZTF+_A=+—HILEEXN - %
held by the Remuneration Committee to review and make BHES e ESERSREIEES NI
recommendations of the remuneration of the Directors and senior B » LA NS E SHEETEM WIRHEHER
management. No alternate Director was authorised to attend 177 — A &% - RESTESERELE S
such meeting and the attendance record of each Committee % ' SLZE@KEHBEEZMIERNESITT ¢
member is set out below:

Number of Number of
Name of Committee members attendance meeting
ZEERERE H IR BEIXE
Independent Non-executive Directors BUHNTEE
Mr. Yeung Chi Tat0 T RE S D 0 0
Mr. Lai Wai Leuk® RIZBE O 1 1
Mr. Tang Jianrong et 1 1
Mr. Qu Weimin BMERESE 1 1
Executive Directors HiTEF
Mr. Qian Yixiang SR E 1 1
Ms. Jia Lingxia BEETT 1 1
Notes: Kiat -
()  Mr. Yeung Chi Tat retired as an Independent Non-executive Director with () 15 EEEER - -TFE XA HREBIIEHTT
effect from 5 June 2020. FEo
(i)  Mr Lai Wai Leuk was appointed as an Independent Non-executive (i) ZREMEANR T -_TE+ A - AREEABIIE
Director with effect from 2 July 2020. HITEE -
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Audit Committee

The Company established an audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) on 30 September 2010 in compliance with Rules
3.21 and 3.23 of the Listing Rules and had renewed the written
terms of reference in compliance with the Code which was
adopted by the Board on 15 December 2015.

Following the retirement of Mr. Yeung Chi Tat on 5 June 2020,
the Company no longer complied with the requirements under
Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules, as the number of the audit
committee members fell below the minimum requirement of
three. Further, the Company no longer complied with Rule
3.10(2) of the Listing Rules which requires that at least one of
the independent non-executive directors must have appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise. Following the appointment of Mr. Lai Wai
Leuk on 2 July 2020 as an Independent Non-executive Director,
the Company met all requirements under Rules 3.10(2) and 3.21
of the Listing Rules.

As at 31 December 2020, the Audit Committee had three
members comprising three Independent Non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Lai Wai Leuk, Mr. Tang Jianrong and Mr. Qu Weimin.
Mr. Lai Wai Leuk is the Chairman of the Audit Committee.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review and
supervise the financial reporting process and internal control
system of the Group, to review the Company’s annual report and
interim reports and to provide advice and comments thereon to
the Board, as well as to make recommendations to the Board
on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of the external
auditors and assessing their independence and performance.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are posted on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Audit Committee
reviewed the interim and annual financial statements and reports
and discussed with the external auditors on any significant or
unusual items before submitting such reports to the Board,
reviewed the relationship with the external auditors by reference
to the work performed by the auditors, their fees and terms of
engagement, as well as reviewed the adequacy and effectiveness
of the Company’s financial reporting system, internal control
system and associated procedures. The Audit Committee also
discussed the risk management system of the Company with the
management. In addition, the members of the Audit Committee
held a meeting with the management and the independent
professional accounting firm appointed by the Company relating
to the internal control review matters during the year ended 31
December 2020. The Audit Committee also actively participated
in the internal control review matters to improve and strengthen
the internal control system of the Company, where necessary.
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During the year ended 31 December 2020, two meetings
were held by the Audit Committee. No alternate Director was
authorised to attend such meetings and the attendance record of
each Committee member is set out below:

Name of Committee members

REEREHSR

BULHNTTEF

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Yeung Chi Tat® GREE A

Mr. Lai Wai Leuk® BR{ERE S

Mr. Tang Jianrong et

Mr. Qu Weimin BEREA
Notes:

(i) Mr. Yeung Chi Tat retired as an Independent Non-executive Director with
effect from 5 June 2020.

(i)  Mr Lai Wai Leuk was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director with effect from 2 July 2020.

There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee regarding the selection, appointment, resignation
or dismissal of the external auditors. The Audit Committee has
reviewed the Company’s annual results for the year ended 31
December 2020.

Nomination Committee

The Company established a nomination committee (the
“Nomination Committee”) on 30 September 2010 and had
renewed the written terms of reference in compliance with the
Code which was adopted by the Board on 26 August 2013.

Following the retirement of Mr. Yeung Chi Tat on 5 June 2020,
the Company no longer complied with code provision A.5.1
of the Code set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules, which
requires that the majority of the members of the nomination
committee should be independent non-executive directors.
Following the appointment of Mr. Lai Wai Leuk on 2 July 2020
as an Independent Non-executive Director, the Company met all
requirements under code provision A.5.1 of the Code set out in
Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules.

As at 31 December 2020, the Nomination Committee had five
members comprising three Independent Non-executive Directors
and two Executive Directors, namely Mr. Lai Wai Leuk, Mr. Tang
Jianrong, Mr. Qu Weimin, Mr. Qian Yixiang and Ms. Jia Lingxia.
Mr. Lai Wai Leuk is the Chairman of the Nomination Committee.
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The Nomination Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment of Directors.
The Nomination Committee is also responsible for reviewing the
structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge
and experience) of the Board at least annually and assessing the
independence of the Independent Non-executive Directors.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are posted
on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Nomination Committee has adopted a Board Diversity Policy
(the “Board Diversity Policy”) which became effective on 26
August 2013. A summary of the Board Diversity Policy together
with the measurable objectives set for implementing the Board
Diversity Policy, and the progress towards achieving those
objectives are outlined below.

The Company continuously seeks to enhance the effectiveness
of its Board and to maintain the highest standards of corporate
governance. It recognises and embraces the benefits of having a
diverse Board, which can be achieved through the consideration
of a number of factors, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.

The Nomination Committee has primary responsibility for
identifying qualified candidates to become members of the Board
and Board appointments will continue to be made on a merit
basis, with candidates being considered against objective criteria
and with due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.
The Nomination Committee is also responsible for monitoring
the implementation and reviewing the effectiveness of the Board
Diversity Policy.
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Furthermore, a nomination policy (the “Nomination Policy”) has
been adopted and became effective on 31 December 2018.
According to the Nomination Policy, the Nomination Committee
shall consider the following factors, which are not exhaustive
and the Board has discretion if it considers appropriate, in
assessing the suitability of the proposed candidate regarding
the appointment of directors or re-appointment of any existing
Board member(s): (a) reputation for integrity; (b) accomplishment,
experience and reputation in the business and industry; (c)
whether the proposed candidate is able to assist the Board in
effective performance of the responsibilities; (d) commitment in
respect of sufficient time, interest and attention to the businesses
of the Company and its subsidiaries; (e) diversity in all aspects,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, or professional experience, as set out in the Board
Diversity Policy, as amended, supplemented or otherwise
modified from time to time; (f) compliance with the criteria of
independence, in case for the appointment of an Independent
non-executive Director, as prescribed under the Listing Rules,
as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to
time; and (g) any other relevant factors as may be determined
by the Nomination Committee or the Board from time to time as
appropriate.

In terms of the nomination procedures of the Company, the
proposed candidates will be asked to submit the biographical
information (or relevant details) in a prescribed form by the
Nomination Committee. The Nomination Committee shall,
upon receipt of the biographical information (or relevant details)
of the proposed candidate, evaluate such candidate based
on the criteria as set out above to determine whether such
candidate is suitable. The Nomination Committee shall make
recommendations to the Board for its consideration and
recommendation. If the process yields one or more desirable
candidates, the Nomination Committee shall rank them by
order of preference based on the criteria as set out above. For
the person that is nominated by a shareholder for election as
a director at the general meeting of the Company pursuant to
its constitutional documents, the Nomination Committee shall
evaluate such candidate based on the criteria as set out above
to determine whether such candidate is qualified for directorship
and where appropriate, the Nomination Committee and/or the
Board shall make recommendation to shareholders in respect
of the proposed election of director at the general meeting. The
Board shall have the final decision on all matters relating to its
recommendation of candidates to stand for election at a general
meeting.
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As at 31 December 2020, the Board comprised seven Directors,
which is characterised by diversity in terms of gender, age,
cultural and educational background, professional experience
and skills.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, one meeting was
held by the Nomination Committee and the work performed
includes reviewing and making recommendations to improve
the structure, size and composition of the Board. No alternate
Director was authorised to attend such meeting and the
attendance record of each Committee member is set out below:

Name of Committee members

ZEERERE

Independent Non-executive Directors BUHNTES

Mr. Yeung Chi Tat0 T RRE S D

Mr. Lai Wai Leuk® RIBEE LA

Mr. Tang Jianrong e

Mr. Qu Weimin BEERLE

Executive Directors HiTEF

Mr. Qian Yixiang BRMEE

Ms. Jia Lingxia BEETT
Notes:

(i) Mr. Yeung Chi Tat retired as an Independent Non-executive Director with
effect from 5 June 2020.

(i)  Mr Lai Wai Leuk was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director with effect from 2 July 2020.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Directors’ responsibility

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements of the Group that give a true
and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as
the Directors determine as necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group. The Board is
not aware of any material uncertainties relating to any events or
conditions which may cast significant doubt over the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the Board will
continue to prepare the consolidated financial statements on a
going concern basis.

Internal controls

The Board is responsible for the effectiveness of the internal
control and risk management systems of the Group. The internal
control systems are designed to provide reasonable (but not
absolute) assurance against material misstatement or loss, and
manage (rather than eliminate) the risks of failure to achieve
business strategies.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Board has
reviewed the effectiveness of the internal controls procedures
of the Group including the adequacy of resources, qualifications
and experience of staff of the Group’s accounting and financial
reporting function and their training programmes and budget.

Internal audit function

The Internal Audit Department monitors compliance with
policies and procedures and the effectiveness of internal control
structures across the Group and its principal divisions. The
Internal Audit Department reports directly to the Audit Committee
and ensure the internal controls are in place and functioning
properly as intended.

BOER POWER HOLDINGS LIMITED BEEHERBRAE
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Also, the Board engaged an external independent consultant to
assess the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems which covered certain material controls,
including the financial, operational and compliance controls
as well as risk management functions during the year ended
31 December 2020. The assessment report was reviewed by
the Audit Committee and the Board. No major issue but areas
for improvement to the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems have been identified. All recommendations from
the external independent consultant would be followed up by the
Group to ensure that they are implemented within a reasonable
period of time. The Group therefore considers that the internal
control and risk management processes are adequate to meet
the need of the Group in its current business environment.

Auditors’ remuneration

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the remunerations
paid and payable to the auditor of the Company, BDO Limited
was set out as below:

o EFEDREIMNEBY BRGNS E
REE-_T-_TF+-_A=1+—HIFEHH
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EXRTERER  BREYY 2ENARZE
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SEEMFHRE EPALBEREAEE
BREAEENRRERERANIEZERTTHR
ZMED - NEE K IRRIMNEIE LR M EE
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It AEERASAREE KRR EEREF RN
ENARERBRAEGRENTE

BB &
BE_ZT_TFT_A=+—HLEFERN B
MRENARRZBMBE L EERETE
BRBERRARMBMEEIIT

Remuneration paid

Nature of services and payable
R E B REMHE
RMB’000

ARBTT

Audit service ZH RS 1,440
Other non-audit service H I B ARTE 360
Total HEr 1,800

DIVIDEND POLICY

On 31 December 2018, a dividend policy was adopted by the
Company (the “Dividend Policy”). Pursuant to the Dividend
Policy, the Company may declare and distribute dividends to
the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) in an
amount representing not less than 25% of the distributable net
profit attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company
in any financial year, whether as interim and/or final dividends.
The dividend, if any, will be paid in Hong Kong dollars. In
deciding whether to propose a dividend and in determining the
dividend amount, the Board will take into account, inter alia,
the following factors: (a) the Company’s results of operations;
(b) the Company’s actual and expected financial performance;
(c) retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company
and each of the subsidiaries of the Group; and payment by the
subsidiaries of cash dividends to the Company; (d) the level of the
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Group’s debts to equity ratio, return on equity and the relevant
financial covenants; (e) any restrictions on payment of dividends
that may be imposed by the Group’s lenders; (f) the Group’s
expected working capital requirements, future expansion plans,
investment plans and future prospects; (g) general economic
conditions, business cycle of the Group’s business and other
internal or external factors that may have an impact on the
business or financial performance and position of the Company;
and (h) any other factors that the Board may deem appropriate.

The Dividend Policy and the declaration and/or payment of
future dividends under it are subject to the Board’s continuing
determination that the Dividend Policy and the declaration and/or
payment of dividends would be in the best interests of the Group
and Shareholders, and are in compliance with all applicable laws
and regulations and the Company’s Memorandum and Articles
of Association. The Board endeavours to maintain a balance
between meeting Shareholders’ expectations and prudent capital
management with a sustainable dividend policy. The Board will
continually review the Dividend Policy and reserves the right in
its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend, modify and/
or cancel the Dividend Policy at any time, and the Dividend
Policy shall in no way constitute a legally binding commitment by
the Company in respect of its future dividend and/or in no way
obligate the Company to declare a dividend at any time or from
time to time.

The Company in annual general meeting may declare dividend
but no dividend shall exceed the amount recommended by the
Board. The Board may from time to time pay to the Shareholders
such interim dividends as appear to the Board to be justified by
the profits of the Group, and may also from time to time declare
and pay special dividends of such amounts and on such dates
and out of such distributable funds of the Company and as it
thinks fit.

The Dividend Policy is posted on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH INVESTORS AND
SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognises the importance of maintaining clear, timely
and effective communication with the Shareholders and investors.
The Board also recognises that effective communication with
investors is the key to establish investor confidence and to
attract new investors. Therefore, the Company communicates
with its shareholders and investors through various channels,
including the publication of interim and annual reports, press
announcements and information on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.

The Company continues to maintain regular dialogue with
institutional investors and analysts to keep them informed of
the Group’s strategy, operations, management and plans. The
Company has regular meetings with the financial analysts, fund
managers and potential investors, and has participated in a
number of investors’ conferences and roadshows organised
by various investment banks since the listing of the Company
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on 20 October 2010
in order to enhance the Group’s relationship with the equity
research analysts, fund managers, institutional investors and
shareholders, as well as their understanding of the Group’s
strategies, operations and developments. All discussions were
limited to explanations of the previously published material and
general discussion of information which is not inside information.
The Group continues to strengthen its investors’ relationship by
participating in roadshows and conferences.

The AGM provides opportunities for the Shareholders to meet
and raise questions to our Directors, the management and
the external auditors. The members of the Board and external
auditors will attend the AGM. The Group encourages all
Shareholders to attend. Shareholders can raise any comments
on the performance and future directions of the Company and
exchange views with the Directors, the management and the
external auditors at the AGM.
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The 2019 AGM was held on 5 June 2020 and the attendance

TE-NFREBEFAER _ZE-_FTFXAR

record of each Director is set out below: A7 SESHREEZNBERBINAT
Name of Board members AGM
EEENERE BRRBEFAE
Executive Directors HITEE -
Mr. Qian Yixiang (Chairman) BEMEE(FE) 1
Ms. Jia Lingxia BEER T 1
Mr. Zha Saibin EBEWEE 1
Mr. Qian Zhongming SRR A 1
Independent Non-executive Directors BUHNTEE
Mr. Yeung Chi Tat0 T RE D 1
Mr. Tang Jianrong EREREE 1
Mr. Qu Weimin BEERLE 1
Mr. Lai Wai Leuk® RIBEE LA 0

Notes: Hiat -

() Mr. Yeung Chi Tat retired as an Independent Non-executive Director with ()  HEREXAR T -TF AR A ERTB L IENTT

effect from 5 June 2020. EFo

(i)  Mr Lai Wai Leuk was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director with effect from 2 July 2020.

Mr. Qian Yixiang, attended the 2019 AGM which was held on
5 June 2020 by telephone conference to answer the questions
from shareholders. The Chairman of the Audit Committee,
Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee of the
Company, Mr. Yeung Chi Tat, also attended the 2019 AGM by
telephone conference to answer questions.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, there have been no
changes to the Company’s constitutional documents.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RISK MANAGEMENT
AND INTERNAL CONTROL CODE

Internal Audit Department

On 1 January 2016, the Company set up the Audit Department
to facilitate the reform of the Company’s procedures. From
August 2016, the audit department has converted into an Internal
Audit Department following the expansion of the function of the
internal control team. The Internal Audit Department is separate
and independent of the operation and management system of
the Group. The upmost responsible officer for internal control and
audit of the Group is the professional staff with internal control
and audit experiences.
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The principal duties of the Internal Audit Department are,
according to its own work plan, giving feedback directly to
each relevant (involved) department or its head officer regarding
system improvement, identification of procedural issues, and
requesting for counter feedback. For example, identifying issues
on streamlining and optimising the procedures and systems are
reported to the responsible person of the respective department;
reporting the results of inspection on the execution of quality
system to the operations manager of the respective plant; and
reporting the audit result on significant malpractices to the Audit
Committee. On the other hand, the department also provides
assistance of internal control in respect of audit or streamlining
of working procedure, and directly reports to the relevant
departments or subsidiaries upon their request.

The duties of the Internal Audit Department are as follows:

e To implement and lead the streamlining of systems and
procedures of the Group headquarters and its subsidiaries
according to its work plan;

e To provide assistance to each department in implementing
optimisation of systems and procedures according to its
work plan;

e To conduct audit on the business of the Group and each of
its subsidiaries according to its work plan;

e To assess the formulation and execution of the Company’s
system according to its work plan;

e To inspect, on its own or with other departments, the
abuse of power, incompliance, violation of financial system,
embezzlement, leakage of confidential information, bride as
well as economic crime within the Company;

e To be responsible for the audit or participate in the audit on
the Company’s significant business activities, projects and
material business contracts.
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Procedures on identifying, assessing and managing
material risks

1. Engaging an external independent consultant to conduct
high-level risk analysis once a year;

2. The Internal Audit Department participates in the Company’s
annual high-level strategic meeting and various monthly
business meeting as well as irregular interview with
the management to identify the risks in operation and
management and consider to include the same in the internal
audit plan;

3. If found any material risks, the Internal Audit Department
immediately reports to the Board and follows up the status
of the improvement of the matter.

Procedures on reviewing the effectiveness of risk
management and internal control system and
resolving material internal control defects

The Internal Audit Department identifies risks by reviewing the
existing system and procedure to determine whether there is any
defect in critical procedures according to the system design and
whether it is reasonably designed.

Further, the department identifies the effectiveness of internal
control through regular and non-regular audit.

Information disclosure system

The Group has an information disclosure system to ensure
the access to and confidentiality of inside information until
consistent and timely disclosure of such information is made. The
system regulates how these inside information are handled and
disseminated, including the followings:

e The designated department reports the information on
potential inside information to the Board, which shall
determine if it is an inside information and timely issue the
same pursuant to the Securities and Futures Ordinance and
the Listing Rules;

e Information is widely and non-exclusively disclosed to
the public via different ways such as financial report,
announcement and the Company’s website so that its fair
disclosure policy is implemented and disclosed.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening of extraordinary general meeting on
requisition by shareholders

Pursuant to Article 64 of the Articles, an extraordinary general
meeting (“EGM”) shall be convened on the written requisition
of one or more members of the Company, at the date of the
deposit of the requisition, holding in aggregate of not less than
one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company which carries
the right of voting at the general meetings of the Company.
The requisition must specify the objects of the meeting and
must be signed by the relevant requisitionist(s) and deposited
by the Company Secretary at the Company’s principal place of
business. If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of
deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a meeting, the
requisitionist(s) may themselves convene a meeting provided that
any meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration of
2 months from the said date.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at general
meetings by shareholders

Shareholders must submit a written notice of proposals they
wish to put forward at an AGM or EGM with the detailed
contact information to the Company Secretary by email to
ron.chan@boerpower.com, or by fax to (852) 2544 9292, or by
mail to the Company’s principal place of business at Unit D, 6th
Floor, Neich Tower, 128 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong,
within a reasonable time prior to the general meeting so that the
Company will be allowed to meet the notice period to be given
to all the Shareholders as set out below. Detailed procedures
and the notice period to be given to all the Shareholders for
consideration of the proposal raised by the shareholders
concerned at an AGM or EGM varies according to the nature of
the proposal. The procedures for the shareholders to convene
and put forward proposals are set out in the notice of the AGM
or EGM and are also available on request to the Company
Secretary. The notice period is set out below:

(i) At least 14 days’ notice (the notice period must include
10 business days) in writing if the proposal constitutes an
ordinary resolution of the Company in an EGM.

(i) At least 21 days’ notice (the notice period must include 20
business days) in writing if the proposal constitutes a special
resolution of the Company in an EGM or any resolution of
the Company in an AGM.

Procedures for directing shareholders’ enquiries to
the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and
concerns with contact information of the requisitionists to the
Board in writing through the Company Secretary by email to
ron.chan@boerpower.com, or by fax to (852) 2544 9292, or by
mail to the Company’s principal place of business at Unit D, 6th
Floor, Neich Tower, 128 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFEHRS

The Directors present their report and the audited financial
statements of the Company and of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities and other particulars of the subsidiaries are
set out in note 16 to the financial statements. The nature of the
principal activities of the Group has not changed during the year
ended 31 December 2020.

Further discussion and analysis of these activities as required by
Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the
Laws of Hong Kong), including a discussion of the principal risks
and uncertainties facing the Group and an indication of likely
future developments in the Group’s business, can be found in
the sections headed Chairman’s Statement and Management
Discussion and Analysis on pages 5 to 26 of this annual report.
Such discussion forms part of this report of the Directors.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 4
of this report. This summary does not form part of the audited
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The financial results of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2020 are set out in the Consolidated Statement of
Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income on page 75 of
the annual report.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2020.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER MEMBERS

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed from
Tuesday, 25 May 2021 to Monday, 31 May 2021 (both days
inclusive), during such period no transfer of shares will be
registered. In order to qualify for attending and voting at the 2020
AGM of the Company, all transfer documents accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th
Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong not later than 4:30 pm on Monday, 24 May 2021.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group made
charitable donations by cash amounting to RMB825,000 (2019:
RMB66,000).
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NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Details of acquisitions and other movements of non-current assets
(including property, plant and equipment, investment properties
and intangible assets) of the Group during the year ended 31
December 2020 are set out in notes 13 to 15 to the financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

The movements in the share capital of the Company during the
year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in note 28(c) to the
financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABILITY OF RESERVE

At 31 December 2020, the aggregate amount of reserves
available for distribution to equity shareholders of the Company
was RMB150.2 million (31 December 2019: RMB151.3 million).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles of Association or under the laws of the
Cayman Islands which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro rata basis to the existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year ended 31 December 2020.

RESERVES

The movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in the
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and note 28(a) to
the financial statements respectively.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to
the Shareholders by reason of their holding of the shares of the
Company.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the five largest
customers of the Group accounted for 35.5% (2019: 22.6%)
of the total revenue of the Group and the largest customer
accounted for 16.2% (2019: 6.7%) of the total revenue of the
Group.

The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s largest
supplier and five largest suppliers accounted for 13.2% (2019:
14.1%) and 23.0% (2019: 25.2%) of the Group’s total purchases
for the year ended 31 December 2020, respectively.
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None of the Directors, their associates, or any shareholder of the
Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors own more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) has any interest
in any of the Group’s five largest suppliers and customers.

DIRECTORS

During the year ended 31 December 2020 and up to the date of
this report, the Directors were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Qian Yixiang (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Jia Lingxia (Chief Operating Officer)

Mr. Zha Saibin (Mr. Yu Wai Ming as his alternate Director)
Mr. Qian Zhongming

Mr. Yu Wai Ming®

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Yeung Chi Tat®

Mr. Tang Jianrong

Mr. Qu Weimin

Mr. Lai Wai Leuk

Notes:

() Mr. Yu Wai Ming was appointed as an Executive Director with effect from
8 January 2021. Mr. Yu was also appointed by Mr. Zha Saibin as his
alternate Director with effect from 8 January 2021.

(i) Mr. Yeung Chi Tat retired as an Independent Non-executive Director with
effect from 5 June 2020.

(i) Mr. Lai Wai Leuk was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director with effect from 2 July 2020.

In accordance with article 108 of the Articles, one-third of the
Directors for the time being shall retire from office by rotation
at each AGM provided that every Director shall be subject to
retirement at least once every three years. Mr. Qian Yixiang
will retire from his office by rotation at the forthcoming AGM.
In addition, Mr. Lai Wai Leuk and Mr. Yu Wai Ming, who were
appointed as Directors by the Board, are subject to re-election
at the forthcoming AGM pursuant to the Articles. All the above
directors shall be eligible to offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming AGM pursuant to the Articles.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of three years, which may
be terminated by not less than three months’ notice in writing
served by either party on the other.

The Independent Non-executive Directors have been appointed
for a term of three years in accordance with their respective
appointment letters.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors has entered
into any service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment
of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESSES

During the year ended 31 December 2020, none of the Directors
is considered to have an interest in any business which competes
or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
business of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the section headed Connected Transaction
below, none of the Directors or entities connected with a
Director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to the
Group’s business to which the Company, its holding company,
or any of its subsidiaries or related companies was a party during
the year ended 31 December 2020.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKINGS

Each of the Company’s controlling Shareholders, has confirmed
to the Company of his/its compliance with the non-competition
undertakings given to the Company under the Deed of Non-
competition as defined in the prospectus dated 7 October
2010. The Directors (including the Independent Non-Executive
Directors) have reviewed the status of compliance and also
confirmed that all the undertakings under the Non-competition
Deed have been complied with by the controlling Shareholders.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
was entered into or existed during the year ended 31 December
2020.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
REMUNERATION AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES

The particulars of the Directors’ and senior management’s
remuneration and the five highest paid employees during the
financial year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in notes 10
and 11 respectively to the financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) for the purpose of rewarding participants who
have contributed to the Group and encouraging participants to
work towards enhancing the value of the Company and its shares
for the benefit of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.
The eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme include the
Directors (including Executive Directors, Non-executive Directors
and Independent Non-executive Directors) and employees of the
Group and any advisors, consultants, distributors, contractors,
suppliers, agents, customers, business partners, joint venture
business partners, promoters or service providers of any member
of the Group who the Board considers, in its sole discretion, have
contributed or will contribute to the Group.

The Share Option Scheme is valid and effective for a period of
ten years commencing from 30 September 2010, after which
no further share options will be granted but the provisions of the
Share Option Scheme shall remain in full force and effect in all
other respects.

The Company did not have any outstanding option at the
beginning and at the end of the year. During the period between
the beginning of the year till 30 September 2020, the expiry date
of the Share Option Scheme, no options have been granted
under the Share Option Scheme. During the year ended 31
December 2020, no options have been exercised, cancelled or
lapsed under the Share Option Scheme.

The Share Option Scheme has automatically terminated on the
expiry of its validity period on 30 September 2020.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (continued)
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SHARE AWARD SCHEME

The share award scheme (the “Share Award Scheme”) was
approved by the Board on 17 June 2011 (the “Adoption Date”).
The purposes of the Share Award Scheme are to recognise
the contribution made by certain employees of the Group and
to provide eligible employees, being any senior management
employee, including without limitation the director, executive,
officer and manager-grade employee, whether full time or part
time, of any member of the Group from time to time, save for
those excluded employees as determined by the Board or
the trustee (as the case may be), with incentives in order to
retain them for the continual operation and development of the
Group and attract suitable personnel for the growth and further
development of the Group. The Share Award Scheme involves
existing shares and the Board hopes to encourage employees
of the Group to have, through shares awarded under the Share
Award Scheme, a direct financial interest in the long-term
success of the Group. The Share Award Scheme operates for 10
years starting from the Adoption Date.

On 30 October 2013, having re-considered the terms of the
Share Award Scheme and to recognise the contribution made
by employees of the Group at different levels, the Share Award
Scheme was amended to the effect that “Employee” means any
employee, whether full time or part time and whether becoming
the employee of the Company before or after the Adoption Date,
of any member of the Group from time to time.

The total number of all the shares purchased by the trustee under
the Share Award Scheme must not exceed 10% of the issued
shares as at the Adoption Date (being 77,812,500 shares) unless
the Board otherwise decides. The maximum number of shares
which can be awarded to a selected employee under the Share
Award Scheme is limited to 1% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the Adoption Date.

During the year and up to the date of this report, the Company
had not purchased any of the Company’s existing shares on the
market for the purpose of the Share Award Scheme.

During the year and up to the date of this report, no shares were
granted under the Share Award Scheme.

As at the date of this report, the trustee held 24,343,000 shares
under the Share Award Scheme, representing about 3.15% of
the issued share capital of the Company. The remaining life of the
Share Award Scheme was about 3 months.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year ended 31
December 2020 was the Company, any of its holding companies,
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to
enable the Directors or the chief executives of the Company or
any of their respective spouses or children under 18 years of age
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

WA SR BT &
E=enln_—T——FXNATER(RABEH])
#E Rt 2R AT 8 ([ Ao E2EDAT & )) » BXin 22
B AN EAAEEETREMELE
Bl WERRBAERER (BENSREERE
BE  BRENERANEEREMKE RFNE
ZEF  THAR - EBABREERES (T
mERERE) - HEEESAZFEAGRBRM
EBEZZERIMEERIN) - UEBRER
AEBZIBBERENBERIANNBEIEGEAT R
REE 2 R M — SR o By BEaH
P REARD  MEFSEESZEBERND
REN SR N 2B RE - BAKERER
AEEZ RERINEE R HEEZM B -
Bty BB ETEIEER A RM B BERR+
o

RZZE—=F+A=1H  BHNEERNER
AHEIZGERE  RRBAKETRARNEER
EHME R - B BB EIE TER] - &8
B IEAKEXRE AR TR ZERE - TwE
BEGRE . MmN ERA BB Z AT 2 1R AR
AAEEE °

BREBERSBITRATEEI  ZREABRERDEE
SHEIB E T AR AR B RS H E
AT H910% (BN 77,812,5000% A% 15 ) < 1R
BRGEEETE RS ERES BENRMHEE
EBR - TAERBBREMBEAAR B EITRD
#91%

FARBEARREBH  ANRFLELIA 8
iRt &8N ™ 5 EBE AR RERBR AR -

FARBEARHE B MW ER G ER S
TE A

RASRE B ZREAREBRN ZEEFHE
7 524,343,000/ © AR R B EEITRAL
3.15% ° B0 B IR F RO RIMEA -

ESREROEFVER

B E XX EEESN - ARF] - HAERZERAF
MBARKRARMBARGERNEEZE T -F
FHtA=+T—BLEFERELEMRZHE 2
SARRBFLATIBTBRABRWES W
B+ \BR A N 7 20 Al AR BB A R R AL
HAE AR ROB (D sl (B 55 M A a3 o

BEEHZERABER LT BOER POWER HOLDINGS LIMITED

Annual Report 2020 —Z - ZH 44
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices. Information on the corporate
governance practices adopted by the Company is set out in the
Corporate Governance Report on pages 35 to 55 of this annual
report.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

The Directors and chief executives of the Company who held
office as at 31 December 2020 had the following interests in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or
any associated corporations (within the meaning of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (“SFQ”)) at that date as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code:

TEER

KA NMEHRRKEZEEER - BEAR
RIZEEREITEAEFHNAFRFEIBE
558 2 IEERMEN °

EERITHAZR AR RABEZBRR
7 HERORESNERERAR

RIBEARNFERES MAEGRO(TBHFLHE
16151 1) S 35216R E BT E MBS MATR 8k -
YARBIELETFRIMANERA R KRB - R
CECEFT A=+ -REBRNARFESE
NEZITRABHREARTE REFEBEE(E
HREFLIEEN) R - BERD RMEF
BT -

Total number  Approximate

of ordinary % of total

Directors Capacity shares held issued shares
ERITRG
= 1 BEREBERAY HENHNEIL
Long position in shares
KRR EIFE
Mr. Qian Yixiang Interest of controlled corporation 521,115,0000 67.35
BRMEE REZESEE RS
Ms. Jia Lingxia Interest of controlled corporation 521,115,0000 67.35
BEER LT REEEE R
Mr. Zha Saibin Beneficial owner 780,000 0.10
EEWRE E=AA
Note: Kiat -

()  The 520,815,000 shares were owned by King Able Limited (“King Able”)
and 300,000 shares were owned by Bright Rise Trading Limited, both
companies owned as to 50% by Mr. Qian Yixiang and 50% by Ms. Jia
Lingxia. Mr. Qian Yixiang and Ms. Jia Lingxia are thus deemed to be
interested in those shares by virtue of Part XV of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company held any interest
or short position in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of
the Company or any associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be
kept under Section 352 of the SFO or otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (continued)
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2020, the following interests of 5% or more
of the issued share capital of the Company (other than those
held by the Directors and chief executives of the Company) were
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

Substantial shareholder Capacity

EERR rEEN

Long position in shares

IR EIEFE
King Able Beneficial owner
HERRAA BHEAA

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, the
Company had not been notified by any persons (other than
the Directors and chief executives of the Company) who had
interests or short position in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company which were recorded in the register required to be
kept under Section 336 of the SFO.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Boer Smart Technology (Wuxi) Co., Limited (“Boer Smart Wuxi”)
is wholly-owned by Boer Smart (Hong Kong) Limited, a company
owned as to 87% by Clover Bay Limited, which is owned as to
50% by Mr. Qian Yixiang and 50% by Ms. Jia Lingxia, and owned
as to 13% by Boer Investment (Singapore) Pte. Ltd., which is
owned as to 80% by Ms. Jia Lingxia. Mr. Qian Yixiang is an
executive Director, the chairman of the Board, the chief executive
officer of the Company, one of the Controlling Shareholders
of the Company and the husband of Ms. Jia Lingxia. Ms. Jia
Lingxia is an executive Director, the chief operating officer of the
Company, one of the Controlling Shareholders of the Company
and the wife of Mr. Qian Yixiang. Accordingly, Boer Smart Wuxi is
an associate and a connected person of the Company as defined
in the Listing Rules.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group entered
into the following continuing connected transactions with Boer
Smart Wuxi which are subject to the reporting and annual review
requirements set out in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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Details of the continuing connected transactions are set out
below:

The purchase framework agreement with Boer Smart
Wuxi

On 6 August 2020, Temper Energy International, S.L. (“Temper
Energy”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into the purchase framework agreement (the “Purchase
Framework Agreement”) with Boer Smart Wuxi pursuant to
which Temper Energy may purchase the intelligent household
equipment from Boer Smart Wuxi from 6 August 2020 to 31
December 2022. The order amount, the terms of delivery and
price of the intelligent household equipment in each order shall
be separately negotiated, entered into, and be performed under
separate purchase order to be entered into between Boer
Smart Wuxi and Temper Energy with such requirements and
specifications to be mutually agreed in writing in accordance with
the terms of the Purchase Framework Agreement.

Pursuant to the Purchase Framework Agreement, the price of
the intelligent household equipment will be priced on normal
commercial terms in the ordinary course of business of Temper
Energy with reference to the prevailing market price of the same
or similar products offered by independent third parties.

The annual caps under the Purchase Framework Agreement
are EUR530,000, EUR1,250,000 and EUR1,250,000 for each
of the years ended/ending 31 December 2020, 2021 and
2022 respectively. During the year ended 31 December 2020,
Temper Energy purchased intelligent household equipment
from Boer Smart Wuxi amounted to EUR73,000 (equivalent to
RMB577,000).

The processing subcontracting framework
agreement with Boer Smart Wuxi

On 6 August 2020, Boer (Wuxi) Power System Co., Ltd. (“Boer
Wuxi”), Boer (Yixing) Power System Co., Ltd. (“Boer Yixing”)
and Boer Wuxi Tezhong Electrical Capacitor Co., Ltd. (“Boer
Tezhong”), which are wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company,
entered into the processing subcontracting framework agreement
(the “Processing Subcontracting Framework Agreement”) with
Boer Smart Wuxi pursuant to which Boer Wuxi, Boer Yixing
and Boer Tezhong may provide assembly and processing
services for manufacture of intelligent household equipment
(the “Assembly and Processing Services”) to Boer Smart Wuxi
from 6 August 2020 to 31 December 2022. The service fees of
the Assembly and Processing Services in each order shall be
separately negotiated, entered into, and be performed under
separate subcontracting order to be entered into among Boer
Smart Wuxi, Boer Wuxi, Boer Yixing and Boer Tezhong with such
requirements and specifications to be mutually agreed in writing
in accordance with the terms of the Processing Subcontracting
Framework Agreement.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (continued)
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Pursuant to the Processing Subcontracting Framework
Agreement, the Assembly and Processing Services to be
provided to Boer Smart Wuxi shall be conducted fairly in line
with the market practice, and such terms offered to Boer Smart
Wauxi shall not be less favourable than those offered to any
Independent Third Parties by Boer Wuxi, Boer Yixing, and Boer
Tezhong.

The annual caps under the Processing Subcontracting
Framework Agreement are RMB4.2 million, RMB10.0 million
and RMB10.0 million for each of the years ended/ending 31
December 2020, 2021 and 2022 respectively. During the year
ended 31 December 2020, service fees for the provision of the
Assembly and Processing Services to Boer Smart Wuxi by Boer
Wuxi, Boer Yixing and Boer Tezhong amounted to RMB3.5
million.

Details of the Purchase Framework Agreement and Processing
Subcontracting Framework Agreement are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 6 August 2020.

Confirmations from Independent Non-executive
Directors and auditor of the Company

Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the Independent
Non-executive Directors have reviewed the above continuing
connected transactions and confirmed that the transactions have
been entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of the business of the
Group;

(i) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(i) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transaction in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditor has issued their unqualified letter
containing the auditor’s findings and conclusions in respect of
the continuing connected transaction disclosed by the Group in
accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the
auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock
Exchange.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (continued)
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the
date of this report, the Company has maintained the prescribed
public float under the Listing Rules.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

At no time during the year and up to the date of this report, there
was or is, any permitted indemnity provision being in force for the
benefit of any of the Directors of the Company or an associate
company.

During the year, Directors and Senior Officers Liability Insurance
is in place to provide appropriate cover for the directors and
senior management of the Group. However, such insurance
coverage shall not extend to any matter in respect of any fraud
or dishonesty which may attach to such director and senior
management.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the
Independent Non-executive Directors to be independent.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has reviewed the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group and discussed internal control
and financial reporting matters including a review of the annual
results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020.

AUDITOR

KPMG resigned and BDO Limited was appointed as the auditor
of the Company on 5 December 2018. Save as disclosed above,
there is no change of auditor in the past three years.

BDO Limited will retire and being eligible, will offer themselves
for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of BDO
Limited as the auditor of the Company will be proposed at the
forthcoming AGM.

By order of the Board

Qian Yixiang
Chairman

Hong Kong
23 March 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
15 3L B BB 3R 5

IBDO

TEE ¢ +852 2218 8288
{EE : +852 2815 2239

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

25t Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong

HEARATHEEP1115E
JkZH>2518

www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF BOER POWER HOLDINGS
LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Boer
Power Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 75 to 164, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2020, the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement
for the year then ended and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2020 and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”) together with any ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated
financial statements in the Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

RECOGNITION OF DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

FRESSE
ARELTSFEEREBAMANERHE - RAY
ARG AMBHREANEARRERNFH - &
LEBREERMBAEBF AV BREILE A
ERBETREN - RAIT S ELFREEMR
BRNER -

Refer to note 27(b) to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 104.

The Key Audit Matter

Deferred tax assets are recognised mainly relating to unused
tax benefits of impairment losses on trade receivables and the
carry-forward of tax losses and tax credits.

The Group considered that it is probable that future taxable
profits according to the business plans and budgets for the
relevant subsidiaries will be available against which these tax
benefits can be utilised.

We identified the recognition of deferred tax assets as a
key audit matter because the realisability of deferred tax
assets, which depend on whether sufficient taxable profits or
taxable temporary differences will be available in the future,
are associated with significant degree of estimates and
judgements.

BOER POWER HOLDINGS LIMITED BEEHERBRAE
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

Our procedures in relation to management’s
assessment about the recognition of deferred
tax assets included:

- understanding and evaluating the
management’s procedures and relevant
controls regarding the completeness of tax
exposures and estimating the provision for
income tax and deferred tax assets to be
recognised.

— reviewing the latest correspondence with
the tax authorities to assess management’s
estimates.

— assessing the probability that the
subsidiaries of the Group may use their
deferred tax assets in the future , particularly
with regard to the ability of each subsidiary
to generate sufficient future taxable profits
in a foreseeable future allowing the use of
existing tax benefits carried forward.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)
B BERE @)

RECOVERABILITY OF TRADE RECEIVABLES

Refer to note 19 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on pages 94 to 96.

The Key Audit Matter

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying value of trade
receivables was RMB540,183,000 (gross trade receivables:
RMB2,324,317,000; allowance for impairment losses:
RMB1,784,134,000), which represent approximately 58% of
total current assets in the consolidated statement of financial
position (2019: 36%).

The Group measures the loss allowance for its trade
receivables at an amount equal to the lifetime expected
credit losses (“ECLs”) using the provision matrix approach.
The provision matrix is determined based on information
about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future
conditions, as well as the time value of money.

We identified the recoverability of trade receivables as a key
audit matter due to the significance of the balance to the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, combined
with the significant degree of judgements made by the
management in assessing the impairment of trade receivables
and determining the allowance for impairment losses.

BOER POWER HOLDINGS LIMITED BEEHERBRAE
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

Our audit procedures to assess the recoverability
of trade receivables included the following:

— obtaining an understanding of and
assessing the design, implementation and
operating effectiveness of the Group’s key
internal controls relating to credit control,
debt collection and making allowance for
impairment losses;

— obtaining an understanding of the basis
of management’s judgements about the
recoverability of individual balances and
evaluating the impairment allowances with
reference to debtors’ financial condition, the
industry in which the debtors are operating,
the ageing of overdue balances, historical
and post year-end payment records,
legal documents relating to disputes with
customers, rescheduling of payment agreed
with customers and other relevant information
obtained from other audit procedures;

— assessing the assumptions and estimates

made by the management in development
of the ECLs including considering the
customers’ expected payment pattern along
with macroeconomic information; and

— oObtaining a summary of subsequent

settlements relating to trade receivable
balances at 31 December 2020 and
inspecting underlying documents relating to
the payments received, on a sample basis.
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OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s
annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)
B BERE @)

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the
directors in discharging their responsibilities in this regard.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is
made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with the terms of
our engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

BOER POWER HOLDINGS LIMITED BEEHERBRAE
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)
B BERE @)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations or the override of internal
control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)
B BERE @)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence and, where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Amy Yau Shuk Yuen
Practising Certificate No. PO6095
Hong Kong, 23 March 2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FealRarEth2EkaR

for the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi)
HE_Z-ZFE+-_A=1+—BIEFEAAREE)

2020 2019

el T F
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
i3 AR®T T ARETT

Revenue WA 6 816,665 737,128
Cost of sales HEMAR 6 (579,670) (523,790)
Gross profit EF 6 236,995 213,338
Other net income HA A T8 7 8,356 9,273
Selling and distribution expenses HE RS A (79,515) (73,576)
Administrative and other operating expenses B R EAEERS (142,418) (99,613)
Reversal of impairment losses for trade and JEWE 5 R E R TR

other receivables R EEERE 19(o) 55,392 -
Profit from operations EERF 78,810 49,422
Finance costs B AR 8() (35,964) (42,538)
Profit before taxation BREC A& A 8 42,846 6,884
Income tax expense Fr{S TR 9(a) (33,512) (1,142)
Profit for the year FANm A 9,334 5,742
Other comprehensive income for the year FREMEENE
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently to /& A 8L E LT A B

profit or loss: ER
Exchange differences on translation of financial ~ #& A B A e 5 51

statements of operations outside Mainland ¥RV BRERAN

China FE 34 2 5 9,008 (9,580)
Other comprehensive income for the year FREMmERNE 9,998 (9,580)
Total comprehensive income for the year FATHWNHEE 19,332 (3,838)
Profit/(loss) attributable to: FEiER (E18) -

Equity shareholders of the Company KRB ERRR 15,824 3,480

Non-controlling interests IR (6,490) 2,262
Profit for the year F A A 9,334 5,742
Total comprehensive income attributable to: EME 2 25 -

Equity shareholders of the Company KRR 28,306 (6,100)

Non-controlling interests FE R (8,974) 2,262
Total comprehensive income for the year FRE2EKEAEE 19,332 (3,838)
Earnings per share FREF

Basic and diluted (RMB cents) EAREEARED) 12 2.1 0.5

The notes on pages 80 to 164 form part of these financial FE80FE164 B MM EBR Z ST B HERN — &6
statements. KA
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
EEMBERRE
RoB-RI-At R LARRIE)

2020 2019
el = F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
(i3 AR% T AREFT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M BB MR 13 233,430 256,438
Investment properties KEWE 14 94,424 101,083
Intangible assets M| EE 15 1,213 1,997
Interest in an associate P—E G E N B R RE S = 551
Financial assets at fair value through A EFAERZA
profit or loss TEEE 29(e) 28,511 10,556
Contract costs A KRR 20 1,104 35,099
Pledged deposits BERIER 21(a) 30,000 -
Deferred tax assets RIETIEEE 27(b) 152,801 198,008
541,483 603,732
Current assets REBEE
Inventories ey 18 138,930 128,931
Trade and other receivables TEUNE 5 N EMBEN 19 603,499 593,073
Contract costs AR 20 - 356,392
Pledged deposits BEAER 21(a) 154,331 152,404
Cash and cash equivalents HekReEFEEY 21(a) 39,866 68,879
936,626 1,299,679
Current liabilities REBAE
Borrowings BE 22 390,631 743,839
Trade and other payables TENE 5 NREMEER 23 378,972 511,347
Lease liabilities HEAE 24 10,801 1,459
Amounts due to related parties FERTREE H A 31(a) = 17,023
Current tax liabilities ENEAT IR B tE 27(a) 408 10,943
e eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeiieeeeeeeeeeneeeeee . IR 1284611
Net current assets REBEEZFE 155,814 15,068
Total assets less ourrent liabilities . SXERRDAN . FEEEEE 61550
Non-current liabilities ERBERE
Borrowings El= 22 193,013 -
Lease liabilities HEaFE 24 36,225 46,755
Amounts due to related parties FET A& 5 508 31(a) 266,802 388,311
Deferred tax liabilities EEFHIBEE 27(b) 3,116 4,925
et b OO0 | 439,991
NET ASSETS EERE 198,141 178,809

BOER POWER HOLDINGS LIMITED BEEHERBRAE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)
FEMBERRE @

at 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi)
RZZ—TF+-A=+—A(UAREE)

2020 2019
el = F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
(i3 ARETT ARETTT
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEAR#E

Share capital &N 28(c) 66,010 66,010
Reserves EE 28(d) 195,234 166,928

Total equity attributable to equity AA T ERBREN
shareholders of the Company R 261,244 232,938
Non-controlling interests IR (63,103) (54,129)
TOTAL EQUITY DB 198,141 178,809

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on  HESZEER T -_—F=-H -+ =BHELE

23 March 2021.

Qian Yixiang
S50
Director

EF

RETIE -

Yu Wai Ming
RIEH
Director

EF

The notes on pages 80 to 164 form part of these financial ~ 5880% 164 B KT &1 18 5K 7% & W1 7% 2k 79 — &P
»

statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
SeERER=R

Balance at 1 January 2019 RIT-NE-F-ANER 66,010 (100,121) 20,710 1,505 255532 21436 312 (40,900) 14,008 288,552 49,466) 189,086
Proft for the year EREF - - - - 486 - - - 3480 3,966 2262 6228
Disposal of subsidiares HENBAR - - - - - - - - - - 6.925) 6.925)
Other comprehensive income EeEhE - - - - - - - 9,580 - 9,580) - (9,580)
Total comprehensive income fortheyear  FRAEAELE - - - - 486 - - (9580 3480 (5614) (be6y (10277
Balence at 81 December 2019 and RE-NETZAZT-AR

1 Jenuay 2000 “ToTE-f-RiER 6010 (o0d2) M0 1505 X608 4% a2 GG 17488 208 (41%) 178809
Proft o theyear R - - - - - - - - R 1SR (a0) 93
Other comprehensive income Efh2EkE - - - - - - - 12,482 - 12,482 (2484) 9998
Total comprehensive income for the year FREENGEE - - - - - - - 12482 15,824 28,306 (8,974 10,332
Baance at 31 Decerber 2020 HoECEELCRSE-mmER 600 (0012) 70 1505 X608 4% a2 M2 M (03 198140

The notes on pages 80 to 164 form part of these financial #80E 164 B WM sF R X EH B RE M —IB
statements. e
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
BARSRBR

2020 2019
ket Ll TN
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
iz ARET T BN S
Operating activities FE S
Cash generated from operations KEEERE 21(c) 334,617 137,454
Income tax paid BEETSHEL (649) (6,331)
Net cash generated from operating REEEFEYE
activities HE R 333,968 131,123
Investing activities RETE
Payment for purchase of property, HEEVHE BE&
plant and equipment BGINEN (1,872) (3,374)
Payment for construction in progress ERIRNR - (2,024)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME  BE &
plant and equipment RABPTISROE 2,089 990
Proceeds from disposal of investment HERBEYEMS
properties B 928 13,493
Net proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries ~ H &M BARSHREFE 17 3,262 23,433
Interest received 2HFILE 963 611
Placement of pledged deposits GFEABEMRER (94,331) (162,404)
Withdrawal of pledged deposits RRAERER 62,404 32,956
Net cash used in investing activities RETEFEBABESTE (26,557) (86,319
Financing activities RLEEE
Proceeds from borrowings BEEmERE 21(d) 802,090 756,213
Repayment of borrowings EEEE 21(d) (962,285) (707,267)
Repayment of lease liabilities EEAEaE 21(d) (5,102) (15,087)
Payment for interest on borrowings EE M SRR (32,534) (36,565)
Advance from related parties BT BN 21(d) - 94,035
Repayment of advance from related parties {218 ji& 5 5% 21(d) (138,532) (77,012)
Net cash (used in)/generated from BEES(BA) EE
financing activities bz 9= (336,363) 14,317
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and RERBELEEY
cash equivalents () /&R (28,952) 59,121
Cash and cash equivalents R—A—BWEER
at 1 January BHEEEY 21(a) 68,879 9,734
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [E=#E) > /& (61) 24
Cash and cash equivalents R+=—B=+—HHW
at 31 December ReERREEEY 21(a) 39,866 68,879

The notes on pages 80 to 164 form part of these financial ~ Z880% 164 B HYMT s #8 Ak 7% & B 7% 5k /9 — 51
AN

statements. 77 e
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A 5580 R 5

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=EHAI - UAREEE)

1

2

GENERAL INFORMATION

Boer Power Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 12 February 2010
as an exempted company with limited liability under
the Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are principally
engaged in design, manufacture and sale of electrical
distribution equipment and provision of electrical distribution
systems solution services in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC”).

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(a) Adoption of new or amended HKFRSs

The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
has issued a number of new or amended HKFRSs that
are first effective for the current accounting period of the
Group:

e Amendments to HKFRS 3, Definition of a Business

e  Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8, Definition of
Material

e Amendments to HKAS 39, HKFRS 7 and HKFRS 9,
Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

e  Amendments to HKFRS 16: COVID-19-Related
Rent Concessions*

* The Amendment to HKFRS 16: COVID-19-Related Rent
Concessions is mandatorily effective for annual reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020.

None of these new or amended HKFRSs has a material
impact on the Group’s results and financial position for
the current or prior period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

L E S TELNESE )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B>

SRS - AAREFHE)

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

(b) New or amended HKFRSs that have been

issued but are not yet effective

The following new or amended HKFRSs, potentially
relevant to the Group’s financial statements, have been
issued, but are not yet effective and have not been early
adopted by the Group. The Group’s current intention
is to apply these changes on the date they become
effective.

Amendments to Hong Kong Accounting Standard
(“"HKAS”) 1, Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current and HK Interpretation 5 (2020),
Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification
by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause?

Amendments to HKAS 16, Proceeds before Intended
Use?

Amendments to HKAS 37, Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfiling a Contract?

Amendments to HKFRS 3, Reference to the Conceptual
Framework3

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28, Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture*

Amendments to HKAS 39, HKFRS 4, HKFRS 7, HKFRS
9 and HKFRS 16, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform —
Phase 21

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-20202

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2022.

8 Effective for business combinations for which the date of
acquisition is on or after the beginning of the first annual period
beginning on or after 1 January 2022.

4 The amendments shall be applied prospectively to the sale or
contribution of assets occurring in annual periods beginning
on or after a date to be determined.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that
the applications of the amendments and revision in
the future will have significant impacts on the financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

L E S TELNESE )

(Expresse:

(B>

s -

d in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

AAREEHE)

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a)

(b)

(c)

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable HKFRSs,
HKASs and Interpretations (hereinafter collectively
referred to as the “HKFRS”) and the provisions of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance which concern the
preparation of financial statements. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

The impact of COVID-19 in current reporting
period

The outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic has
dramatically affected global economic activities since
early 2020. While disruptions are more immediate and
pronounced in certain industries, its impact on the
electrical distribution equipment industry in the PRC,
where the Group’s principal operations are located, has
been rather modest during the current reporting period.
Nevertheless, as the pandemic continues to evolve, it is
challenging at this juncture to predict the full extent and
duration of its impact to the business and the economy.
Management has assessed the impact of COVID-19
across the Group, and up to the date of this report, has
not identified any areas that could have a significant
impact on the financial performance or position of the
Group.

Functional and presentation currency

The functional currency of the Company is Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$”). These consolidated financial statements
are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”) because the
functional currency of most of the Group’s subsidiaries
is RMB. All financial information presented in RMB has
been rounded to the nearest thousand, except when
otherwise indicated. The measurement basis used in the
preparation of the financial statements is the historical
cost basis except for certain financial instruments, which
are measured at fair values.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

L E S TELNESE )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B>

SRS - AAREFHE)

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) Business combination and basis of

consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the
financial statements of the Group and a trust established
for the Group’s share award scheme. Inter-company
transactions and balances between group companies
together with unrealised profits are eliminated in full
in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of impairment on the asset
transferred, in which case the loss is recognised in profit
or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income from the dates
of acquisition or up to the dates of disposal, as
appropriate. Where necessary, adjustments are made
to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with those used by other
members of the Group.

The Group accounts for business combinations using
the acquisition method when the acquired set of
activities and assets meets the definition of a business
and control is transferred to the Group. In determining
whether a particular set of activities and assets is a
business, the Group assesses whether the set of assets
and activities acquired includes, at a minimum, an input
and substantive processes and whether the acquired
set has the ability to produce outputs. The cost of
an acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the
acquisition-date fair value of assets transferred, liabilities
incurred and equity interests issued by the Group, as the
acquirer. The identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed are principally measured at acquisition-date
fair value. The Group’s previously held equity interest
in the acquiree is re-measured at acquisition-date fair
value and the resulting gains or losses are recognised
in profit or loss. The Group may elect, on a transaction-
by-transaction basis, to measure the non-controlling
interests that represent present ownership interests in
the subsidiary either at fair value or at the proportionate
share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All
other non-controlling interests are measured at fair
value unless another measurement basis is required
by HKFRSs. Acquisition-related costs incurred are
expensed unless they are incurred in issuing equity
instruments in which case the costs are deducted from
equity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

L E S TELNESE )

(Expresse:

d in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHBIN  UARKERHE)

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(a)

Business combination and basis of
consolidation (continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by
the acquirer is recognised at acquisition-date fair
value. Subsequent adjustments to consideration are
recognised against goodwill only to the extent that
they arise from new information obtained within the
measurement period (@ maximum of 12 months from the
acquisition date) about the fair value at the acquisition
date. All other subsequent adjustments to contingent
consideration classified as an asset or a liability are
recognised in profit or loss.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary is the amount of those
interests at initial recognition plus such non-controlling
interest’s share of subsequent changes in equity. Non-
controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately
from equity attributable to owners of the Company. Profit
or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income is attributed to such non-controlling interests
even if this results in those non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control of the subsidiary are
accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying
amount of the Group’s interests and the non-controlling
interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference
between the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in
equity and attributed to the owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the
profit or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest and (i) the previous carrying amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary
and any non-controlling interest. Amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to
the subsidiary are accounted for in the same manner as
would be required if the relevant assets or liabilities were
disposed of.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B RS R 2R M=t a)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B>

SRS - AAREFHE)

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(C

ONTINUED)

(b) Subsidiaries

(c)

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company
is able to exercise control. The Company controls an
investee if all three of the following elements are present:
power over the investee, exposure, or rights, to variable
returns from the investee, and the ability to use its power
to affect those variable returns. Control is reassessed
whenever facts and circumstances indicate that there
may be a change in any of these elements of control.

De-facto control exists in situations where the Company
has the practical ability to direct the relevant activities
of the investee without holding the majority of the
voting rights. In determining whether de-facto control
exists, the Company considers all relevant facts and
circumstances, including:

e the size of the Company’s voting rights relative to
both the size and dispersion of other parties who
hold voting rights;

e substantive potential voting rights held by the
Company and other parties who hold voting rights;

e other contractual arrangements; and
e historic patterns in voting attendance.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor
a joint arrangement. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over
those policies.

Associates are accounted for using the equity method
whereby they are initially recognised at cost and
thereafter, their carrying amount are adjusted for the
Group’s share of the post-acquisition change in the
associates’ net assets except that losses in excess of
the Group’s interest in the associate are not recognised
unless there is an obligation to make good those losses.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

L E S TELNESE )

(Expresse:

d in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHBIN  UARKERHE)

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(c)

Associates (continued)

Profits and losses arising on transactions between the
Group and its associates are recognised only to the
extent of unrelated investors’ interests in the associate.
The investor’s share in the associate’s profits and losses
resulting from these transactions is eliminated against
the carrying value of the associate. Where unrealised
losses provide evidence of impairment of the asset
transferred they are recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

Any premium paid for an associate above the fair value
of the Group’s share of the identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities acquired is capitalised and
included in the carrying amount of the associate. Where
there is objective evidence that the investment in an
associate has been impaired, the carrying amount of the
investment is tested for impairment in the same way as
other non-financial assets.

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method
from the date when the investment ceases to be an
associate. When the Group retains an interest in the
former associate and the retained interest is a financial
asset, the Group measures the retained interest at
fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded as
its fair value on initial recognition in accordance with
HKFRS 9. The difference between the carrying amount
of the associate at the date the equity method was
discontinued, and the fair value of any retained interest
and any proceeds from disposing a part interest in the
associate is included in the determination of the gain
or loss on disposal of the associate. In addition, all
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that associate are recognised on
the same basis as would be required if that associate
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an
associate but the Group continues to use the equity
method, the Group reclassifies to profit or loss the
proportion of the gain or loss that had previously been
recognised in other comprehensive income relating to
that reduction in ownership interest it that gain or loss
would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of
the related assets or liabilities.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in associates are carried at cost less
impairment losses, if any. The results of associates are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends
received and receivable during the year.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

L E S TELNESE )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B>

SRS - AAREFHE)

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(d) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its
purchase price and the costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
recognised as an expense in profit or loss during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated so as to
write off their cost net of expected residual value over
their estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The
useful lives, residual value and depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period. The useful lives are as follows:

Buildings held for own use which are situated on
leasehold land are depreciated over the shorter of the
unexpired term of lease and their estimated useful
lives, being no more than 20 years after the date of
completion.

Plant and machinery 5-20 years
Motor vehicles 5 years
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 5 years

Plant and machinery under finance lease are depreciated
over its useful life being no more than 20 years.

Construction in progress is stated at cost less
impairment losses. Cost comprises direct costs of
construction as well as borrowing costs capitalised
during the periods of construction and installation.
Capitalisation of these costs ceases and the construction
in progress is transferred to the appropriate class of
property, plant and equipment when substantially
all the activities necessary to prepare the assets for
their intended use are completed. No depreciation is
provided for in respect of construction in progress until it
is completed and ready for its intended use.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B RS R 2R M=t a)
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(B>
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d in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

AAREEHE)

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(d)

(e)

(f

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if its carrying amount is higher than the asset’s
estimated recoverable amount.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant
and equipment is the difference between the net sale
proceeds and its carrying amount, and is recognised in
profit or loss on disposal.

Upon the adoption of HKFRS 16, the Group has elected
to present the ROU assets in “property, plant and
equipment” applying a cost model (see note 4(g)).

Investment properties

Investment property is property held either to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation or for both, but not
held for sale in the ordinary course of business, use in
the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes.

Investment properties are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see
note 4(r)). Depreciation is calculated to write-off the cost
of investment properties, less their residual values, if
any, using the straight-line method over their estimated
useful lives of 20 years. Both the useful life and residual
value, if any, are reviewed annually.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal
or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits
are expected from the disposal. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the property, calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset is included in profit or loss
in the period in which the property is derecognised.

Government grant

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them and that the grants will
be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the
grants are intended to compensate.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B RS R 2R M=t a)
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4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(f

(9)

Government grant (continued)

Government grants that are receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the
purpose of giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no future related costs are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they become
receivable and are recognised as other revenue, rather
than reducing the related expense.

Leases
The Group as a lessee

All leases are required to be capitalised in the statement
of financial position as right-of-use ("ROU") assets and
lease liabilities, but accounting policy choices exist for
an entity to choose not to capitalise (i) leases which
are short-term leases and/or (ii) leases for which the
underlying asset is of low-value. The Group has elected
not to recognise ROU assets and lease liabilities for low-
value assets and leases for which at the commencement
date have a lease term of less than 12 months. The
lease payments associated with those leases have been
expensed on straight-line basis over the lease term.

ROU asset

The ROU asset is initially recognised at cost and would
comprise: (i) the amount of the initial measurement of
the lease liability (see below for the accounting policy to
account for lease liability); (i) any lease payments made
at or before the commencement date, less any lease
incentives received; (jii) any initial direct costs incurred
by the lessee and (iv) an estimate of costs to be incurred
by the lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms and
conditions of the lease, unless those costs are incurred
to produce inventories.

The Group has elected to present the ROU assets in
“property, plant and equipment” applying a cost model.
Under the cost model, the Group measures the ROU
assets at cost, less any accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Lease liability

The lease liability is recognised at the present value
of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date. The lease payments shall be
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or,
if that rate cannot be readily determined, the Group shall
use the Group’s incremental borrowing rate.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

L E S TELNESE )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHBIN  UARKERHE)

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(9)

Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)
Lease liability (continued)

The following payments for the right-to-use the
underlying asset during the lease term that are not paid
at the commencement date of the lease are considered
to be lease payments: (i) fixed payments less any
lease incentives receivable: (i) variable lease payments
that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured
using the index or rate as at commencement date; (iii)
amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under
residual value guarantees; (iv) the exercise price of a
purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain to
exercise that option and (v) payments of penalties for
terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee
exercising an option to terminate the lease.

Subsequent to the commencement date, a lessee
shall measure the lease liability by: (i) increasing
the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease
liability; (i) reducing the carrying amount to reflect
the lease payments made; and (iii) remeasuring the
carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease
modification, or to reflect revised in-substance fixed
lease payments.

The Group as a lessor

The Group has leased out its investment property to a
number of tenants. Rental income from operating leases
is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease
are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset
and recognised as an expense on the straight-line basis
over the lease term.

Any changes in the scope of the consideration for
a lease that was not part of the original terms and
conditions of the lease are accounted for as lease
modifications. The Group accounts for a modification
to an operating lease as a new lease from the effective
date of the maodification, recognising the remaining lease
payments as income on a either a straight-line basis or
another systematic basis over the remaining lease term.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B RS R 2R M=t a)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B>

s -

AAREEHE)

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(h) Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially
recognised at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is fair value at
the date of acquisition. Subsequently, intangible
assets with finite useful lives are carried at cost
less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses. Intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives are carried at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses.

The amortisation expense is recognised in profit
or loss and included in administrative and other
operating expenses.

Amortisation is provided on a straight-line basis over
their useful lives as follows.

Software
Trademarks

10 years
10 years

Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal,
or when no future economic benefits are expected
from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from
derecognition of an intangible asset, measured
as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset,
are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised.

Impairment of intangible assets

Intangible assets with finite lives are tested for
impairment when there is an indication that an asset
may be impaired. Intangible assets are tested for
impairment by comparing their carrying amounts
with their recoverable amounts (note 4(r)).

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss
is treated as revaluation decrease to the extent of
its revaluation surplus.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B RS R 2R M=t a)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B>
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AAREEHE)

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

() Financial Instruments

(i)

Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable
without a significant financing component) is initially
measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”), transaction
costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition
or issue. Trade receivable without a significant
financing component is initially measured at the
transaction price.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade date, that is,
the date that the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the
market place.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirely when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at amortised cost. Financial assets
at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest rate method. Interest
income, foreign exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain
on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B RS R 2R M=t a)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B>

s -

AAREEHE)

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(i) Financial Instruments (continued)

(i)

Financial assets (continued)
Debt instruments (continued)

Fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FVOCI”): Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the financial
assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest, are
measured at FVOCI. Debt investments at FVOCI
are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest
income calculated using the effective interest
rate method, foreign exchange gains and losses
and impairment are recognised in profit or loss.
Other net gains and losses are recognised in other
comprehensive income. On derecognition, gains
and losses accumulated in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss.

FVTPL: Financial assets at FVTPL include financial
assets held for trading, financial assets designated
upon initial recognition at FVTPL, or financial assets
mandatorily required to be measured at fair value.
Financial assets are classified as held for trading
if they are acquired for the purpose of selling or
repurchasing in the near term. Derivatives, including
separated embedded derivatives, are also classified
as held for trading unless they are designated as
effective hedging instruments. Financial assets with
cash flows that are not solely payments of principal
and interest are classified and measured at FVTPL,
irrespective of the business model. Notwithstanding
the criteria for debt instruments to be classified at
amortised cost or at FVOCI, as described above,
debt instruments may be designated at FVTPL
on initial recognition if doing so eliminates, or
significantly reduces, an accounting mismatch.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B RS R 2R M=t a)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHBIN  UARKERHE)

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4 TESFBRE)

(CONTINUED)
(i) Financial Instruments (continued) i) EMmIEA(E)
() Financial assets (continued) (i) SMEEGE)
Equity instruments RAETH

On initial recognition of an equity investment that
is not held for trading, the Group could irrevocably
elect to present subsequent changes in the
investment’s fair value in other comprehensive
income. This election is made on an investment-
by-investment basis. Equity investments at FVOCI
are measured at fair value. Dividend income are
recognised in profit or loss unless the dividend
income clearly represents a recovery of part of the
cost of the investments. Other net gains and losses
are recognised in other comprehensive income
and are not reclassified to profit or loss. All other
equity instruments are classified as FVTPL, whereby
changes in fair value, dividends and interest income
are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected
credit losses (“ECLs”) on trade receivables, contract
assets, financial assets measured at amortised cost
and bills receivable measured at FVOCI. The ECLs
are measured on either of the following bases: (1)
12 months ECLs: these are the ECLs that result
from possible default events within the 12 months
after the reporting date: and (2) lifetime ECLs: these
are ECLs that result from all possible default events
over the expected life of a financial instrument. The
maximum period considered when estimating ECLs
is the maximum contractual period over which the
Group is exposed to credit risk.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to
the Group in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the Group expects to receive.
The shortfall is then discounted at an approximation
to the assets’ original effective interest rate.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B RS R 2R M=t a)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B>

SRS - AAREFHE)

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

)

Financial Instruments (continued)
(i) Impairment loss on financial assets (continued)

The Group has elected to measure loss allowances
for trade receivables and contract assets using
HKFRS 9 simplified approach and has calculated
ECLs based on lifetime ECLs. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on the
Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors
and the economic environment.

For other debt financial assets, the ECLs are based
on the 12-months ECLs. However, when there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since
origination, the allowance will be based on the
lifetime ECLs.

When determining whether the credit risk of a
financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating ECLs, the Group
considers reasonable and supportable information
that is relevant and available without undue cost or
effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative
information analysis, based on the Group’s historical
experience and informed credit assessment and
including forward-looking information.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a
financial asset has increased significantly if it is
more than 30 days past due, unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

The Group considers a financial asset to be credit-
impaired when: (1) the borrower is unlikely to pay
its credit obligations to the Group in full, without
recourse by the Group to actions such as realising
security (if any is held); or (2) the financial asset is
more than 90 days past due, unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criteria is
more appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B RS R 2R M=t a)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHBIN  UARKERHE)

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

() Financial Instruments (continued) i) EMTEE)
(i) EREEZRBEEBEE)

4 FESTHBRAE

(i) Impairment loss on financial assets (continued)

Depending on the nature of the financial
instruments, the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk is performed on either an
individual or a collective basis. When the assessment
is performed on a collective basis, the financial
instruments are grouped based on shared credit
risk characteristics, such as past due status and
credit risk ratings.

The Group considers a financial asset to be credit-
impaired when:

e significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

e abreach of contract, such as a default or being
more than 90 days past due;

e the restructuring of a loan or advance by the
Group on terms that the Group would not
consider otherwise; or

e it is probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or
loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments
with a corresponding adjustment to their carrying
amount through a loss allowance account, except
for investments in debt instruments that are
measured at FVTOCI, for which the loss allowance
is recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in “FVTOCI reserve (recycling)”.

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect
of recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed
under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables.
Financial assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised in
profit or loss.

Interest income on credit-impaired financial assets
is calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e. the
gross carrying amount less loss allowance) of the
financial asset. For non credit-impaired financial
assets interest income is calculated based on the
gross carrying amount.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B RS R 2R M=t a)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B>

SRS - AAREFHE)

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

)

Financial Instruments (continued)
(iii) Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities,
depending on the purpose for which the liabilities
were incurred. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are
initially measured at fair value and financial liabilities
at amortised costs are initially measured at fair
value, net of directly attributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities at FVTPL include financial liabilities
held for trading and financial liabilities designated
upon initial recognition as at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if
they are acquired for the purpose of sale in the near
term. Derivatives, including separated embedded
derivatives, are also classified as held for trading
unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for
trading are recognised in profit or loss.

Where a contract contains one or more embedded
derivatives, the entire hybrid contract may be
designated as a financial liability at FVTPL,
except where the embedded derivative does not
significantly modify the cash flows or it is clear that
separation of the embedded derivative is prohibited.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B RS R 2R M=t a)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHBIN  UARKERHE)

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(i) Financial Instruments (continued) i) EMmIEA(E)
(iii) EMEEE)

4 FESTHBRAE

(iii) Financial liabilities (continued)

Financial liabilities may be designated upon initial
recognition as at FVTPL if the following criteria are
met: (i) the designation eliminates or significantly
reduces the inconsistent treatment that would
otherwise arise from measuring the liabilities or
recognising gains or losses on them on a different
basis; (i) the liabilities are part of a group of financial
liabilities which are managed and their performance
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with
a documented risk management strategy; or (iii) the
financial liability contains an embedded derivative
that would need to be separately recorded.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial liabilities
at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with changes
in fair value recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they arise, except for the gains and losses
arising from the Group’s own credit risk which are
presented in other comprehensive income with no
subsequent reclassification to the statement of profit
or loss. The net fair value gain or loss recognised in
the statement of profit or loss does not include any
interest charged on these financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including trade
and other payables, borrowings, certain preference
shares and the debt element of convertible loan
note issued by the Group are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method. The related interest expense is
recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through
the amortisation process.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B RS R 2R M=t a)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B>

s -

AAREEHE)

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial Instruments (continued)

)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
asset or financial liability and of allocating interest
income or interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts or
payments through the expected life of the financial
asset or liability, or where appropriate, a shorter
period.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

The Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, Cap. 622,
came into operation on 3 March 2014. Under the
Ordinance shares of the Company do not have a
nominal value. Consideration received or receivable
for the issue of shares on or after 3 March 2014
is credited to share capital. Commissions and
expenses are allowed to be deducted from share
capital under s. 148 and s. 149 of the Ordinance.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the issuer to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because
a specified debtor fails to make payment when
due in accordance with the original or modified
terms of a debt instrument. A financial guarantee
contract issued by the Group and not designated
as at FVTPL is recognised initially at its fair value
less transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the issue of the financial guarantee contract.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group
measures the financial guarantee contact at the
higher of: (i) the amount of the loss allowance, being
the ECLs provision measured in accordance with
principles of the accounting policy set out in note 4(i)
(I1); and (i) the amount initially recognised less, when
appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in
accordance with the principles of HKFRS 15.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B RS R 2R M=t a)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHBIN  UARKERHE)

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4 FESTHBEKE
(CONTINUED)
(i) Financial Instruments (continued) i) EMmIEA(E)

(vii) Derecognition
The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the future cash flows in relation
to the financial asset expire or when the financial
asset has been transferred and the transfer meets
the criteria for derecognition in accordance with
HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

Where the Group issues its own equity instruments
to a creditor to settle a financial liability in whole
or in part as a result of renegotiating the terms
of that liability, the equity instruments issued are
the consideration paid and are recognised initially
and measured at their fair value on the date the
financial liability or part thereof is extinguished. If the
fair value of the equity instruments issued cannot
be reliably measured, the equity instruments are
measured to reflect the fair value of the financial
liability extinguished. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability or part
thereof extinguished and the consideration paid is
recognised in profit or loss for the year.

Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and
subsequently at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Cost
is calculated using the weighted average method/first-
in first out method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business
less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B RS R 2R M=t a)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B>

SRS - AAREFHE)

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(k) Contract costs

U

Contract costs are either the incremental costs of
obtaining a contract with a customer or the costs to fulfil
a contract with a customer which are not capitalised as
inventory, property, plant and equipment or intangible
assets.

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those
costs that the Group incurs to obtain a contract with a
customer that it would not have incurred if the contract
had not been obtained. Such costs are capitalised when
incurred if the costs relate to revenue which will be
recognised in a future reporting period and the costs are
expected to be recovered. Other costs of obtaining a
contract are expensed when incurred.

Costs to fulfil a contract are capitalised if the costs
relate directly to an existing contract or to a specifically
identifiable anticipated contract; generate or enhance
resources that will be used to provide goods or services
in the future; and are expected to be recovered.

Capitalised contract costs are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.
Impairment losses are recognised to the extent that the
carrying amount of the contract cost asset exceeds
the net of (i) remaining amount of consideration that the
Group expects to receive in exchange for the goods or
services to which the asset relates, less (ii) any costs
that relate directly to providing those goods or services
that have not yet been recognised as expenses.

Amortisation of capitalised contract costs is charged
to profit or loss when the revenue to which the asset
relates is recognised.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition. Cash and cash
equivalents are assessed for ECLs in accordance with
the policy set out in note 4(j)(l).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

L E S TELNESE )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B>

SRS - AAREFHE)

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(m) Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes
value added tax or other sales taxes and is after
deduction of any trade discounts.

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws
that apply to the contract, control of the goods or
service may be transferred over time or at a point in
time. Control of the goods or service is transferred over
time if the Group’s performance:

e provides all of the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer;

e creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

e does not create an asset with an alternative use to
the Group and the Group has an enforceable right
to payment for performance completed to date.

If control of the goods or services transfers over time,
revenue is recognised over the period of the contract by
reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of that performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is
recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains
control of the goods or service.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

L E S TELNESE )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B>

SRS - AAREFHE)

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
(m) Revenue recognition (continued)

When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the customer a significant benefit
of financing the transfer of goods or services to the
customer for more than one year, revenue is measured
at the present value of the amounts receivable,
discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between
the Group and the customer at contract inception.
Where the contract contains a financing component
which provides a significant financing benefit to the
Group, revenue recognised under that contract includes
the interest expense accreted on the contract liability
under the effective interest method. For contracts where
the period between the payment and the transfer of
the promised goods or services is one year or less,
the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects of
a significant financing component, using the practical
expedient in HKFRS 15.

(i) Intelligent Electrical Management Solutions
(“IEM Solutions”)

IEM Solutions include sale of electrical distribution
systems, Engineering Procurement and Construction
(“EPC”) project, and sale of electricity. For the IEM
projects where a performance obligation is satisfied
over time based on the progress towards complete
satisfaction of a good or service as the Group’s
performance creates or enhances an asset that
the customer controls as the asset is created or
enhanced, the revenue is recognised over time. The
progress of completion is measured by reference to
the proportion of the actual cost incurred to date to
the estimated total cost of the relevant contract. For
the EPC projects where a performance obligation
cannot be demonstrated as being satisfied over
time, the revenue is recognised at a point in time
when control of a good or service passes to the
customer. There is generally one performance
obligation.

Revenue arising from sale of electricity is recognised
at a point in time upon the transmission of electric
power to the power grid companies in accordance
with meter readings.

(i) Sale of components and spare parts of
electrical distribution systems

Customers obtain control of the products when the
goods are delivered to and have been accepted.
Revenue is thus recognised at a point in time
upon when the customers accepted the products.
There is generally only one performance obligation.
Contracts generally contain no right of return,
warranty and no variable consideration.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

L E S TELNESE )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B>

SRS - AAREFHE)

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(n) Income taxes

Income taxes for the year comprise current tax and
deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary
activities adjusted for items that are non-assessable or
disallowable for income tax purposes and is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
corresponding amounts used for tax purposes. Except
for goodwill and recognised assets and liabilities that
affect neither accounting nor taxable profits, deferred
tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Deferred tax is measured at the tax
rates appropriate to the expected manner in which the
carrying amount of the asset or liability is realised or
settled and that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of reporting period, and reflects any
uncertainty related to income taxes.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the assets to be
recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except
when they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income in which case the taxes are also
recognised in other comprehensive income or when
they relate to items recognised directly in equity in which
case the taxes are also recognised directly in equity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

L E S TELNESE )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B>

SRS - AAREFHE)

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(o) Foreign currency

Transactions entered into by group entities in currencies
other than the currency of the primary economic
environment in which they operate (the “functional
currency”) are recorded at the rates ruling when the
transactions occur. Foreign currency monetary assets
and liabilities are translated at the rates ruling at the end
of reporting period. Non-monetary items carried at fair
value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the
fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they arise. Exchange differences arising on
the retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair
value are included in profit or loss for the period except
for differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items in respect of which gains and losses are
recognised in other comprehensive income, in which
case, the exchange differences are also recognised in
other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, income and expense items of foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. Renminbi) at the average exchange
rates for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during the period, in which case, the rates
approximating to those ruling when the transactions
took place are used. All assets and liabilities of foreign
operations are translated at the rate ruling at the end
of reporting period. Exchange differences arising, if
any, are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity as foreign exchange reserve
(attributed to non-controlling interests as appropriate).
Exchange differences recognised in profit or loss of
group entities’ separate financial statements on the
translation of long-term monetary items forming part
of the Group’s net investment in the foreign operation
concerned are reclassified to other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity as foreign exchange
reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
exchange differences recognised in the foreign
exchange reserve relating to that operation up to the
date of disposal are reclassified to profit or loss as part
of the profit or loss on disposal.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B RS R 2R M=t a)

(Expresse:

(B>

s -

d in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

AAREEHE)

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(p)

(q)

Employee benefits
(i) Short term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are employee benefits
(other than termination benefits) that are expected
to be settled wholly before twelve months after
the end of the annual reporting period in which the
employees render the related service. Short term
employee benefits are recognised in the year when
the employees render the related service.
(i) Defined contribution retirement plan
Contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans are recognised as an expense in profit or loss
when the services are rendered by the employees.
(iii) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised on the earlier
of when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer
of those benefits and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs involving the payment of
termination benefits.

Share-based payments

Where share options are awarded to employees and
others providing similar services, the fair value of the
services received is measured by reference to the fair
value of the options at the date of grant. Such fair value
is recognised in profit or loss over the vesting period
with a corresponding increase in the share option
reserve within equity. Non-market vesting conditions
are taken into account by adjusting the number of
equity instruments expected to vest at the end of each
reporting period so that, ultimately, the cumulative
amount recognised over the vesting period is based
on the number of options that eventually vest. Market
vesting conditions are factored into the fair value of
the options granted. As long as all non-market vesting
conditions are satisfied, a charge is made irrespective of
whether the market vesting conditions are satisfied. The
cumulative expense is not adjusted for failure to achieve
a market vesting condition.

Where the terms and conditions of options are modified
before they vest, the increase in the fair value of the
options, measured immediately before and after the
modification, is also recognised in profit or loss over the
remaining vesting period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B RS R 2R M=t a)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHBIN  UARKERHE)

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(r) Impairment of assets (other than financial

4 FESTHBRAE

n EERE(TEESREE)

assets)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of the following assets
to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss or an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists
or may have decreased:

Property, plant and equipment/Investment property
under cost model;

interests in leasehold land held for own use; and
investments in subsidiaries and associates.

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use) of an
asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
as an expense immediately, unless the relevant asset
is carried at a revalued amount under another HKFRS,
in which case the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation decrease under that HKFRS.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, to the extent that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried
at a revalued amount under another HKFRS, in which
case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation increase under that HKFRS.

Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows
expected to be derived from the asset, discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset or cash
generating unit.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

L E S TELNESE )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHBIN  UARKERHE)

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(s) Related parties

(@ A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of key management personnel of
the Group or the Company’s parent.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions apply:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is
a member).

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of the employees of the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

(vi) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of key
management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the group or to the group’s parent.

BOER POWER HOLDINGS LIMITED BEEHERBRAE
108/ —Z-FFFR  Annual Report 2020

4 FESTTBRE)

(s) BAETR
(@) MM NHNBI - ZBALHZR
At%k%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%%ﬁﬁ%éﬁﬁ%
EAERE

M

(ii
(i)

5 7 52 (8 5 40 ) o L (R 4
1

HAKEEEATEN

RAKERANRBGRANE
BEEAR -

fis @A T INERIER - ZERBHAR
REASE AR

M

(i)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

ZEERAEEBR— EIE’J
RE(AISZERR - HEA
NRIZM B AR EREE) -

—EERAR - EBHBEL
ANABRE (A BE—RE
MR BB E A TR A B
¥ MRS ERANEERN
PE) -

ﬂﬂla“‘“ CRERSE=FHE
B -

—(EERAE=ERNSED
(RS —ERRE=ERN
AA/‘\j °

% am)’ﬁﬁ$’il‘}z§ﬂi$’il
BRENEENEERT
HIBERIR B FIRT & -

LB (QFTHEBIRALTIES
K K RES)

RE)FTEFI S EREERNY
%Eﬁ/\i REEB(NER
MEAREEZEERAE -

a‘&%%%‘&fﬁﬁ%’ilmfiﬁﬁi
EPNSIIDESEEESE0SIN
RETBERABRE -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

L E S TELNESE )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B>

4

5

SRS - AAREFHE)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(s) Related parties (continued)
(b) (continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings
with the entity and include:

(i) that person’s children and spouse or domestic
partner;

(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic
partner; and

(i) dependents of that person or that person’s
spouse or domestic partner.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the
Directors are required to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered to
be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

(@) Income taxes

Determining income tax provisions involves judgment
on the future tax treatment of certain transactions.
The Group carefully evaluates tax implications of
transactions and tax provisions are set up accordingly.
The tax treatment of such transactions is reconsidered
periodically to take into account all changes in tax
legislations.

In accordance with the new interpretation HK (IFRIC)-
Int 23, the Group makes consistent judgements and
estimates for both current tax and deferred tax. If the
facts or circumstances on which the judgement and
estimate was based change or as a result of new
information that affects the judgement or estimate, the
Group reassesses the judgement or estimate.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

L E S TELNESE )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHAI - UAREFHE)
5 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)
(b) ECLs impairment
The measurement of impairment losses under
HKFRS 9 across all categories of financial assets
requires judgement. In particular, the estimation of the
amount and timing of future cash flows and collateral
values when determining impairment losses and the
assessment of a significant increase in credit risk. These
estimates are driven by a number of factors, changes in
which can result in different levels of allowances.
(c) Fair value measurement

A number of assets and liabilities included in the Group’s
financial statements require measurement at, and/or
disclosure of, fair value.

The fair value measurement of the Group’s financial
and non-financial assets and liabilities utilises market
observable inputs and data as far as possible.
Inputs used in determining fair value measurements
are categorised into different levels based on how
observable the inputs used in the valuation technique
utilised are (the “fair value hierarchy”):

e | evel 1: Quoted prices in active markets for identical
items (unadjusted);

e | evel 2: Observable direct or indirect inputs other
than Level 1 inputs;

e | evel 3: Unobservable inputs (i.e. not derived from
market data).

The classification of an item into the above levels is
based on the lowest level of the inputs used that has a
significant effect on the fair value measurement of the
item. Transfers of items between levels are recognised
in the period they occur.

The Group measures the following item at fair value:
e  Financial assets at FVTPL.
For more detailed information in relation to the fair

value measurement of the item above, please refer to
note 29(e).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

MR R M )
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHBIN  UARKERHE)

6 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

6 WAKTDHERHRE

Operating segments and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the consolidated financial statements are
identified from the financial information provided regularly to
the Group’s top management for the purposes of allocating
resources to and assessing the performance of the Group’s
various lines of business.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect
of the nature of business activities. No operating segments
have been aggregated to form the reporting segments.

Segment revenue, expenses, and results include items
directly attributable to a segment as well as those that
can be allocated on a reasonable basis to that segment,
but exclude exceptional items. Segment assets excluding
deferred tax assets and tax recoverable are managed on
a group basis. Segment liabilities excluding deferred tax
liabilities and tax payable are managed on a group basis.

The Group has two (2019: four) reportable segments.
The segments are managed separately as each business
offers different products and services and requires different
business strategies. The following summary describes the
operations in each of the Group’s reportable segments:

— |EM Solutions, which include sale of electrical distribution
systems, EPC projects, and sale of electricity.

— Components and Spare Parts Business (“CSP
Business”), which include components and spare parts
for application on electrical distribution equipment or
the basic function units of the solutions and sells such
components and spare parts to the customers.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
considers the Electrical Distribution System Solutions
(“EDS Solutions”), the Intelligent Electrical Distribution
System Solutions (“iEDS Solutions”) and the Energy
Efficiency Solutions (“EE Solutions”) have similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature
of business activities, the integration of EDS Solutions,
iEDS Solutions and EE Solutions into IEM Solutions can
better reflect the nature of the income streams and group
strategies, and therefore, the Group reclassified its reporting
segments. The comparative segment information for the year
ended 31 December 2019 has been restated to conform
with the current period presentation accordingly.
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Lt . ﬂ NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
SRR ML )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHBIN  UARKERHE)

6 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 6 WAKRDERE(E)
(CONTINUED)
Information is presented on the basis of business segments, IRERDIEEZL D ERIE » D3PI A&
segment revenue and results are based on the revenue and ¥ETREIEMA R « TTHERSHEKHU
gross profits of IEM Solutions and CSP Business. ARENGE -

IEM CSP
Solutions Business Total
TR

IEM% % THEK @st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
N AR¥ET T AR¥T T

Year ended 31 December 2020 HZE—-ZE-ZEH&+=-HA=+-—H

HEE

Revenue WA

Timing of revenue recognition W ATEREH

At a point in time NE 622,386 172,586 794,972
Over time HE—EREEA 21,693 - 21,693
Total “a=t 644,079 172,586 816,665
Cost of sales SHEM A (452,087) (127,583) (579,670)
Gross profit EF 191,992 45,003 236,995

Depreciation and amortisation ST ASHEN AR E K#
included in cost of sales 9,991 8,459 18,450
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

g s ey

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHBIN  UARKERHE)

6 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(CONTINUED)

Year ended 31 December 2019

Revenue
Timing of revenue recognition

BE-_E-h"HF+=-A=t-H

IEEFEE

A
WAREREE

6

WAR D E®E (&)
IEM CSP
Solutions Business Total
TR
IEMJ5 2 THEB et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARETT ARETT

At a point in time NE 521,832 185,160 706,992
Over time E—EREMA 30,136 - 30,136
Total Faey 551,968 185,160 737,128
Cost of sales SHERA (364,922) (158,868) (523,790)
Gross profit ER 187,046 26,292 213,338
Depreciation and amortisation ST ASEEM AN E REEH

included in cost of sales 10,879 9,671 20,550

The reconciliation of depreciation and amortisation included
in cost of sales to consolidated depreciation and amortisation

is as follows:

FPAHERANTE REHERATER
BHRERLT

2020 2019
—F-%HF —TNEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT R ARBTT

Cost of sales HERA 18,450 20,550
Administrative and other operating expenses 17 & H fib & & 2 12,134 14,320
30,584 34,870
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

L E S TELNESE )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHBIN  UARKERHE)

6 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(CONTINUED)

The Group does not allocate any specific assets or
expenditures for property, plant and equipment to the
operating segments as these assets are managed on a
group basis and the chief operating decision maker does

not use such information to measure the performance of the

reportable segments.

No geographical segment analysis is presented as
substantially all revenue and gross profit of the Group are

attributable to the PRC.

7 OTHER NET INCOME

6 WARDE®E (&)

7 HMRAFEE

o o
EREDE

AEEWEAYE - BE LR ED EEM
Frhl & E X
BERSEBELER  BXELERKA
WEERBRERNEER

B JhARZE

ENEIRIR

BN AEE BRI WA REFIG KA F
- FI A 2 508 5 BT o

2020 2019
—B-EF —E-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
Interest income from financial institutions KB & BEERNF B U A 963 611
Refund of value added taxes (“VAT”) BER([HEE R 1,926 1,327
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (note 17) HENE AR E (FFE17) - 4,029
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEWE - R LRED
equipment ez 991 254
Gain on disposal of investment properties HEREMENKES 304 350
Change in financial assets at FVTPL BATFERAERT
(note 29(e)) SRIEEZE(MFE296) 1,239 1,462
Share of gain of an associate (G —FEESE & A Bl s - 5
Impairment losses of interest in an associate 7 — &84 A =] HRERE
WEETE (551) -
Government grants BT e 1,837 1,082
Others Hih 1,647 153
8,356 9,273
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B # R R Bt = )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHBIN  UARKERHE)

8 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 8 BRBLAIEF
(a) Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/ (a) BREAEFISIRR(GEA)
(crediting):

2020 2019
S I ==
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARuTr NS

() Finance costs: () A
Interest on borrowings BEERE 32,534 36,565
Finance charges on leases liabilities HEaENREER
(note 21(d)) (MF3E21(d)) 3,430 5,973
35,964 42,538
(i) Staff costs: (i) BITARA :
Contributions to defined contribution REHRFGRIRETE
retirement plans fx 5,380 8,651
Salaries, wages and other benefits e - HEREMET) 84,220 92,458
89,600 101,109
(i) Other items: (i) EAMhIEE :
Amortisation of intangible assets B E B 283 793
Depreciation e 30,301 34,077
Auditors’ remuneration ZE AN & 1,800 2,200
Short-term lease expenses EHHEERY 716 2,841
Impairment losses on contract costs BRI REEER
(note 20) (FfF3E20) 48,161 -
Net foreign exchange (gain)/loss GNE (W as ), iR (1,273) 91
Cost of inventories (note 18(b))# FERA(KIFE18(0))* 565,663 515,591
*  Cost of inventories includes RMB64,304,000 (2019: o FERABEAREE4,304,000T(=F
RMB63,694,000) relating to staff costs, depreciation (including —NF : AR¥63,604,0007T) ' EHET
depreciation of the ROU assets) and amortisation expenses, KA FrE(REFEREEENE) REH
which amount is also included in the respective total amounts FX MR - ZeBENEIEBRESENAY
disclosed separately above or in notes 8(a)(ii) and (iii) for each FARIEE AR ST 5 8(a)(i) K (i) 1 B %8
of these types of expenses. BENZESEMS A -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B # R R Bt = )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHBIN  UARKERHE)

8 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (CONTINUED)
(b) Disposal of a subsidiary
During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group

8 PBRBIAERI (&)
(b) HE—EHNEAR
BE-_T-ZFHF+-A=1+—HBLLHF

disposed of its 80.1% of the equity interest in a
subsidiary, Anda Zhongcheng Energy Co., Ltd (“Anda
Zhongcheng”) (see note 17).

Anda Zhongcheng was set up for an EPC project in the
PRC. On 30 September 2020, Shenzhen Zhongjuruida
Industrial Co., Ltd (“Shenzhen Zhongjuruida”), a 60%
indirectly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into an equity transfer agreement with Shang Shi Hang
Tian Xing He Energy (Shanghai) Co., Ltd, pursuant
to which Shenzhen Zhongjuruida disposed of its
80.1% of the equity interest in Anda Zhongcheng, at
a consideration of RMB15,998,000. The disposal was
completed on 30 September 2020.

Anda Zhongcheng did not start its operations since the
date of its incorporation and up to its disposal date (the
“Relevant Period”). Thus, it did not have any operating
results included in the consolidated statement of profit

f AEEHEERHE R B RERH
BERBRARN([ZERH])#I80.1% %
%(EM\T%E\W)"

TiE ?‘EW#$IZE@EE@&
Y oRIZEZZTFNA= +E FIN/N
BEBO%MEERAME A wm%
MEEEARA TG/W¢¥£iDﬁ
FEMRENER(LEE)BRARRL
fEietE R - Bt - RYIRBiRED
EHENTIERHNB0.1%EHE - KEA
AR #15,998,0007T - HEEEN-ZF
TEEAA=FHZK

?%%%ﬁ%@ﬁﬁﬂﬂﬁiﬁﬂﬁﬁ?&ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ
HARE ([ AE A AR |) AR B R & 5E -
it EirGB B &Eﬁﬂiﬁﬂﬂlﬁﬁﬁqﬂi
B LM RAE - MEARBRHRE

or loss and other comprehensive income, and its cash HIR & imE K FIRIE o
flows had been minimal during the Relevant Period.
9 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 9 LEBRBEREMEZEKERPHA
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND B

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement (a) FEBERHMEEKERPHH
of profit or loss and other comprehensive ==
income represents:

2020 2019
= i —TNF

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARBTT

Current tax B EATH 18
Provision for PRC income tax for the year 4 AF B FT1S R 1 723 1,035

Over-provision in respect of prior years @1+ S HARE RS (10,609) (11,327)
Deferred tax IEIER1E
Origination and reversal of temporary EENERERER
differences
— Withholding tax (note (iv)) —FEF (FRE @) (1,809) 4,925
- Others —HAth 45,207 6,509
33,512 1,142
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
SRR ML )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHBIN  UARKERHE)

9 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 9
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(CONTINUED)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and

ReEEREMEERERTPHMN
BB (&)

(b) BIRB X ERREABRAENE

accounting profit at applicable tax rates: R Y EE
2020 2019
—E-FF —FTNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREET T ARET T
Profit before taxation Fr R R 42,846 6,884
Notional tax on profit before taxation, ZEAN R Rl AR AR
calculated at the rates applicable in the R ERIBR T AT T &Y
jurisdictions concerned HEIE 10,123 1,721
Tax effect of PRC preferential tax HR BB S R B
treatments (note (i) T rs 52 28 (P& Gin)) - 2,080
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses A~ A H1 I S BBl 76 o 28 4,604 1,514
Tax effect of unused tax losses not RERH KRB RIBEEN
recognised (note 27(d)) g2 (KisE27(d) 29,394 7,154
Over-provision in respect of prior years @1t /S HBEERE (10,609) (11,327)
Income tax expense FriSHiR = 33,512 1,142
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B # R R Bt = )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHBIN  UARKERHE)

9 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 9 LKEBEERHEMEEWERFWET
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND Bpi(4E)

118
7’

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(CONTINUED)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and
accounting profit at applicable tax rates:
(continued)

Notes:

(i)

(i)

(i)

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands
and the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI”), the Group is not
subject to any income tax in the Cayman Islands or the BVI.

No provision has been made for Profits Tax in Hong Kong and
Corporate Taxes in Mexico, Indonesia and Spain as the Group
did not earn any income subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax and
did not earn any taxable profit subject to Mexico, Indonesia
and Spain Corporate Taxes during each of the years ended 31
December 2020 and 2019.

PRC income tax

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law and its
implementation regulations, provision for PRC income tax of
the Group is calculated based on the statutory income tax
rate of 25% except for Boer (Wuxi) Power System Co., Ltd.*
(“Boer Wuxi”), which is qualified as High and New Technology
Enterprise, and is therefore entitled to a preferential tax rate of
15%.

Dividends withholding tax

According to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law and its
implementation regulations, dividends receivable by non-
PRC corporate residents from PRC enterprises are subject
to withholding tax at a rate of 10%, unless reduced by tax
treaties or arrangements, for profits earned since 1 January
2008. In addition, under the Arrangement between Mainland
China and the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region for
the Avoidance of Double Taxation and the Prevention of Fiscal
Evasion with respect to Taxes on Income and its relevant
regulations, a qualified Hong Kong tax resident will be liable for
withholding tax at the rate of 5% for dividend income derived
from the PRC if the Hong Kong tax resident is the “beneficial
owner” and holds 25% or more of the equity interests of the
PRC company. Deferred tax liabilities have been provided for
based on the expected dividends to be distributed from these
subsidiaries in the foreseeable future in respect of the profits
generated since 1 January 2008.

The English translation of the company name is for reference
only. The official name of this company is in Chinese.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
SRR ML )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHBIN  UARKERHE)

10 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 10 ESME

Directors’ emoluments are as follows:

Year ended 31 December 2020 HZ_T_FF

[k
RMB’000
ARBTR

EEMEHIIT

Basic salaries,
allowances
and other
benefits
EX§e
EER
Hitig#
RMB’000
ARETR

Contributions
to retirement
benefit scheme

BINEA
SRR
RMB’000
N

EH
RMB’000
N

TZA=t-HLEE
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Qian Yixiang BRAEE = = 9 9
Ms. Jia Lingxia BEENT - = 9 9
Mr. Zha Saibin BEWEE = - 7 7
Mr. Qian Zhongming BT E = = = -
Independent Non-executive BUFHITEE
Directors
Mr. Yeung Chi Tat PR
(retired on 5 June 2020) (RZZZFF AHA
RE) 126 - - 126
Mr. Tang Jianrong FRERAE 145 - - 145
Mr. Qu Weimin ERREE 123 - - 123
Mr. Lai Wai Leuk REREE
(appoainted on 2 July 2020) (RZZZFF+AZH
BZH) 53 = - 53
Total @zt 441 - 25 412
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B # R R Bt = )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHBIN  UARKERHE)

10 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED) 10 ESME(EF

Basic salaries,
allowances  Contributions
and other to retirement

Fees benefits  benefit scheme Total
EXE®
2R RINER
ik Hivig7l FE st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARBTT ARETT ARETT

Year ended 31 December 2019 HZE-T—NE

TZA=t-HLEE
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Qian Yixiang BRoRLE - - 30 30
Ms. Jia Lingxia EEEUT - - 30 30
Mr. Zha Saibin BEWEE - - 26 26
Mr. Qian Zhongming EHBREE - - - -
Non-executive Director HHITEF
Mr. Zhang Huagiao RILEEE

(resigned on 6 May 2019) (R=Z2-NFRAKEB

BHE) - - - -

Independent Non-executive BUFHITEE
Directors

Mr. Yeung Chi Tat SEELRLE 317 - - 317
Mr. Tang Jianrong FRERAE 212 - - 212
Mr. Qu Weimin BERSEE 159 - - 159
Total st 688 - 86 774
During both years, no discretionary bonus was paid or RREFENRN - NEBE W ES s BT
payable by the Group to any of the Directors. MEFEMBIBEAL -
During both years, no amount was paid or payable by the PREFERN @ 4NEE I # DR ERE
Group to any of the Directors as an inducement to join or MEBWEM I - fEAINBEARER SN
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office. BAAREERFNESSIEABREE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

L E S TELNESE )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHBIN  UARKERHE)

10 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

10 EEM S (F

During the year, seven Directors waived their emoluments as

FAR - LR2EERERFOME - FEH

follows: HEAR -
Basic salaries, Total
allowances  emoluments
Period during which and other waived by
the emoluments accrued Fees benefits The directors
BEAHE
2R EZHE
PESH R4 H0S He b= Rk
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTT  ARBTR
Executive Directors HITEF
Mr. Qian Yixiang BRREE 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2020
“ZZF-f-B%
“E-ZF+-A=+-H - 1,066 1,066
Ms. Jia Lingxia BAENT 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2020
—ZZF-f-B%
TECEF+ZR=1—H - 853 853
Mr. Zha Saibin EEWLE 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2020
“ZZF-f-B%
“E-EF+ZR=1—H - 853 853
Mr. Qian Zhongming BeREs 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2020
“ZZF-f-B%
o S = - 853 853
Independient Non-executive B /#7178 F
Directors
Mr. Yeung Chi Tat BEELE 1 January 2020 to 5 June 2020
—ZZF-f-B%
ZZ-ZEXATA 10 - 10
Mr. Tang Jianrong BERLE 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2020
—ZZFE-f-B%
e N e = 68 - 68
Mr. Qu Weimin EERTE 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2020
“ZZF-f-B%
ZE2CRETZA=1—H 37 - 37
Total st 115 3,625 3,740
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B # R R Bt = )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHBIN  UARKERHE)

11 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 11 RSEl&€ A+

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, none hEEaMeALTH  BEECAES(ZE
of them are (2019: Nil) director whose emoluments are —NE &) BEOMSRIFE104%EE -
disclosed in note 10. The aggregate of the emoluments in BTRHZ(ZE—NF %) ATHEE
respect of the remaining five (2019: five) individuals are as FET -

follows:

2020 2019
S Iy —=af
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARwTr NCEEE

Salaries and other emoluments Se REMEE 2,974 4,806
Contributions to retirement benefit schemes R /K@ FIET &I ft5K0 255 385
3,229 5,191
The emoluments of the five (2019: five) individuals with the AFH(ZZE—NF: AR &ae AL
highest emoluments are within the following bands: g EmnT
2020 2019
—BCEF —T-NEF
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AE AEK
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ %1,000,000/% 7T 5 3
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 T2
1,500,000/8 7T - 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,0018 702
2,500,000/ 7T - 1
5 5
During both years, no discretionary bonus was paid or RREFEA - AEEILED R ERE
payable by the Group to any of the five highest paid MAEZREMNE ATHEABIBIEL -
individuals.
During both years, no amount was paid or payable by RREFEEAN  NEEWEE MK EMNE
the Group to any of the five highest paid individuals as MABTEMNE ATHEARIE - (EAN
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as BASELMBAEENEZS I IEARE
compensation for loss of office. (e -
There was no arrangement under which any of the five FRN - ENLEEEME A THERRK
highest paid individuals waived or agreed to waive any AEREEMNMESNLZH(ZTE—NF
emolument during the year (2019: Nil). ).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B # R R Bt = )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHBIN  UARKERHE)

12 EARNINGS PER SHARE 12 BRER
(a) Basic earnings per share (a) BRELRZEF
The calculation of basic earnings per share is based BIREARBRTHIRIEAR R AR R E
on the profit attributable to equity shareholders of the R AR #15,824,00070( — 2 — N1
Company of RMB15,824,000 (2019: RMB3,480,000) £ AR¥3,480,0007T) M ERND 31T
and the weighted average of 749,426,000 ordinary I3 A N 39 £0749,426,000% ( =
shares (2019: 749,426,000 ordinary shares) in issue T—NAF 749,426,000 sHE 0T ¢

during the year, calculated as follows:

Weighted average number of ordinary shares EZERMETIGH
2019
—T-NF
‘000
T %
Issued ordinary shares at 1 January R—A—HBETH
el 773,769 773,769
Effect of shares held for share award RIER GO EZEFEIFE N
scheme (note 26) AR H 22 (KHi7E26) (24,343) (24,343)
Weighted average number of ordinary W+ A=+—HBH
shares at 31 December TEAR HIRE 9 8 749,426 749,426
(b) Diluted earnings per share (b) BREBERF
There were no dilutive potential ordinary shares during HE_Z-_ZFR-_FT-NF+A
each of the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, —t+—HLEEFEVEASEEHNE
and therefore, diluted earnings per share is the same as Bk - At SRR HERERR
the basic earnings per share. FAER] ©
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
SRR ML )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHBIN  UARKERHE)

13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13 Y% - BMERRZ®E

Right-of-Use assets
RREEE
Furniture,
fixtures Prepaid
Plant and Motor  and other leasehold  Landand  Plantand
Buildings ~ machinery  vehicles  equipment  Sub-total land buildings  machinery  Sub-total Total
fih - £8 R 1H#R RER
B? HERER AE  REMRE Nt BELH B2 B Nt fa
RMB'00O  RMB000  RMB000  RMB000  RMB000  RMB000  RMB000  RMB'00  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR ARETE ARETR ARMTR ARETR ARETR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARSTR
Cost: A
At1 January 2019 RZZ-NF-A-H 218,971 126,162 7,894 21,937 374,964 42,161 1,361 102,700 146,222 521,186
Addtions HE - 3032 12 4,048 7192 - 3,324 2,1% 5518 12,7110
Disposals e - - (49 287) (739) - - - - (73
Disposals of subsidiaries HENBAR - (39,835) (79 - (39914) (4,720) - (42,739) (47,455) (87,369
A3t December 2019and R E-AEtZA=t-

1 January 2020 AR=E-ZF5-A-A 218971 89,359 478 25,698 341,506 37,441 4,685 62,159 104,285 445,791
Addttions HE = 209 240 1423 1,872 - 484 - 484 2,356
Disposals i (1,274) (€] (2,307 - (3,589) - (949) - (949) (4,538)
At 31 December 2020 W-2-5F

“A=+-R 217,697 89,560 5411 27,121 339,789 37,441 4,220 62,159 103,820 443,609
Accumulated depreciation: ~ Z3f17%
At1 January 2019 RZZ-N§-A-H 78,084 61,831 6,755 17,086 164,256 9728 - 7,781 17,509 181,765
Charge for the year FRTE 9,648 10917 3% 1,330 22,21 1236 1,160 3,041 5437 27,728
Disposals of subsidiaries HEHBAT - (14,273 - - (14,273 (4,146) - (1721) (5,867) (20,140)
At 31 December 2019 and WoE-NE+-B=+-

1 January 2020 Ak=%-%%-F-A 81,132 58,475 7,151 18,916 172,274 6,818 1,160 9,101 17,019 189,353
Charge for the year FRfE 9,589 8916 331 836 19,672 749 813 3,032 4,504 24,266
Written back on disposals HEAD (363) - (2,128) - (2,491) - (949) - (949) (3,440)
At 31 December 2020 RZZZZE

+-A=t-A 96,958 67,391 5,354 19,752 189,455 7,567 1,024 12,133 20,724 210,179
Net ook value: BEFE:
At 31 December 2020 WoZ-%5%

+ZA=t-A 120,739 22,169 57 7,369 150,334 20874 3,196 50,026 83,096 233,430
At 31 December 2019 RZZ-NETZA

=t-A 131,239 30884 327 6,782 169,232 30623 3,525 53,068 87,206 256,438
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

L E S TELNESE )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B>

FEBIN - AARIERTE)

13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(C
(a)

ONTINUED)

Buildings are situated on leasehold land with medium-
term lease of 50 years in the PRC.

(b) As at 31 December 2020, certain buildings with carrying

(c)

(d)

amount of RMB78,292,000 (2019: RMB85,013,000)
have been pledged to bank as security for bank loan
(note 22(c)).

As at 31 December 2020, the group was in the process
of obtaining the property ownership certification in
respect of certain properties located in the PRC with net
book value of RMB29,419,000 (2019: RMB18,099,000).

Prepaid leasehold land

The Group’s land is located in the PRC, and the Group is
granted with land use rights for a period of 50 years. As
at 31 December 2020, the land use rights with carrying
value of RMB29,419,000 (2019: RMB30,157,000) have
been pledged to a bank as security for bank loans (note
22(c)).

13 M5 ~ BMERRE (&)

(@) T EMEE L FHEFAFE0F
FREATEAY

(b) A—E=-_TFE+-_A=+—H K&
BEMRTEAETREEAARE
78,292,000 (ZE—NF : ARM
85,013,00070) KETF - {EREUSIRTT
B (F7E22(c)) °

(c) RAZZ2E=ZZEF+-A=+—8H ' £5E
ERLEAIR R B E TV IR Y 5T
BHEEE ZEVENEERFERAR
#00 419,000 ( ZE—H4F : AR
18,099,0007T) °

(d) FASFHEE L1
AEEBNTHARTE  MAEER
ER+TMERESNE RZITE-Z
F+-A=1+—HB BFHEEABARE
20,419,000 (ZE— & : ARM
30,157,0007T ) H £ 3 5 F # 2 3 5
817 - EABUSIRITE KA T (MY
F22(c)) °
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L : ﬂ NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
BRI )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHBIN  UARKERHE)

14 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 14 REYHE
2020 2019
—E-BF —ENE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTF T AREETF T

Cost: AR :

At 1 January n—A—H 123,277 140,420
Disposals k= (820) (17,143)
At 31 December R+—_A=+—H 122,457 123,277
Accumulated depreciation: REIE

At 1 January n—A—H 19,594 15,609
Charge for the year FAFE 6,035 6,349
Written back on disposals HERF R (196) (2,364)
At 31 December R+—_A=+—H 25,433 19,594
Impairment: BE -

At 1 January n—A—H 2,600 4,236
Written back on disposals HERF R E - (1,636)
At31December . Rt=A=t-H 20 2,600
Net book value: BREFE

At 31 December R+-—A=+—H 94,424 101,083
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B RS R 2R M=t a)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B>

SRS - AAREFHE)

14 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

The Group’s investment properties consist of residential,
commercial and industrial properties situated in the
PRC. Investment properties are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment loss. In
2020, no impairment loss (2019: Nil) was charged to the
statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive
income.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
disposed of certain investment properties with an
aggregate carrying amount of RMB624,000 (2019:
RMB13,143,000) for proceeds of RMB928,000 (2019:
RMB13,493,000) and resulting in a gain on disposal of
RMB304,000 (2019: RMB350,000).

The fair value of the investment properties was
RMB121,358,000 (2019: RMB125,870,000) as at 31
December 2020, which is determined by reference
to comparable sales transactions as available in the
relevant market with adjustments to reflect the condition
and locations of the related properties.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group was in the process
of obtaining the property ownership certificate in respect
of investment properties located in the PRC with net
book value of RMB76,259,000 (2019: RMB94,554,000).

14 REWX(A

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

AEBREYE BN ENETE
BEMTIERYE - ZREWETIAKAN
R REITERBERBRRIR - R=F
—TE - WEREBER(ZT-NF:
&) NEE R A2 IR IR o

HE-_Z-_ZTF+-_A=+—HL*F
B ALEHEETERLEAAR
624,000 (ZFE—NF : AR
13,143,0007T ) K I A M LAEB TS
HIEARK928,000TL(ZE—NF :
AR #13,493,0007T) * I &5 H & U
= AR #304,000c(ZFE—NF - A
R #350,0007T) °

RIZE-TE+-A=+—H Z5K
EMENDNFERARE121,358,000
T(ZZE—NF : AR#125,870,000
L) BEAFENZERBHISAE
FAE L REER S (EFHE)BET
VA = BR AR 28 10 2E A9 AR L K b B

RZB_EF+-_A=+—H K&EE
IEBLEMI R R BRI E Y EPIRY T
BHEERE ZEMENEEFERAR
176,259,000 ( ZE—HF : AR
94,554,0007T ) ©
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B # R R Bt = )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHBIN  UARKERHE)

15 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 5 BLEE
Software Trademarks Total
B [k et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFIT ARETIT ARETIT
Cost: AR :
At 1 January 2019 R-Z—hhF—HA—H 1,380 5,466 6,846
Written off s (327) - 327)
Exchange adjustments [& 5 - (24) (24)
At 31 December 2019 RZZE—NE&E
and 1 January 2020 +=A E—i—* =
MZZ-FF—H—H 1,053 5,442 6,495
Written off iz = (3,100) (3,100)
Exchange adjustments P& 5 - 117 117
At 31 December 2020 RZEZTF
+=-A=+—H 1,053 2,459 3,512
Accumulated amortisation: Sty
At 1 January 2019 R-ZZE—hF—A—H 748 3,284 4,032
Written off HEH (327) - (327)
Charge for the year FAEH 126 667 793
At 31 December 2019 RZZE—NF
and 1 January 2020 +=—A=+—H
rZZE_ZTF—HF—H 547 3,951 4,498
Written off s = (2,538) (2,538)
Charge for the year FNEH 153 130 283
Exchange adjustments & H - 56 56
At 31 December 2020 RZZEZTF
L T=A=t—R m 159 2,299
Net book value: BREFE -
At 31 December 2020 RZZBE-ZF
+-—A=+—H” 353 860 1,213
At 31 December 2019 RZT—NF
+=-—A=+—H 506 1,491 1,997
The amortisation charge for the year is included in FREHE DT ARGEEGEEMEZEK
“administrative and other operating expenses” in the HmRITTBRMEMEERST IR -

consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B RS R 2R M=t a)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHBIN  UARKERHE)

16 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 16 RIBATIHNIKRE

The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries
in 2020 and 2019 which principally affected the results,
assets or liabilities of the Group. The class of shares held is

ordinary unless otherwise stated.

TRESHIN _ZT_ZBFR_ZE-NFY
AEBEXE  BEXABEFERZENN
BRENFEE - BRABHAIN - PR
BRI E A

Proportion of
equity interest

Place of Particulars of attributable to the
incorporation/ issued and Company
establishment fully paid-up AR A RSB RE LA
Name of company and operation capital Direct Indirect Principal activities
SR AR SL B 3z ERTREE
DNEER R B BEARNFEE ;3 SiE S TEEHK
Cheering Success Holdings Limited BVI/Hong Kong 1,000 shares of 100% - Investment holding
FRECZERR B R A ] RERELHE/ US$1 each REER
£ 1,000/ &AL E
1 TR
Power Investment (H.K.) Hong Kong 100,000 shares or - 100% Investment holding
Limited 5 HK$100,000 REER
BERE(FB)ERAA 100,000
5100,000757T
Boer Energy Jiangsu Co., Ltd.* PRC RMB43,350,000 - 60% Provision of energy
(note (i) i AR efficiency solutions
BEARTIEAR AT () 43,350,0007T RULE TR
Boer Wuxi (note (i) PRC US$71,000,000 - 100% Design, manufacture
B H 5 (P EEG)) i 71,000,000% 7T and sale of electrical
distribution equipment
it BUER
HERERE
Boer (Yixing) Power System PRC US$16,250,000 - 100% Design, manufacture
Co., Ltd.* (“Boer Yixing”) (note (i) & 16,250,000 7T and sale of electrical
HH(ER)ENKEBRAR] distribution equipment
(MEEE R ) (FIFE() AT BUER
HERBRE
Yixing Boai Automation Complete Sets PRC RMB110,000,000 - 100% Design, manufacture
of Equipment Co., Ltd.* (“Yixing i AR and sale of electrical
Boai”) (note (i) 110,000,0007T distribution equipment
HEBYEBELRERR Rt~ BUER
BRAR(TERFEN]) HERERE
(PREEG)
Wuxi Boer Photovoltaic PRC RMB4,000,000 - 60% Development, manufacture
Technology Co., Ltd.* (note (i) s AR and sale of photovoltaic
EHEERRRRBRAF 4,000,0007T products
(BT = (i) R RER
HEHRRER
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B # R R Bt = )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHBIN  UARKERHE)

16 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 16 RMTBATIMNKRE(E)

(CONTINUED)

Proportion of
equity interest

Place of Particulars of attributable to the
incorporation/ issued and Company
establishment fully paid-up AR RS BRAELL B
Name of company and operation capital Direct Indirect Principal activities
SRR SL, B 32 ERTRAR
NCIEE: Rt 2 BEARNFHE B B FTEEK
Boer Cloud Technology PRC HK$5,983,725 - 100% Provision of energy
Company Limited.* (note (ii)) ey 5,983,725/ 7T efficiency solutions
BEERHRAR R TP E) RESHETE
Boer Wuxi Tezhong Electrical PRC RMB60,000,000 - 100% Design, manufacture and
Capacitor Co., Ltd.* (note (i) # AR sale of capacitors
BHESFEENERRE 60,000,0007T R BER
=SNG E () HEERS
Boer Electric Sales PRC US$8,000,000 - 100% Trading of electrical
(China) Co., Ltd.* (note () # 8,000,0003 ¢ distribution equipment
BEERHEE(PE) fERBES
BRA B ()
Sydenham (Wuxi) PRC US$8,000,000 - 100% Manufacture and sale of
Switch Co., Ltd.* (note (i) H 8,000,000 7T components and spare
EEH (RS R parts
BRAT(BIFE) BERIHETHEREH
Boer (Shanghai) Switch PRC RMB35,000,000 - 100% Manufacture and sale of
Apparatus Co., Ltd.* # AR® components and spare
(note (i) 35,000,0007T parts
BE(LE)ERFREERAR HERHETHREMN
(PR ()
Temper Energy International, Spain 1,317,235 shares - 100% Trading of components
S.L. (“Temper Energy”) isgli of EURS.1 each and spare parts
Temper Energy International, 1,317,235 F A% THEEHEE
S.L.([Temper Energy]) E{E3 1B TRIAR (D
Boer (Wuxi) Software Technology PRC HK$50,000,000 - 100% Development and
Limited* (note (i)) ey 50,000,000/ 7T sale of software
BE (&) MR AR AR R E M
(PFE®)
Notes: Hiat -
()  These entities are wholly foreign owned enterprises established in () ZEERARPERIMNERETIIEBED
the PRC with limited liability. o
(i)  These entities are limited companies established in the PRC. (i) ZEEBARFBKINEREEAF -

The English translation of the company names is for reference only.
The official names of these companies are in Chinese.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

L E S TELNESE )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHBIN  UARKERHE)

17 DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

17 HE—REREB AT

As stated in note 8(b), during the year ended 31 December
2020, the Group disposed of its 80.1% of the equity interest
in a subsidiary which was set up for an EPC project in the
PRC. The net assets of Anda Zhongcheng on the date of

s Tt - HE-_ZE_FF+_A
Zt+—BLFE AEBEHEHEN MK
B R RIHB0.1% A% - FZM B AR AR E
3 ZEPCIEE AR - ZEFRHANEER

disposal were as follows: HWEEFENT :
RMB’000
ARET T
Other receivables HAbfEUGRIA 40,615
Contract costs NN 369,577
Trade and other payables JERTE 5 R EA AR (390,220)
Net asset value BEFAE 19,972
80.1% of net asset value EEFEMNS0.1% 15,998
Gain on disposal WS -
Total consideration RERE 15,998
Total consideration satisfied by: ARSI EBEE
- cash —B& 3,262
— setting off consideration by way of —bLFEH K EERE
capital injection 12,736
Net cash infow arising on disposal: HEEEMNRESRAFE
Cash consideration HeRE 3,262
Note: Upon disposal, the Group’s remaining 19.9% of equity interest is Bt - M E%R » REEEGT19.9%RERNQF
at fair value of RMB3,980,000 and is classified as a financial asset. BA AR%3080,0007T * WHEAESR
Soon after disposal, as part of the equity transfer agreement, BE NEER FAREEEGENE
both shareholders made capital injections of RMB64,000,000 fh—En  BHREREEIZE S ELR
in total based on their share of equity interest. As a result, the BEEHTE A £ AR ®64,000,0007T ©
Group made a capital injection of RMB12,736,000 and its 19.9% o KEEELRTE AR 12,736,000
of equity interest increased to RMB16,716,000 at fair value. Such TC - MEA19.9%REN A FEEMNEARE
financial asset is not held for collecting contractual cash flows, of 16,716,0007C ° &% & @A EWIEAMEER
no contractual terms which give rise on specified dates to cash RerneamEs  HESRGEZ2NEER
flows, and therefore measured at fair value through profit or loss HEAESLRE  AMEAFETAEZRET
(see note 29(e)). 2(RMFE2906)) ©
18 INVENTORIES 18 &
(a) Inventories in the consolidated statement of (a) ZEMBRARANEERSRE :
financial position comprise:
2020 2019
—B-EF —ZE-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARETT

Raw materials R 32,980 38,625
Work in progress RS 61,091 51,215
Finished goods LAY M 44,859 39,091

138,930 128,931
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
SRR ML )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHBIN  UARKERHE)

18 INVENTORIES (CONTINUED) 18 EE(4&)

(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories (b) BRAIHITTABRNEFESHE
recognised as an expense and included in ST
profit or loss is as follows:

2020 2019

—EERF —Z—h&F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARETIT

Carrying amount of inventories sold BEEFENREE 566,564 515,595
Write down of inventories FEMRE (901) 4)

565,663 515,591

19 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 19 BWE S REMIRRK

2020 2019

et St i —ENF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARETIT

Trade receivables (gross) JEWE SR ABER 2,324,317 2,366,027
Less: allowance for impairment losses B ORBEEERE (1,784,134) (1,894,734)

Trade receivables (net) FEWE S IRFFEE 540,183 471,293

Bills receivable* e E 5,835 6,932

Prepayments, deposits and JENZIE e R

other receivables H b e R I8 57,481 114,848

603,499 593,073
* Bills receivable represent bank acceptance bills in the PRC which * FEZEiE i N T E A EM 2 E R EEEF

are measured at FVOCI (see note 29(e)). SRITAGLZEE (R MWE29(6)) °

(a) FEWE 3 R RER 247
BEZ2WMPKR - BRE BIRFERE D
(B ERE A B RNEREEREE)

(a) Ageing analysis of trade receivables

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis
of trade receivables based on the invoice date and net

of allowance for impairment losses, is as follows: FORNE
2020 2019
Sy =
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETTT
Within 3 months TR=1EA 201,419 288,287
Over 3 months but within 6 months HBid=1EAETENEAR 95,205 50,205
Over 6 months but within 1 year HBiENERERNE—F 209,153 35,286
Over 1 year Bl —F 34,406 97,515
At 31 December WR+—A=+—H 540,183 471,293
The Group generally grants a credit period of 30 days to AREHE -BAEEZPIETIOEHNEE
its customers. HY
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B # R R Bt = )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHBIN  UARKERHE)

19 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 19 BIRE 5 R H MR (&)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Impairment of trade receivables (b) EWE ZRFHBEE
Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables are FEWE SRR R EEE AR EER
recorded using an allowance account unless the Group is 8 - BRIEREBEHN T AR aeU A 7
satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote, in which FOEAIERIGR - FELIBRT » BIREE
case the impairment loss is written off against trade B E R EENE SR -

receivables directly.

The movements in the impairment allowance are as WEREZESHNT -
follows:

2020 2019
—E-EHF —ZT-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AREBFIT

At 1 January w—H—H 1,894,734 1,905,641
Reversal of impairment losses RO EEE (55,392) -
Uncollectible amounts written off g - AT Y B 4 58 (55,208) (10,907)
At 31 December w+—_A=+—H 1,784,134 1,894,734
20 CONTRACT COSTS 20 EHIEA
Costs directly related to fulfil the contracts with customers HETHEPEITAYEEMBBENKAT
are capitalised as they have generated or enhanced B - ThE R B BEKAD E g
resources of the Group that will be used in satisfying AEBRKEAREKBHETNER -
performance obligations in the future, and the Group MANEBEFEEN BB ARSIk OE
expects to recover such costs when the related revenue is RARKAN o
recognised.

2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NEF

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBT T

EPC contract EPCA A
— Current —iRE) - 356,392
— Non-current* —FEmEN 1,104 35,099
1,104 391,491

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amount of the contract costs
was tested for impairment by the Group, and it is expected the
carrying amount of the contract costs would exceed the amount of
the consideration that the Group expected to receive. As such, the
Group recorded impairment losses of RMB48,161,000 on contract
costs. The impairment loss was mainly due to a customer withdrew
from the Group’s overseas EPC project. The Group has been
actively looking for a new customer since the withdrawal of that
customer, but the progress of locating a new customer has been
affected by the COVID-19 pandemic and the uncertainty of the
global economic environment.

ATE-TFE+-RB=+—H  REBEHAD
RARMREEETRENR  WEHEHOKER
MIRE(EBBEAEEEHRENRESE -
At - AEEBFEEOKNEANBEBBARE
48,161,0007T * JBEBEEEZHRTFREA
EEMNEINIEPCIEE - BEFPELE - K&
SE-HEBGYEHES  BENETEFH
R ERZITIA LS &2 B EIRIE T
%.%ws°
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

g EL e )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHBIN  UARKERHE)

21 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
(a) Cash and cash equivalents are cash at bank

21 RERRSEEY
() RERREZENRRITRFER
&

and in hand
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARETIT
Cash and bank balances* Be RIRTT4E 224,197 221,283
Less: Pledged deposits*™ B BEIRE R (184,331) (152,404)
Cash and cash equivalents B MRSSEY 39,866 68,879

* As 31 December 2020, the cash and bank balances of the
Group denominated in RMB amounted to RMB220,311,000
(2019: RMB221,010,000). Remittance of the RMB funds out
of the PRC is subject to the restrictions under the Foreign

Exchange Control Regulations of the PRC.

ok

quality guarantee issued to customers.

(b) Reconciliation of pledged deposits to the
consolidated statement of financial position:

Bank deposits have been pledged to banks for bank loans
(note 22(c)), bank acceptance bills issued to suppliers and

*ORZFIBFFT_A=1+—A AKE
UARBTENES RIBTESHABAR
#020,311,0007C( Z B — I FE : AR
221,010,0007T) ° [A) R BIIRHNE H AR
KE & /AP BISNE B IR G016 R HIFT AR
MR o

= RITERANERIRITER (FEE22()
AEERELNRITEERERATFE
HEVE SR o

b) BEMBEFTREAESHHERRERY
BE :

2020 2019
—F-%F —

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTF T ARBTTT

Current assets MENEE 154,331 162,404
Non-current assets ERBEE 30,000 -
184,331 152,404

BOER POWER HOLDINGS LIMITED BEEHERBRAE
—Z-FFFR  Annual Report 2020



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

L E S TELNESE )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHBIN  UARKERHE)

21 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
(CONTINUED)

(c) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to

cash generated from operations:

21 RERBRELEEBY(E

(c) BRBIANERRELEREENREN
HiR -

2020 2019
gt 22 —T-hEF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt e AR¥T T ARET T
Profit before taxation BRA AT ) 42,846 6,884
Adjustments for: FETOSIEMEL A -
— Change in financial assets —RAFEFAER
at FVTPL HERMEESY 7 (1,239) (1,462)
— Amortisation of intangible assets —EREEY 8(a)iii) 283 793
— Depreciation —E 8(a)iii) 30,301 34,077
— Finance costs UL DTN 8(a)() 35,964 42,538
— Interest income from financial —RE & RHER
institutions FEMA 7 (963) ©11)
— Net gain on disposal of property, —HEDE  BEM
plant and equipment RENE
FEE 7 (991) (254)
- Net gain on disposal of investment ~ — HEREWER
properties RS 7 (304) (350)
— Net foreign exchange —HMNEEE,
loss/(gain) (Yozs ) F 48 12,367 (5,535)
- Reversal of impairment loss on —GFEREEBEREE
inventories (901) ()
— Profit appropriation — o = 486
— Share of gain of an associate —JE(HEEE N A
&5 7 - )
— Gain on disposal of subsidiaries —HEMNBARE 7 - (4,029)
— Written off of intangible assets —MsHEEEE 562 -
— Reversal of impairment losses for —EWRE S REM
trade and other receivables RRBREERE
el 19(b) 55,392 -
— Impairment losses on contract costs ~ — & 4IRS HY R E
E1a 8(a)(i) 48,161 -
— Impairment losses on interestinan ~ — A —FEE S A AIHY
associate EREREE 7 551 -
Changes in working capital: HiEE LB
- Increase in inventories —FEEN (9,098) (23,542)
— (Increase)/decrease in trade and —EWE 5 KEM
other receivables BRFR (),
DA (106,433) 335,019
— Increase in trade and other —ENE S KHEA
payables BRI 257,845 124,274
— Payment for acquisition of contract ~ — UZB&& #IB AR
costs (EN (29,726) (370,825)
Cash generated from operations KEEERS 334,617 137,454
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B # R R Bt = )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHBIN  UARKERHE)

21 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 21 RERRESEEN(E
(CONTINUED)
(d) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (d) EEBHELNEEYHR
financing activities
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities &= =Lt
from financing activities, including both cash and non- %ﬁ iﬁﬁiﬁgﬁégg%igﬁﬁg
cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities ErMAaBEAEA e AR RE
are liabilities for which cash flows were, or future cash H%E/\\$;%ﬁ/a\fﬁ$;ﬁj§%%ﬁ%@§
flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated cash iﬁiﬁéiﬂ’\]ﬁﬁ?ﬁ%z@ N
flow statement as cash flows from financing activities. -
Amounts
due to
related
Borrowings  Lease liabilities parties Total
Lol

fe& HERR  BEAAR it
RMB'000 RMBOO0  RMBOO0  RMBO0O
ARBTR  AR®Tn ARMTR  ARRTR

(note 22) (note 24)
(z22) (Hyst24)

At1 January 2019 R-E-nE-B-H 694,893 94,508 384,266 1,173,667
Changes from financing cash flows: vﬂﬁﬁﬁumsﬁﬁl 1
Proceeds from borrowings [EEpEsE 756,218 - - 796,213
Repayment of borrowings EElEE (707,267) - - (707,267)
Repayment of lease liablities [EEREaE - (15,087) - (15,087)
Advance from related parties BEnai - - 94,035 94,035
Repayment of advance from related parties [ERER2 - - (17,012) (77.012)
lodchngesfomfrancrgeafons  BAREREREEE AT 0 I s N
Exchange adjustments EjigE - (1) 4,045 4,044
Other changes: :
Increase in lease liabltes from entering into new leases ST U HEEMEMAEERE

during the period - 5518 - 5518
Finance charges on lease liabiities (note 8(a)]) HERERAER(H8a)) - 5973 - 5978
Disposal of subsidiaries =N - (42,697) - (42,697)
Tootercherges A AREeR L - e
At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 RZE-NETZA=+-BR

“2°%%-5-R 743,839 48,214 405,334 1,197,387

Changes from financing cash flows: HERERESE.
Proceeds from borrowings EEMETE 802,090 - - 802.090
Repayment of borrowings EElts (962,285) - - (962,285)
Repayment of lease liablties [BEhEaR - (5,102 = (5,102)
Repayment of advance from related parties BREEIB - - (138,532) (138,532)
Total changes from financing cash flows BERL RS EENE (160,195) (5,102) (138,532) (303,829)
Other changes: Ht2E
Increase In lease liabtes from entering info new leases BT RTINS

during the period - 484 - 484
Finance charges on lease liabites (note 8(a)f) HEEERHEER(Hiea)) - 3,430 - 3,430
Towohercranges ReEERE S R - 0
At 31 December 2020 R-E_EE+-A=1-H 583,644 47,06 266,802 897,472
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
SRR ML )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B>

FEBIN - AARIERTE)

22 BORROWINGS

(a)

(b)

(c)

As of the reporting period, the analysis of the
carrying amount of borrowings is as follows:

22 &8
m)géiﬁ%$7ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁw

2020 2019
=B85 —TNF

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTF T ARBTTT

Bank loans IRITER
— secured —BHEHE 550,380 432,900
— unsecured — 3 33,264 254,939
Secured entrusted loans BEMETERK - 56,000
583,644 743,839
As of the reporting period, borrowings were (b) BESHEBK  EEEEEWT :

repayable as follows:

2020 2019
—F-%F —TNEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTF T ARBTTT

Within 1 year or on demand —FARSIRER 390,631 743,839
After 1 year but within 2 years —FRIEMFA 41,100 -
After 2 years but within 5 years WMEREBEBRFA 151,913 -
583,644 743,839
As of the end of the reporting period, (c) BEZ2HMKR  BEHUTEEE

borrowings were secured by the following
assets:

IR

2020 2019
—E-%F — i

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARETT

Property, plant and equipment WE - BE MR
(note 13(b)) (BE13(0)) 78,292 85,013
Lease prepayments (note 13(d)) FENAERE
(BF#E13(d)) 29,419 30,157
Pledged deposits (note 21(a)) EIRF R (FEE21(0) 120,000 90,000
227,711 205,170

At 31 December 2020, the effective interest rates of the
borrowings of the Group were in the range from 1.5% to
10.8% per annum (2019: range from 2.0% to 9.0% per
annum).

R-EBE-_ZTE+-_A=+—0 " K
SEHEEMNEEFFENF15%E
10.8%(—ZE—NF : BFENT2.0%%E
9.0%) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B RS R 2R M=t a)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHBIN  UARKERHE)

23 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 23

BN E S R EAIRK

2020 2019

—_ 7 —= ﬂE :g_j_lzfﬁ
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARETT

Trade payables FERTE SRR 158,498 342,533
Bills payable T 165,812 77,125
Trade and bills payables JENE SRR REE 324,310 419,658
Receipts in advance Bl A 3,372 584
Other payables and accruals HAb TR R EET B R 51,290 91,105

378,972 511,347

All of the trade and other payables are expected to be
settled within one year.

Receipts in advance at 1 January 2020 had been fully
recognised as revenue in 2020 and its balance as at 31
December 2020 is expected to be recognised as revenue
within the 12 months after the reporting date.

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of
trade and bills payables is as follows:

FIBRMNE S REMERRERRN —FRE

=E
/B °

RIE-_ZF— A —HNBRZKEBEERZ
ECRFEREERANE  MERZ-ZZ
EFE+-A=+—HWAHTESHNEREE
g 1218 A TR A o

RERBR - BHEIRALEEHERER
DT -

2020 2019
—B-FF —E-NF

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTT

Due within 1 month or on demand — (@ B AR HIE IR E Sk 203,982 304,746
Due after 1 month but within 3 months —{@ A& E=18 AR5 44,607 46,262
Due after 3 months but within 6 months =B A&E7E AR EE 75,721 68,650

324,310 419,658
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
SRR ML )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B>

FEBIN - AARIERTE)

24 LEASE LIABILITIES
(a) Movement of lease liabilities is as follows:

24 HEAE

(a) HESBEZZBHUWT :

Land and Plant and
buildings machinery Total
THREF RERBEESE #Et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFTT AREFTT ARETT
Lease liabilities HESE
At 1 January 2019 RZZE—NF—H—H 1,361 93,147 94,508
Additions NG 3,324 2,194 5,518
Disposal of subsidiaries HEKEB AR - (42,697) (42,697)
Interest expense FEXH 263 5,710 5,973
Repayment of lease liabilities BEHEaE (1,348) (13,739) (15,087)
Exchange alignments bE 5 AR - (1) (1)
At 31 December 2019 and RZZTE—hF
1 January 2020 +—A=+—8xK
= S = 3,600 44,614 48,214
Additions NE 484 - 484
Interest expense FEXH 225 3,205 3,430
Repayment of lease liabilities BEHEaE (999) (4,103) (5,102)
At 31 December RZEZTF
2020 +—-—A=+—H 3,310 43,716 47,026
(b) Reconciliation to the consolidated statement (b) BEREREMBARRRERAT ¢
of financial position is as follows:
2020 2019
gt 222 —T-hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
Current liabilities MENEE 10,801 1,459
Non-current liabilities MBI AE 36,225 46,755
47,026 48,214
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Lt . ﬂ NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
SRR ML )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHBIN  UARKERHE)

24 LEASE LIABILITIES (CONTINUED) 24 HEEE(E
(c) Minimum lease payments are due as follows: (c) RIEHEREZNHBEROT :

Minimum
lease Present
payments Interest value

REEERE FR B
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AREBTE  ARETT AR®TRH

At 31 December 2020 R-B-ZEF+=-A
=+-8
Within 1 year —FR 13,933 3,132 10,801
After 1 year but within 2 years —FREMER 18,307 2,059 16,248
After 2 years but within 5 years MERERER 18,959 1,128 17,831
After 5 years HFE 2,693 547 2,146
53,892 6,866 47,026
Minimum
lease Present
payments Interest value
RIEAERIE & BE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT ARETT
At 31 December 2019 R-SB—hE
+=A=+-A
Within 1 year —FR 4,860 3,401 1,459
Atter 1 year but within 2 years —FREMEA 13,670 3,120 10,550
After 2 years but within 5 years MERERFR 36,907 3,049 33,858
After 5 years HF% 3,030 683 2,347

58,467 10,253 48,214
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

L E S TELNESE )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHBIN  UARKERHE)

25 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Defined contribution retirement plans

Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations in the
PRC, the PRC subsidiaries of the Company participate
in a defined contribution retirement benefit scheme (the
“Scheme”) organised by the PRC municipal government
authorities whereby these PRC subsidiaries are required to
make a contribution at rates from 19% to 20% (2019: 19%
to 20%) of the eligible employees’ salaries to the Scheme.
The Group has accrued for the required contributions which
are remitted to the respective social security offices when
the contributions become due. The social security offices are
responsible for making the benefit payments to the retired
employees covered under the Scheme.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (“MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees
employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined
contribution retirement scheme administered by independent
trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its
employees are each required to make contributions to the
plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a
cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000. Contributions
to the plan vest immediately.

The employees under the Group’s Spanish subsidiary
are regulated by law to participate in the State Pension
Scheme. The State Pension Scheme is part of the social
security system in Spain which is governed by the Ministry of
Employment and Social Security of the Spanish Government.
The Group and the employees are required to make
mandatory contributions towards the State Pension Scheme
at rates of 23.6% and 4.7% (2019: 23.6% and 4.7%),
respectively, of the employee’s relevant income, subject to
a cap of monthly relevant income of EUR4,070.10 (2019:
EUR4,070.10). The minimum contribution period to qualify
for the retirement benefit is 15 years, with a full pension
attainable after 37 years and 3 months years (2019: 35 years
and 5 months) of contribution.

The Group has no other material obligation for the payment
of pension benefits beyond the contributions described
above.

25 EERIKEF

REMFEMNRETE

BRI B R & TR A RSAA - AR AFH
FEMBAREZLMAPETRTE BK
SRR TE R EFIFTE([ZEHE) -
Bt - ZEHENBARAESERES
HE19%ZE20%(ZZF—NF 1 19%Z20%)
MFZFTEE R HER - AEE S R EREIHE
BrSdeRERSNERMNOER - 1
SREREEERZTERE THRKES
SER] o

REETREE B8 M AE S EHED
BEXEBERBEHEENESRMHEHIE
NIESFTE([aTE25TE]) - BFESFTE
BHBYZEATENRERIERT
gl o RiFRESHE EXRHEESE
ARFEMER - EREREEEBAKAN
5% @ MENSHE RS A HE R U A 30,0004 7T
B _EBR o mogiE e F EIE L KA &
BEBAL -

REBRFEILTHIE R RMEBIREDIR
E2HBEFENRESEE - BRERSF S
ABEBRTFHLSREEZNES 5D - A
MERTSREBLAMTBITEE - A
SEREEBEFRABFERKRSEEEGI1E
H - HPES R AREE B BIRAR23.6%
R47%(ZF—NF : 23.6%K%4.7%) * M
TNMSEBEABBERA4,070.10 T (=
— L : 4,070.10807T) &9 EBR © FFEIRIK
BN REERRFEAEI5F - RHERI7TE
Z3EA(ZZE—NGF : 35FZF5(HF)1&A]
S 2EERE °

AREERR EXFTB HERIN - RBIRER
MRS ELELBERNEL
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B # R R Bt = )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHBIN  UARKERHE)

26 SHARE AWARD SCHEME 26 KRR EEt &l

Pursuant to a resolution of the Board of Directors (the BlE_ZT——FAt+tH=EZg([E=
“Board”) meeting dated 17 June 2011, the Board approved FgHERMNAER  ESSHEFEARND
the adoption of a share award scheme (the “Share Award BT &I ([ B 2B =TS ]) - Bt - AR
Scheme”) under which shares of the Company may be AR AT IRBEEIETE TIEETPHNES -
awarded to selected employees in accordance with its Rtn Bt 2 A EERIE — 2 —— % XA
provisions. The Share Award Scheme operates for 10 years T+ BERBABTF - RIERMDREEF B
starting from 17 June 2011. The maximum number of shares TEEFEENERSBRMHER TS HBARK
which may be awarded to any selected employee under the WHEIE TR EI1% » BN7,781,2500% %
Share Award Scheme shall not exceed 1% of the issued e

shares as at the adoption date (being 7,781,250 shares).

A trust has been set up and fully funded by the Company for AABERIL—IBEF  WHZETLEH
the purpose of purchasing, administrating and holding the HE - EE - EBLMEEAERGNDEE
Company’s shares for the Share Award Scheme. The total FPEIMARRRIR G o AR5 2E)
number of shares purchased by the trustee under the Share SEBENRMAETSBBREMBED
Award Scheme must not exceed 10% of the issued shares BIRME10% R E—NFR T
as at the adoption date. As at 31 December 2019 and 2020, ZF+ZA=1+—H ' ZFEARKD IR
the trustee held 24,343,000 shares under the Share Award 512135 524,343,000 & 15 - (5 AR RIE
Scheme, representing approximately 3.15% of the issued BEITIRARLY3.15% ©

share capital of the Company.

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, no BT -_TFrKR=_ZT—LF+=A
shares were granted to any employees of the Group. =T—HIEFERN  SEAARNEETAE
BEERG -
27 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 27 FEMBMRRPAIFAEH
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(a) Current taxation in the consolidated (a) SREFBARREZFHENHBIIEL !

statement of financial position represents:

2020 2019
—EZEF —T-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETIT

Provision for PRC income tax [ P 1S T B 408 10,943
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B # R R Bt = )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B>

27 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED

FLERHN -

AAREEHE)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(CONTINUED)

(b) Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised:
(i) Movement of each component of deferred tax

assets and liabilities

The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities)
recognised in the consolidated statement of

27 GEMBRRKRPHOFES (A

(b) ERAELEHEEE (BE)

() EEHREEERSESERINE
ol
FREREREMBEARK R
EERBEE (BB B LED

financial position and the movements during the N
year are as follows:
Provision for Unrealised
impairment profitsof  Fair value
Withholding oftrade  Write-down intragroup adjustments  Accrued  Taxlosses
Deferred tax arising from: tax  receivables of inventories sales  ofassefs  expenses  recognised Total
fEhES SERAR
BiAE BHENA EEh BB
ELEERE: BE BE  FEHR  BREA NVERRE O EHEX BEEE it
RVMBOOO  RMBOO0  RMBOOO  RMBOO0  RMBOOO  RWBOOO  RMBOO0  RMB'O0O
ARETT  ARETT  ARMTR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETn  ARETR  ARETR
A1 January 2019 R5-1F-A-H 158,080 688 3010 (1,408 1284 013 U517
Credtedcharged) to ERH D/ (HR)
proftorloss (note 9g) (H59m) (4925) - (688) 2009 1408 (1,234 (6,004) (11,434)
At 31 December 2019 and ik
1 January 2020 tZA=+-Bk
“E-ZF-f-8 (4925 158980 - 5019 - - 34,009 193,083
Credted{charged) to ERH A/ (HB)
proft or loss note 9) (759 1809 (1589 - (4824 - - (e (49
At 31 December R-E-E
200 2Bzt (B416) 143,082 - 1% - - 9054 149665
(i) Reconciliation to the consolidated statement (i) BELZREHBRRREIR
of financial position
2020 2019
—B-EF —ZE-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREBTT
Deferred tax assets FETR B E = 152,801 198,008
Deferred tax liabilities FEFIBEE (3,116) (4,925)
149,685 193,083
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

L E S TELNESE )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHBIN  UARKERHE)

27 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(CONTINUED)

(c)

(d)

Deferred tax liabilities not recognised

As at 31 December 2020, deferred tax liabilities
in respect of temporary differences relating to
undistributed profits of RMB1,660,341,000 (2019:
RMB1,655,486,000) were not recognised as the
Company controls the dividend policy of these
subsidiaries and it has been determined that those
profits will not be distributed in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets not recognised

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note
4(n), the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets
of RMB29,394,000 (2019: RMB7,154,000) in respect
cumulative tax losses as it is not probable that future
taxable profits against which the losses can be utilised
will be available in the relevant tax jurisdiction and entity.
All of these tax losses will expire within 5 years under the
current tax legislation.

BOER POWER HOLDINGS LIMITED BEEHERBRAE
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27 ZEMBARRKRP OGS (A)

(c) REERBWIELEHR AL E

RZE_ZEF+-_A=+—08  EBz%
Ko BHFIAREE,660,341,0007T( =
T—NEFE - AR¥E1,655,486,0007T)F
AT EENECHEA BLARERE
R RAEARARRHESZSHE AR
REECR - WRAZERHERTERR
RAGHEITDIR ©

AERWELERIEEE
RIEMTE AN FTE S TR - A%
B AR R R IEEIBERELERTEE
EARMED29 39400070 (ZF— H &
AR#7,154,00070) @ [RAR HERIE
ATTS Rl ARE R N B B IE1S 1] AR 2R 40
E BRI ERBUE MM ATRE L T K © 1R
BIRITRISED - FrE S HIEEER
RAEFRIIE -




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B # R R Bt = )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHBIN  UARKERHE)

28 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(@) Movements in components of equity

28 EX - HERKRE
(a) =D HIB
AEEE D5 RN EIY R ERH
WEESH NG A RERER - AAFER

The reconciliation between the opening and closing
balances of each component of the Group’s

consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated IS D N EYE F RN EFFIEET
statement of changes in equity. Details of the changes mr
in the Company’s individual components of equity
between the beginning and the end of the year are set
out below:
The Company /N |
Shares Employee
held for share-based Capital
Share  share award Share compensation redemption  Exchange Retained
capital ~ scheme  premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total
RERH HRH
ELRE] XfitEE  EARD
k& BENERE  ROER HeRkb fiff  EXRE  REEA &3t
RMB'0O0  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB00O0  RVMB'000  RMBOO0  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARBTR ARMTT  ARETR ARETR ARBTR ARETR  ARMTR
At 1 January 2019 RZE-NE-A-A 66,010 (100,121) 20,710 1,505 3n @960 135348 81,859
Loss for he year ERnEig - - - - - - 6288 (6289
Other comprehensive inoome Ep2mka - - - - - 564 - 564
Total comprehensive income ERzElE
forthe year k] - - - - - 564 (6,268) (,724)
At 31 December 2019 and RE-NF
1 January 2020 t-A=Z+-8k
“5255-5-H 66,010  (100,121) 2,710 1,505 312 (41,306) 129,055 76,135
Loss for the year ERnEig - - - - - (2068 (1087 (3159)
Total comprehensive income ERcElE
forthe year e - - - - - (2068 (1087 (3,159)
At 31 December R-%2-%
2020 +-A=1-F 66,010 (100,121) 20,710 1,505 312 (43464 127,968 72,980

BEEHZERABER LT BOER POWER HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2020 — = — T4



146
7’

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B # R R Bt = )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHBIN  UARKERHE)

28 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 28 B~ RERKRE (&)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Dividends (b) RE

The Board does not recommend the payment of any
final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2020

EEQUTEBUBE_T_FTF+—
A=+t — A LFEIRMERRARE

(2019: Nil). (Z2—h&F |) -
(c) Share capital (c) B
Details of authorised and issued share capital are as FEERBEBEITIRAFIBOT ¢
follows:
2020 2019
—ECEF —ZT-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F T AREFIT
Authorised: JETE
2,000,000,000 shares of 2,000,000,0000%
HK$0.1 each HRREEO. 1T H, 200,000 200,000
Par Number of Nominal value of
value shares ordinary shares
HE RAHE ZEREE
HKS$ ‘000 HK$’000 RMB’000
BT TR TExT ARETT
Issued and fully paid: EETRHE -
At 31 December 2019 and RZE—NF
31 December 2020 +=—A=1+—H8xK
—E-EF
+=-—A=+—H 0.10 773,769 77,377 66,010
(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (d) FBEHHEERAZR

(i) Share premium

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands,
the share premium account of the Company may
be applied for payment of distributions or dividends
to shareholders provided that immediately following
the date on which the distribution or dividend is
proposed to be paid, the Company is able to pay
its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.

(ii) Shares held for share award scheme

Shares held for share award scheme comprised
shares purchased and held which will be awarded
to selected employees in accordance with share
award scheme.
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—Z-FFFR  Annual Report 2020

(@

(i)

Rt {8

REFEBHERRE - ARABRND
i (B B AT R A AR S AN 0 TR 3k
AR - MR EZEN D IR
BXMRE  ARBNERENEERE
EREBKBREDIMNEE -

REBRMRBEFEHRS
RIBRD S2Rh T &5 A MR 838
RIBRAD 2R AT 8IS BE R AR TR
EEMBEE RFANBRD -




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

L E S TELNESE )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHBIN  UARKERHE)

28 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(CONTINUED)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

Employee share-based compensation reserve

Employee share-based compensation reserve
represents the fair value of employee services in
respect of share granted to certain employees of
the Group.

Statutory reserve

As stipulated by regulations in the PRC, the
Company’s subsidiaries established and operated
in the PRC are required to appropriate 10% of their
after-tax-profit (after offsetting prior year losses) as
determined in accordance with the PRC accounting
rules and regulations, to the statutory surplus
reserve until the reserve balance reaches 50% of
the registered capital. The transfer to this reserve
must be made before distribution of a dividend to
equity owners.

The statutory surplus reserve can be used to
make good prior years’ losses, if any, and may be
converted into capital provided that the balance
after such issue is not less than 25% of the
registered capital.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve comprised the excess on
transfer of equity from non-controlling interests
in Boer Yixing, Boer Wuxi and Yixing Boai over
purchase considerations prior to 1 January 2011.

Capital redemption reserve

Capital redemption reserve represents the nominal
amount of the shares repurchased.

Exchange reserve

Exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the
financial statements of operations outside the
PRC which are dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies as set out in note 4(0).

(iii)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

28 B~ ERKRE (&

(d) RENEERARE)

AR 2 N B S &

PARU A XA OB B BN & A HE B X
TAKEETRENRDERNE
BIRFH)RFE

EERE

RIBFBUERMRTE - ARARRTE
RS RS T B A RIZR B H AR IR
R &R R FORMRETE MIBR TR
A (BRI EFEERIZ)H10%
BEEERMFHE  BEERBER
FERGEME A% /I - BAR
AV A A A 70 IR ASLB AT B B Rk fet
e

ETE BRI AT EE
MERE)  WATEARA - 8
BITRONEH TR I RNEMEARE
25% °©

a1
EXNFREERHEERES - FEE
B M BRI e IR A S R A
BEA—FT——F—A—BANE
BEREMER -

EXRE#E
BEAEOFEEEBERDAEE -

(vii) BB R

PE 53 et B AR E A BIRSNR S
TSR FEEN —IINEZ R -
Z IR TR B T 40) PR & 5T IR
RERIE o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

L E S TELNESE )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B>

SRS - AAREFHE)

28 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(CONTINUED)

(e) Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, by
pricing products commensurately with the level of risk
and by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Company defines “capital” as including all
components of equity. The Group actively and regularly
reviews and manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes in
economic conditions.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are
subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks
arises in the normal course of the Group’s business. These
risks are limited by the Group’s financial management
policies and practices.

(a) Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its
trade and bills receivable. Management has a credit
policy in place and the exposures to these credit risks
are monitored on an ongoing basis.

As at 31 December 2020, except for credit impaired
balances with gross amount of RMB1,588,713,000 that
have been assessed individually, the Group measures
loss allowances for trade receivables at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated using a provision
matrix. As the Group’s historical credit loss experience
does not indicate significantly different loss patterns for
different customer segments, the loss allowance based
on past due status is not further distinguished between
the Group’s different customer bases.
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BARBIELHE -

AR B SEAAT B R R Z I B
INEYE AR IRTE PR I -

20 IR KRER
AEMAAENEE  KPES XL
SNERBIKEAEEE BB ER - ZZE
R LA 7 2 B ) B 75 5 3R B R A 61 1 BA PR

(a) EERBS

AEENEERREIZREERKES
RRMERERE - ERECHEEER
B URHEESRZEEERR

RZZE_EF+_A=+—H KEs
5 A AR #1,588,713,000 T K= B R
EfrRE D ETEBIFHEIN - ANEEER
HEREAGFER BHEESENE
B(ERALEERREERETESEL)
STERKE SERFAEIEEE - ARNA
EEBANEEFEERTARTAR
FRMEBEAEZEZEBEER - A
EEBRTRFFRHEN G BR G &
ERmigikaeE—Hm o o



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

g EL e )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHBIN  UARKERHE)

29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

(a) Credit risk (continued)

The following table provides information about the
Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade

20 R EREE(HE)

(a) FERER(H)

TREHABAKELE S RUGIRR
HRNEERRIEREEEENE

receivables: o
2020
o ? —= ﬂi
Gross  Expected
Discounted carrying loss rate Loss
factor amount (%) allowance
FEH
BRIRZE  AREE (%) EERE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETTT
Within 3 months TR=EA 1 203,453 1% 2,034
Over 3 months but iBd=1EH
within 6 months BAREREA 1 97,148 2% 1,943
Over 6 months but within 1 year  FR:@/NEAABRNE—F 1 219,009 4.5% 9,856
Over 1 year (note) FaA—F (M) 0.91 1,804,707 0-100% 1,770,301
2,324,317 1,784,134
2019
“TNEF
Gross Expected
Discounted carrying loss rate Loss
factor amount (%) allowance
TE Ef
EEE
BRI 4RBRME(E (%) EEiEEE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT ARETT ARETT
Within 3 months TR=EA 1 291,198 1% 2,912
Over 3 months but BiE=1"A
within 6 months BARENEA 1 51,230 2% 1,025
Over 6 months but within 1 year  #R:@/NEAABTE—F 1 36,949 4.5% 1,663
Over 1 year (note) iRim— (M) 091 1,986,650 0-100% 1,889,134

2,366,027 1,894,734

The ageing analysis of trade receivables is based on the
invoice date.

Note: ECLs at 0% — Collaterals have been obtained from certain
customers, and typically comprise properties and land. No
impairment loss is provided for the debtor balance when
the collateral has a value greater than the debtor balance.

B PR IRZ R DT I ENER
HifE

B BALLAZNERERERBE — BIE
REETEFNERR  —REEVE
Rt o iR REESRERERZ
R - BN S E AR R IE A
EEERRE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

L E S TELNESE )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHBIN  UARKERHE)

29 FIN

ANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(CONTINUED)

(a)

Credit risk (continued)

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience
over the past 5 years. These rates are adjusted to reflect
differences between economic conditions during the
period over which the historic data has been collected,
current conditions and the group’s view of economic
conditions over the expected lives of the receivables.
The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure relevant information about specific debtor is
updated.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables are disclosed in
note 19(a).

Bank acceptance bills endorsed to its suppliers
which are not yet due as at 31 December 2020 were
amounted to RMB233,049,000 (31 December 2019:
RMB181,534,000). These bank acceptance bills were
derecognised by the Group (the “Derecognised Bills”).
In accordance with the Law of Negotiable Instruments
in the PRC, the holders of the Derecognised Bills have
a right of recourse against the Group if the PRC banks
default (the “Continuing Involvement”). In the opinion of
the Directors, the Group has transferred substantially
all risks and rewards relating to the Derecognised
Bills. Accordingly, it has derecognised the full carrying
amounts of the Derecognised Bills and the associated
trade payables. The Derecognised Bills generally have
maturity dates of 180 days, and the Group in general
endorses the bank acceptance bills equivalent to their
face value. In the opinion of the Directors, the fair
values of the Group’s Continuing Involvement in the
Derecognised Bills are not significant.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group has a certain
concentration of credit risk as 0%, 7.6% and 4.0% (2019:
6.7%, 22.6% and 14.2%) of the total trade receivables
were due from the Group’s largest customer, the
five largest customers and largest debtor as at 31
December 2020. The maximum exposure to credit risk
is represented by the carrying amount of each financial
asset in the consolidated statement of financial position
after deducting any impairment allowance.

BOER POWER HOLDINGS LIMITED BEEHERBRAE
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(a) FER(H)
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BB RN ER - EEETH
*“.ﬂ‘ DR - BRI EEHSANERE
BB ER -

JEUE 5 R B BREE D AT M E19(a)
HEE o

RZBEZEF+_A=+—HEETE
HERmMHABHNRITALEERSHE
B ARB233049,0007T( —F— N4
+=—A=+—H: AR®181,534,000
TL) c RERITEAREBEDAAERR
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)
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SRS - AAREFHE)

29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

(b) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk management at the Group level

As at 31 December 2020, even though the Group had
net current assets of RMB155,814,000, its short term
bank borrowings amounted to RMB390,631,000, while
the Group maintained its cash and cash equivalents of
RMB39,866,000 only.

In view of such circumstances, the Directors of the
Company have given careful consideration to the future
liquidity and performance of the Group and its available
sources of financing in assessing whether the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern for at least the
next twelve months from the end of the reporting period
and to meet its obligations, as and when they fall due.
Certain measures have been and are being taken to
manage the Group’s liquidity needs and to improve its
financial position which include, but are not limited to,
the following:

(i) the controlling shareholders, Mr Qian Yixiang and Ms
Jia Lingxia, have undertaken to provide continuing
financial support, including not to recall the amounts
due to them of RMB266,802,000 until the Group is
able to repay its other creditors in the normal course
of business;

(i) the Group has renewed several loan facility
agreements with the controlling shareholders and
their related parties in 2019 with an effective period
of 2-3 years. The loans are non-current, unsecured
and non-interest bearing. As at 31 December
2020, the Group’s unused loans facilities were
RMB878,939,000;

20 iR ER (&)

(b) FHENVE SR B

SEEERBESRREE
NRZTE-_ZTFE+-_A=1+—8 &
EAEBERNRHEEFEAARKE
155,814,000 7C * B HEHRITEE
A AR 390,631,000 @ AN EH
EHRFEASINASEEMAARE
39,866,0007T °

ENZEHER  ARREECHAZE
REBARRORBE S MKRBE N
BE2HR - AR RE R B miE
EEHPRENRI+ —EAAFEL
& WEDHSEITERS - ARED
RW RIS THREEEERSES
FRABFEF RN - BRERETRR
ATt

() TERRRREREERMEEREAEL L
EREHBFENBEIE  BREELR
SEENTEREBBIEFEER
hERAZ AT - TEEAENES
2 &% AR ¥266,802,0007T ;

iy AEEBER-ZT—hFETRARE
MEBABAEEETERREW
& BREA2E3F c BERAER
) BEHELTEERE - RNZE-F
F+-—A=+—8 KNEEKXED
EREE A ARKS878,939,0007T :
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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(B=BHBIN  UARKERHE)

29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Liquidity risk (continued)

Liquidity risk management at the Group level
(continued)

(i) as at 31 December 2020, the unused bank loans
facilities were RMB558,120,000 for providing
additional working capital to the Group; and

(iv) during the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Group has renewed its short term bank borrowings
of RMB346,352,000 and obtained new borrowings
of RMB455,739,000. The Directors of the
Company, based on their ongoing discussions with
the Group’s bankers, expect the Group’s bankers
to renew the existing bank facilities as they fall due.

Accordingly, the Directors are of the opinion that it is
appropriate to prepare these consolidated financial
statements on a going concern basis.

Liquidity risk management at the entity level

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including
the short-term investment of cash surpluses and the
raising of loans to cover expected cash demands,
subject to approval by the Board/management of the
entities. The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
liquidity requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves
of cash and adequate committed lines of funding
from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 29 BRI EE ()

(CONTINUED)

(b) Liquidity risk (continued) (b) REVE SR ()
Liquidity risk management at the entity level EEEmADESRRER(HF)
(continued)
The following table presents the remaining contractual TERHEYI A EESREERZREERD
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the FIgrE O EIERERR - IR IE A LUIRIT
Group’s financial liabilities, which are based on RRERE(BERENFETFEHH
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest B RASREAEERARENR
payments computed using contractual rates) and the SHHAE

earliest date the Group can be required to pay:

Total More than More than
Carrying  contractual Within 1yearbut  2yearsbut
amountat undiscounted 1 year or less than less than More than

31 December cashflow  ondemand 2years 5years 5years
Rt=A T
=t-A  AfBES —ER —EHE MENLL
HEREE ikt BEX  ERENA BEEHR BENE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARETR ARETR  ARETR  ARETn  ARETR

Borrowings g 583,644 583,644 390,631 41,100 151,913 -
Trade and other payables ERES RAME 378972 378972 318972 - - -
Amounts due to related parties R E 266,802 266,802 - 266,302 - -
Lease liabilties fEEE 47,026 53,892 13,933 18,307 18,959 2,693
1,276,444 1,283,310 783,536 326,209 170,872 2,693
2019
ZE-nE

Total More than More than

Carrying  contractual Within 1yearbut  2yearsbut
amountat undiscounted 1 year or less than less than More than
31 December cashflow  ondemand 2years 5years 5years

RT=A &h

t-B KREE -FRE -EME WENML

NEEE — RELE BEX  ERFNR  BREMA EFNL

RMBOOO ~ RMB'O0  RMB'000  RMBOO0  RMBO0  RMB'00
ARMTT  ARMTZ  ARMTz  ARMTr  ARMTr  ARMTR

Borrowings g 743839 743839 743,839 - - -
Trade and other payables EHEHRERESN 511347 511347 511,347 - - -
Amounts due to related parties  TE[EE 708 405,334 405,334 17,023 388,311 - -
Lease liabilities HEaRE 48214 58,467 4,860 13,670 36,907 3,030

1,708,734 1,718,987 1,277,069 401,981 36,907 3,030
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B # R R Bt = )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHBIN  UARKERHE)

29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 29 B ERE (&)

(CONTINUED)
(c) Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from
borrowings. Borrowings issued at fixed rates expose
the Group to fair value interest rate risk. The Group’s
interest rate profile is set out below:

Effective

interest rate

per annum

BRERZ

Fixed rate instruments:

(c) RIZ==E B

REBZMERBREZERBEMESE -
REBMBEL 2 EEEAEEFEAT
BENERRE - REBEFEGRETILN
T

2019
“ENE
Effective
Interest rate
RMB’000 per annum RMB'000
ARETR EREFR = ARETT

TE
Borrowings ETE 1.5% - 10.8% 583,644 2.0% -9.0% 743,839
Lease liabilities HERE 5.3% - 8.2% 47,026 5.3% - 8.2% 48,214
Total instruments TRz 630,670 792,053

(d) Currency risk

As the Group’s principal activities are carried out in the
PRC, the Group’s transactions are mainly denominated
in RMB, which is not freely convertible into foreign
currencies. All foreign exchange transactions involving
RMB must take place through the People’s Bank of
China or other institutions authorised to buy and sell
foreign exchange. The exchange rates adopted for
the foreign exchange transactions are the rates of
exchange quoted by the People’s Bank of China that
are determined largely by supply and demand.

The Group currently does not have a policy on foreign
currency risk as it had minimal export sales in the year
and the impact of foreign currency risk on the Group’s
total sales is minimal.

The management does not expect that there will be any
significant currency risk for the Group for both years
ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

BOER POWER HOLDINGS LIMITED BEEHERBRAE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B # R R Bt = )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHBIN  UARKERHE)

29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 29 BRI EE ()
(CONTINUED)
(e) Fair value (e) AFE
Some of the Group’s financial assets are measured at REEMETEREEDEATES
fair value. The fair value of these financial assets and the £ ZEeMEEN AT ERMGERI
valuation techniques are as follows: wm

Fair value at 31 December
Wr=A=+-BHAYE
Fair value Valuation
Financial assets 2020 2019 hierarchy techniques Key inputs
SHEE b 2l CTNE AVESR  GERE TERAHE
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ENSwT

Unlisted equity investment 28,511 10,556  Level3 Discounted cash flow @Grid-connected generation of
FELEmRAEE F=0 TEReRE electricity per annum;
Weighted average cost of capital;
EBITDA margins; and
Major capital expenditure.
BEHPEEE
ETIERRAE
ERAERHEMIEE Rk
IEEARR

Bills receivable 5,835 6,932  Level2 Face value Fair value of bills receivable
ERER E= HE approximates 1o their carrying
amounts (i.e. face value of bank
acceptance bills), as the Group
in general endorses the bank
acceptance bills equivalent to their
face value.
AR ARE-REERSREAR
WRTESRE - JEREENR
TEAEEREMRTRIZED

AE)EE
Reconciliation for financial instruments carried at fair RIBEATAERGABIZ(E=R)IL
value based on significant unobservable inputs (level 3) N EFBRNSE T EASRNAT ¢

are as follows:

Financial assets at FVTPL

RAVEFABZENEMEE
2020 2019
—ECEHF —Z=—hEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETT

Unlisted equity investment FLETREERE
At 1 January n—HA—H 10,556 9,094
Addition INE 16,716 -
Changes in fair value recognised in EWBATE = HERE

profit or loss during the year NE(EES 1,239 1,462
At 31 December R+—_A=+—H 28,511 10,556
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Lt . ﬂ NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

&

g EL e )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHBIN  UARKERHE)

30 SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND

LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY

The following table shows the carrying amount and fair value

of financial assets and liabilities:

Year 2020
Financial assets

-

0 ZEWHIBEASTHEREEREEBN

BME

A :

B

—_—=—=

TRMEE

TRETEREERAENEAERAF

Financial
assets Financial
Financial at FVOClI assets
assets -debt at amortised
at FVTPL instruments cost
BRATLEFA
BAYE HttzEks g £
HABE ZEREE— RAFI R
ZEWEE BHIE ZEMEE @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARET ARETR
Unlisted equity investment JELETIRATE 28,511 = = 28,511
Trade receivables FEUE SR - - 540,183 540,183
Bills receivable FEREE - 5,835 - 5,835
Financial assets included in ST AFENRIE « 73
prepayments, deposits and K H A FEUGRIE R
other receivables EMEE - - 57,481 57,481
Pledged deposits BEEFR - - 184,331 184,331
Cash and cash equivalents B NBESSEY - - 39,866 39,866
28,511 5,835 821,861 856,207
Financial liabilities THEE
Financial liabilities
at amortised cost
REBHEA
FIRz EME R
RMB’000
ARET R
Trade payables FERTE SRR 158,498
Bills payable ENEE 165,812
Financial liabilities included in other payables STAE A TR &
and accrual [EErERNTemEE 54,662
Lease liabilities HEaE 47,026
Borrowings BE 583,644
Amounts due to related parties FE(T A& 5 508 266,802
1,276,444
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) g

g EL e )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAZEFHA  UARKEFHE)

30 SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY (CONTINUED)

Year 2019
Financial assets

0DERFHESTHNEHEEREEBN
BMEE)
—E-AF
EREE

Unlisted equity investment JEETRARE 10,556 - - 10,556
Trade receivables [EE ST - - 471,293 471,293
Bills receivable EWZiE - 6,932 - 6,932
Financial assets included in FABATE  BRR

prepayments, deposits and H i EUFRIER

other receivables SMEE - - 114,848 114,848
Pledged deposits BEAER - - 152,404 152,404
Cash and cash equivalents Be kB2 SEY - - 68,879 68,879

10,556 6,932 807,424 824,912

Financial liabilities A =N

Trade payables FERTE SRR 342,533
Bills payable AN 77,125

Financial liabilities included in other payables ST AE A B M e B
and accrual AMeraE 91,689
Lease liabilities HEBE 48,214
Borrowings BE 743,839
Amounts due to related parties FE R 5 5RIE 405,334
1,708,734
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B RS R 2R M=t a)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHBIN  UARKERHE)

31 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 31 FEBEIRS
TRANSACTIONS
During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Directors are BE-_ZE-_EF+-_A=+—BLEE"
of the view that the following parties are related parties of the BEEDATIEHARNEENB S
Group:
Name of party Relationship
ML nE A BA&
Mr. Qian Yixiang Controlling shareholder and Director
BERROME & ERRRFEES
Ms. Jia Lingxia Controlling shareholder and Director
BEEBELL ERRERES
King Able Limited Immediate parent of the Group which is 50% owned by each of
(“King Able”) Mr. Qian Yixiang and Ms. Jia Lingxia, both of which are controlling
shareholders and Directors
FHEBR A A TEENERERR  ABBRMEERBAEL T (HRIERRKRRR
(THRE]) EFE)EBHBS0%ER
Wuxi Boer Power Instrumentation Effectively 93.34% and 6.66% owned by Mr. Qian Haosheng, a
Company Limited (“Wuxi Boer”) close family member of Mr. Qian Yixiang, controlling shareholder and

Director and Mr. Qian Zhongming, a Director, and Mr. Tao Linwei,
a family member of Mr. Qian Yixiang, controlling shareholder and
Director and Mr. Qian Zhongming, a Director, respectively

EHHEENEEERAA DRIBERAEE(BERRRFESERMEERESEMALEZ

([EmHIEHE]) BRREKE) REBALEE(ERRRFEEERMLERETEE
TRERSE A 2 KEERK B ) B s A 93.34% M 51 526.66% # 5

Bright Rise Trading Limited 50% owned by each of Mr. Qian Yixiang and Ms. Jia Lingxia, both of
(“Bright Rise”) which are controlling shareholders and Directors

EABSHER AT HEBERMEEREZELL(MARRRERES) S BHEBS0%E
(Tes& 1) n

Boer Investment (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. 80% directly owned by Ms. Jia Lingxia, a controlling shareholder and
(“Boer Singapore”) Director

BERE g BRAR MR RFEREZE LT HEEBS0%ER
(TEEF K L)

Boer Smart (Hong Kong) Limited Effectively 43.50% and 53.90% owned by Mr. Qian Yixiang and Ms.
(“Boer Smart”) Jia Lingxia, both of which are controlling shareholders and Directors
BEEE(EB)BRAT SRBBERRAEEREEZELT(AAERRREFRES )  ExlR

(MEEEE]) 43.50% 1% 5 53.90% 2
Boer Smart Technology (Wuxi) Effectively 43.50% and 53.90% owned by Mr. Qian Yixiang and Ms.
Co., Ltd.* (“Boer Smart Wuxi”) Jia Lingxia, both of which are controlling shareholders and Directors
EHEERHR(EB)BRAA DRBEBERAEEREZEL L (MAERKRRFER)ERHEA
(MEE SR 43.50%# % }53.90% 5
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B # R R Bt = )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHBIN  UARKERHE)

31 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 31 TEMEFIRZ (#)
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)
Name of party Relationship
BE SR BB BA&
Shanghai Changcheng Construction Effectively 33.5%, 16.5%, 46.67% and 3.33% owned by Mr. Qian
Development Company Limited* Zhongming, a Director, Mr. Qian Yixiang, a controlling shareholder
(“Shanghai Changcheng”) and Director, Mr. Qian Haosheng, a close family member of Mr.

Qian Yixiang, controlling shareholder and Director and Mr. Qian
Zhongming, a Director, and Mr. Tao Linwei, a family member of
Mr. Qian Yixiang, controlling shareholder and Director and Mr. Qian
Zhongming, a Director, respectively

PERWERFAEARAT DRIMEFRRMALE  ERERREFERMELE 2L
(T EBRHE]) (ERRRREFERMEEREERMARLEZERREKE) R

AL (IR R R EER RN ERESRMALE 2 REK
B)E R EE33.5%Me « 16.5%EE ~ 46.67 %2k 3.33% 25

The English translation of the company names is for reference only.
The official names of these companies are in Chinese.

(a) Financial assistance from related parties (a) RERBERS 2B KRB
In addition to the related party information disclosed br bl 5R o BB S BRI - REB K
elsewhere above, the Group and the Company entered RAREIN T EEMERRS ©

into the following material related party transactions.

() Transactions i X%
Cash advances from related parties BRI B

2020 2019
—ECEF —Z—NEF
Name of party RMB’000 RMB’000
2} yap i AR¥T T ARBT T
Ms. Jia Lingxia BEEL L - 94,035

Settlement of cash advances from related parties TBEMERIRESIN
2020 2019
—ECEF —Z-N&F
Name of party RMB’000 RMB’000
o) yay et ARET T ARET T
Ms. Jia Lingxia BEBTL 17,023 77,012
Wuxi Boer mHEE 121,432 -
Boer Smart [EREES 77 -

138,532 77,012
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B # R R Bt = )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHBIN  UARKERHE)

31 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY N FERELIRZ ()
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)
(a) Financial assistance from related parties (a) RERBERS 2B KT (&)
(continued)
() Transactions (continued) (i) XZ(#E)
Net outstanding amounts owed to related parties EREE S 2 REEFIRFEE
2020 2019
—B-EHF —ZE-NF
Name of party RMB’000 RMB’000
o) yap St AR¥T T ARET T
Non-current liabilities FEREBAE
Mr. Qian Yixiang BRMEE 156,426 156,426
Ms. Jia Lingxia BEELT 9,729 9,729
King Able mE 22,813 22,813
Wuxi Boer EIEE 60,083 181,515
Bright Rise irg = 17,751 17,751
Boer Smart BHEE - 7
266,802 388,311
Current liabilities REEE
Ms. Jia Lingxia BEEu+ - 17,023
266,802 405,334
(i) Loans from related parties (i) BBEFER
Loans facilities granted from related parties HEER R T ERKE
Pursuant to several loan facility agreements signed WRIEREL ((EAEH)BAEER
in 2018 and 2019, the related parties as lenders (EREF)RZZE—NFRZZ
and the Group as borrower, loan facilities were —NEETHNERERREE
granted to the Group for its general working capital TEFERETREIEE—REE
purposes. BeR® -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B # R R Bt = )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B>

FEBIN - AARIERTE)

31 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(a) Financial assistance from related parties
(continued)

31 EEFEFRS ()

(ii) Loans from related parties (continued)

Those loans are all unsecured, non-interest
bearing and repayable according to the terms of

(a) REBBER 2B R (&)

(i) BELERH)
ZEEFY REER - T ERA

BRI IERIEE

agreements.
Name of party 2020 2019
BEARE £8 “E-Ef —T-NF
Mr. Qian Yixiang, Ms. Jia Lingxia and SRR AE RMB500,000,000 RMB500,000,000
King Able BEEUTREE and and
US$1,393,000  US$1,393,000
AR¥ ARH
500,000,0005c  500,000,0007C
& K
1,393,000t  1,393,000% 7T
Ms. Jia Lingxia BRExt HK$2,000,000 HK$2,000,000
2,000,00077C  2,000,000787T
Mr. Qian Yixiang, Mr. Qian Zhongming B AE RMB300,000,000 RMB300,000,000
and Wuxi Boer BHREALER AR ARE
EHEH 300,000,0005t  300,000,0007T
Mr. Qian Yixiang, Ms. Jia Lingxia and BERMTE RMB100,000,000 RMB100,000,000
Bright Rise BABLTRIER ARH AR®
100,000,000t  100,000,0007C
Mr. Qian Yixiang and Boer Singapore BRMLER RMB200,000,000 RMB200,000,000
BEETIN ARH AR
200,000,0005t  200,000,0007¢
Boer Smart BEEE RMB35,000,000 RMB35,000,000
ARK AREE
35,000,000% 35,000,0007C
(iii) Unused loans facilities (i) RERERRE
2020 2019
—BC2E —E-nEF
Name of party RMB’000 RMB’000
BELIRE 28 AR¥ETR ARBFT
Mr. Qian Yixiang, Ms. Jia Lingxia and BEROREE
King Able EREn T REE 478,199 461,850
Mr. Qian Yixiang, Mr. Qian Zhongming BRORLA  BeREE
and Wuxi Boer REHEE 239,917 118,485
Mr. Qian Yixiang, Ms. Jia Lingxia and BROREE
Bright Rise ERERTRIER 82,249 82,249
Mr. Qian Yixiang and Boer Singapore SRE ST RIEH 43,574 43,574
Boer Smart HH 4L 35,000 34,923
878,939 741,081
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

L E S TELNESE )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHBIN  UARKERHE)

31 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(b) Financial guarantees received from related
parties

31

At 31 December 2020, borrowings amounting to
RMB339,500,000 were guaranteed by Mr. Qian Yixiang,
Ms. Jia Lingxia and Shanghai Changcheng (2019:
RMB407,800,000).
(c) Transactions with a related party
Other than disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated
financial statements, the transactions for the year with a
related party are as follows:

Continuing connected transactions
as defined in Chapter 14A of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the

(T Emall)

FEBRERIRS (&)
(b) EZREBES 2MBER

RZZEZZEF+_A=+—H AR
#339,500,0007c(Z & —NF : AR
5 407,800,0007T ) Z fE B A E M &
& BEBREN EERBELER -

(c) E—EREFNRXS
BRRGa M BRREMM T ARES
Sh - FRNE-EZBREFTETHRSN
I

2020 2019
—B-FF —NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTT

BERER S (EER
B2 FTE 5 AR Al

Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”): F14AE) :
- Processing fee income from Boer - REBESEESLN
Smart Wuxi (note (i) mIBUWA
(BREEG) 3,500 -
— Purchase from Boer Smart Wuxi - BEESE RS
(note (ii)) (B (Gi)) 577 -
Notes: HisE -

(i) Pursuant to the processing subcontracting framework
agreement dated 6 August 2020, Boer Yixing provided
assembly and processing services for manufacture of
intelligent household equipment to Boer Smart Wuxi
amounted to RMB3,500,000.

(i) Pursuant to the purchase framework agreement dated
6 August 2020, Temper Energy purchased intelligent
household equipment from Boer Smart Wuxi amounted to
EUR73,000 (equivalent to RMB577,000).

(iii) The above transactions were conducted in accordance with
the terms mutually agreed by both contract parties with
reference to market prices.

BOER POWER HOLDINGS LIMITED BEEHERBRAE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B # R R Bt = )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHBIN  UARKERHE)

31 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(d)

(e)

Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel of the
Group, including amounts paid to the Company’s
directors as disclosed in note 10 and certain of the
highest paid employees as disclosed in note 11, is as
follows:

31 FEBEAIRS (&)

(d) TEEFEASEN
REBESERABFM(BEWNEI0
I B T AR T EEN S EEIA KM
H1ARESNFE TR FMES
REE)INT

2020 2019
S I = as
RMB’000 RMB’000
ArmTr NS

Contributions to defined contribution RERFCGR ARG B
retirement plans 95 394
Salaries, wages and other benefits e~ B R EMEF 3,773 5,457
3,868 5,851

The Listing Rules applicable to connected
transactions

The transactions with a related party Boer Smart Wuxi
in note (c) above constitute connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. The disclosures required by
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules are provided in section
headed “Connected Transactions” of the Report of the
Directors.

(e) BRAREEXRZH EHRA

PR ()P E ER RAE S B E R R 85
MR SR TR BIE1AAEFTSEDN
MEXFRFEMERS - LHRANE
HABFRENRERRHNEZTSR
EIRERS | °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B # R R Bt = )

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B=BHBIN  UARKERHE)

32 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY

32 QB B AR R &

2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BisE AR¥T AREFIT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RSB RAIMIEE 16 39,997 39,997
Current assets REEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries PSR BB B IE 40,328 43,914
Cash at bank RITEHR S 43 73
40,371 43,987
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables HAbERFRIE 5 5
Amount due to a subsidiary BN —R B A RFIE - 7,844
Amounts due to related parties FE R 5 0B 7,383 -
. 0 7388 7,849
Netcurrentassets =~~~ O&*BEE¥E 00000 32983 36,138
NET ASSETS EEFE 72,980 76,135
CAPITAL AND RESERVES ERR#EE 28(a)
Share capital N 66,010 66,010
Reserves e 6,970 10,125
TOTAL EQUITY EREE 72,980 76,135

33 IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING
PARTY

At 31 December 2020, the Directors consider the immediate RZZEZTF+_A=1+—H EFRAE
parent of the Group to be King Able Limited and the ultimate AEEMNBERY R RSB HEERT
controlling party of the Group to be Mr. Qian Yixiang and Ms. DR AREEBRAREEBERMAEEREE
Jia Lingxia. King Able Limited is incorporated in the BVI and Ext HEBRRABIINE ﬁ&%ﬁﬁ%
does not produce financial statements available for public MRS - WA TSI RER LA R

use.

33 EEERATRERERT
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